
 

 

BASE LISTING PARTICULARS 

EFG-HERMES MENA SECURITIES LIMITED 
(registered as a limited liability company in the British Virgin Islands under No. 1424759) 

US$ 5,000,000,000 Securitised Holding Abwab Market Access Listed (SHAMAL) 
Notes Programme 

in respect of which the payment obligations of EFG-Hermes MENA Securities Limited  
are guaranteed by  

EFG-Hermes Holding S.A.E. 
(registered as an Egyptian Joint Stock Company under No. 12665) 

Programme 

Under the Securitised Holding Abwab Market Access Listed ("SHAMAL") Notes Programme (the "Programme") 
described in these base listing particulars (the "Base Listing Particulars"), EFG-Hermes MENA Securities Limited 
(the "Issuer") may from time to time issue participation notes (the "Notes"). The Notes will be guaranteed by EFG-
Hermes Holding S.A.E. (the "Guarantor"). 

Participation Notes linked to Shares 

The Notes will be linked to the Shares specified in the Pricing Supplement. The Notes allow holders to "participate" 
in a hypothetical holding of the Shares on the terms set forth in the terms and conditions of the Notes. However, 
Noteholders will have no interest in, or recourse to, the Shares and will not be able to exercise voting rights in respect 
of the Shares.  

Terms and Conditions 

The Notes will be subject to the terms and conditions set out in these Base Listing Particulars (as may be supplemented 
from time to time) as supplemented and completed by the pricing supplement specific to the particular issue of Notes 
(the "Pricing Supplement").  

Approval of Base Listing Particulars and listing and admission to trading 

The Base Listing Particulars have been approved by the Irish Stock Exchange plc, trading as Euronext Dublin 
("Euronext Dublin"), as listing particulars pursuant to the listing and admission to trading rules of Euronext Dublin 
for the purpose of providing information with regard to the issue of Notes hereunder, to be admitted to the Official 
List and to trading on the Global Exchange Market of Euronext Dublin in each case from time to time during the 12-
month period following the date hereof.  

Listing and admission to trading 

Application has been made to Euronext Dublin for the Notes to be admitted to the Official List and to trading on the 
Global Exchange Market of Euronext Dublin. The Global Exchange Market is the exchange regulated market of 
Euronext Dublin and is not a regulated market for the purposes of Directive 2014/65/EU (as amended, "MiFID II") 
or a UK regulated market for the purposes of Regulation (EU) No 600/2014 as it forms part of UK domestic law by 
virtue of the European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018 (as amended, "EUWA") (as amended, the "UK MiFIR"). 

Warning 

These Base Listing Particulars do not constitute a "prospectus" for the purposes of Article 8 of Regulation (EU) 
2017/1129, as amended (the "EU Prospectus Regulation") or Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 as it forms part of UK 
domestic law by virtue of the EUWA and regulations made thereunder (as amended, the "UK Prospectus 
Regulation"), and have been prepared on the basis that no prospectus shall be required under the EU Prospectus 
Regulation or the UK Prospectus Regulation for any Notes to be offered and sold hereunder. These Base Listing 
Particulars have not been approved or reviewed by any regulator which is a competent authority under the EU 
Prospectus Regulation in the European Economic Area (the "EEA") or by the Financial Conduct Authority under the 
UK Prospectus Regulation in the United Kingdom, or in any other jurisdiction. 

Investing in the Notes puts your capital at risk.  You may lose some or all of your investment. 

Dated 4 February 2021 



Important Notices 

 

 

IMPORTANT NOTICES 

Risk warning 

The Notes involve a high degree of risk and potential investors should be prepared to sustain a 
total loss of the purchase price. The Notes are intended for sale only to those investors capable of 
understanding the risk entailed in such instruments. Prospective purchasers of Notes should 
ensure that they understand the nature of the Notes as an investment in light of their own 
circumstances and financial condition. Prospective purchasers of the Notes should conduct their 
own investigations and, in deciding whether or not to purchase Notes, should form their own views 
of the merits of the Notes and the underlying Shares based upon such investigations and not in 
reliance upon any information given in these Base Listing Particulars and the Pricing Supplement. 
If in doubt potential investors are strongly recommended to consult with their financial advisers 
before making any investment decision. See the section entitled "Risk Factors". 

Responsibility statement 

The Issuer and the Guarantor both accept responsibility for the information contained in these Base 
Listing Particulars. To the best of their knowledge and belief (having taken all reasonable care to ensure 
that such is the case), the information contained in these Base Listing Particulars is in accordance with 
the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information. 

Offering restrictions in the EEA and the United Kingdom 

These Base Listing Particulars have been prepared on the basis that any offer of Notes in (a) any Member 
State of the EEA will be made pursuant to an exemption under the EU Prospectus Regulation from the 
requirement to publish a prospectus for offers of Notes and (b) the United Kingdom will be made 
pursuant to an exemption under the UK Prospectus Regulation from the requirement to publish a 
prospectus for offers of Notes. Accordingly, any person making or intending to make an offer in a 
Member State of the EEA or the United Kingdom of Notes which are the subject of an offering 
contemplated in these Base Listing Particulars as completed by a Pricing Supplement in relation to the 
offer of those Notes may only do so in circumstances in which no obligation arises for the relevant Issuer 
or the Dealer to publish a prospectus pursuant to Article 3 of the EU Prospectus Regulation or Section 
85 of the FSMA (as defined below), as the case may be, in relation to such offer. None of the Issuer, the 
Guarantor or the Dealer has authorised, nor do they authorise, the making of any offer of Notes in 
circumstances in which an obligation arises for the Issuer to publish a prospectus in the EEA, the United 
Kingdom or in any other jurisdiction. 

No consent given or responsibility taken for any public offerings in the EEA and the United 
Kingdom 

None of the Issuer, the Guarantor or the Dealer consents to the use of these Base Listing Particulars (or 
any supplement thereto or any Pricing Supplement) by any financial intermediary or any other person 
for the purpose of making a public offering of the Notes in the EEA or the United Kingdom, and none 
of the Issuer, the Guarantor or the Dealer accepts any responsibility or liability for the content of these 
Base Listing Particulars to any person with respect to the making of a public offering of the Notes by 
any financial intermediary or other person or for the actions of such financial intermediary or other person 
making such offer. 

Important – EEA retail investors 

Unless the Pricing Supplement in respect of any Notes which are the subject of the offering contemplated 
by these Base Listing Particulars as completed by the Pricing Supplement specifies "Prohibition of Sales 
to EEA Retail Investors" as "Not Applicable", the Notes are not intended to be offered, sold or otherwise 
made available to and should not be offered, sold or otherwise made available to any retail investor in 
the EEA. For these purposes, a retail investor means a person who is one (or more) of: (i) a retail client 
as defined in point (11) of Article 4(1) of MiFID II or (ii) a customer within the meaning of Directive 
(EU) 2016/97, where that customer would not qualify as a professional client as defined in point (10) of 
Article 4(1) of MiFID II; or (iii) not a qualified investor as defined in the EU Prospectus Regulation. 
Consequently no key information document required by Regulation (EU) No 1286/2014 (as amended, 
the "EU PRIIPs Regulation") for offering or selling the Notes or otherwise making them available to 
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retail investors in the EEA has been prepared and therefore offering or selling the Notes or otherwise 
making them available to any retail investor in the EEA may be unlawful under the PRIIPS Regulation. 

Important – UK retail investors 

Unless the Pricing Supplement in respect of any Notes which are the subject of the offering contemplated 
by these Base Listing Particulars as completed by the Pricing Supplement specifies "Prohibition of Sales 
to UK Retail Investors" as "Not Applicable", the Notes are not intended to be offered, sold or otherwise 
made available to and should not be offered, sold or otherwise made available to any retail investor in 
the United Kingdom. For these purposes, a retail investor means a person who is one (or more) of: (i) a 
retail client, as defined in point (8) of Article 2 of Regulation (EU) No 2017/565 as it forms part of UK 
domestic law by virtue of the EUWA; or (ii) a customer within the meaning of the provisions of the 
FSMA and any rules or regulations made under the FSMA to implement Directive (EU) 2016/97, where 
that customer would not qualify as a professional client, as defined in point (8) of Article 2(1) of 
Regulation (EU) No 600/2014 as it forms part of UK domestic law by virtue of the EUWA; or (iii) not a 
qualified investor as defined in Article 2 of the UK Prospectus Regulation. Consequently no key 
information document required by Regulation (EU) No 1286/2014 as it forms part of UK domestic law 
by virtue of the EUWA (as amended, the "UK PRIIPs Regulation") for offering or selling the Notes or 
otherwise making them available to retail investors in the United Kingdom has been prepared and 
therefore offering or selling the Notes or otherwise making them available to any retail investor in the 
United Kingdom may be unlawful under the UK PRIIPs Regulation. 

United Kingdom restrictions  

The Dealer may promote the Notes (or appoint a third party to promote the Notes) in the United Kingdom 
only to persons falling within either Article 19 (investment professionals) or Article 49 (high net worth 
companies, unincorporated associations, etc.) of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (Financial 
Promotion) Order 2005 and not to any other person unless it is possible to do so without breaching the 
restriction in section 21(1) of the FSMA, and the Dealer considers it appropriate to do so in any particular 
case.  These Notes are not intended to be promoted to retail investors in the United Kingdom, and the 
Dealer will not do so.  Subsequent purchasers of the Notes are informed of this and must ensure (and 
have the sole responsibility of ensuring) that any subsequent sale of the Notes by them is done in 
accordance with FSMA and the Financial Conduct Authority Rules (the "FCA Rules"). 

Notices to Residents of the United States 

THE NOTES AND THE GUARANTEE THEREOF HAVE NOT BEEN AND WILL NOT BE 
REGISTERED UNDER THE US SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE "SECURITIES 
ACT"), OR THE SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE OR OTHER JURISDICTION OF THE 
UNITED STATES AND NOTES IN BEARER FORM MAY BE SUBJECT TO US TAX LAW 
REQUIREMENTS. 

The Notes and the Guarantee thereof will only be offered outside the United States to non-US Persons 
in offshore transactions in compliance with Regulation S ("Regulation S") under the Securities Act. The 
Notes and the Guarantee thereof may not be offered, sold or delivered within the United States or to, or 
for the account or benefit of, a US Person (in the Base Listing Particulars, "US Person" means, save as 
otherwise provided, a person who is either a "US person" as defined in Regulation S or a "United States 
person" as defined in the US Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the "Code") and US Treasury regulations 
thereunder). References below to US persons include United States Persons.  Interests in the Notes will 
be subject to certain restrictions on transfer.  See the sections entitled "Subscription and Sale", "Transfer 
Restrictions", "Terms and Conditions of the Notes – "ERISA Transfer Restrictions" and "Certain ERISA 
Considerations". Beneficial interests in any temporary global notes will be exchangeable in whole or in 
part for beneficial interests in a permanent global note on or after the date which is 40 days after the later 
of (i) the relevant issue date and (ii) the completion of the offering, and upon certification as to non-US 
beneficial ownership as required by US Treasury regulations. 

THE NOTES ARE NOT SUITABLE INVESTMENTS FOR US PERSONS.  FURTHER, THE NOTES 
ARE SUBJECT TO RESTRICTIONS ON TRANSFERABILITY AND RESALE AND MAY NOT BE 
TRANSFERRED OR RESOLD WITHIN THE UNITED STATES OR TO US PERSONS. 
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Purchasers deemed to have made certain acknowledgements, representations and agreements  

Each purchaser of Notes offered hereby in making its purchase will be deemed to have made, and in 
some cases shall be required to affirmatively make, certain acknowledgements, representations and 
agreements as set out herein under "Subscription and Sale", "Transfer Restrictions", "Terms and 
Conditions of the Notes – "ERISA Transfer Restrictions" and "Certain ERISA Considerations". The 
Notes and the Guarantee thereof may not be offered, sold or delivered within the United States or to, or 
for the account or benefit of, US Persons.  Interests in the Notes will be subject to certain transfer 
restrictions set out in the legend of the certificate representing such Notes, and each transferee of a Note 
or an interest therein will be required to represent that it is a non-US Person and each purchaser of Notes 
will be required to agree that it will only transfer its beneficial interest in such Note upon receipt of any 
certificate of transfer required by the Agency Agreement. See the section entitled "Transfer Restrictions".  

Notes to be acquired for purchaser's own account and only resold to Issuer or outside the United 
States to a non-US Person  

The purchaser of any Note, by such purchase, agrees that such Note is being acquired for its own account 
and not with a view to distribution and may be offered, resold, delivered, pledged, assigned or otherwise 
transferred only (1) to the Issuer (upon redemption thereof or otherwise), or (2) outside the United States 
to a non-US Person in an offshore transaction in reliance on Regulation S, in each case, in compliance 
with all applicable US federal securities laws or applicable securities laws of any state of the United 
States or any other jurisdiction. 

The distribution of these Base Listing Particulars is restricted  

The distribution of these Base Listing Particulars and the offering or sale of the Notes in certain 
jurisdictions may be restricted by law. Persons into whose possession this document comes are required 
by the Issuer and the Guarantor to inform themselves about, and to observe any such restrictions. See the 
section entitled "Transfer Restrictions". This document may not be forwarded or distributed to any other 
person and may not be reproduced in any manner whatsoever and, in particular, may not be transmitted 
or distributed to persons within the United States or to any US Persons. Subject to the foregoing, there is 
no restriction on the particular category of investor who may invest in the Notes.  

Use of these Base Listing Particulars is restricted  

These Base Listing Particulars have been prepared by the Issuer solely for use in connection with the 
offering of the Notes described herein. The Issuer and each Dealer reserves the right to reject any offer 
to purchase the Notes in whole or in part for any reason, or to sell less than the stated initial principal 
amount of any Notes offered hereby. These Base Listing Particulars are personal to each offeree to whom 
it has been delivered by the Issuer or the relevant Dealer or any Affiliate and/or representative thereof 
and does not constitute an offer to any other person or to the public generally to subscribe for or otherwise 
acquire the Notes. Distribution of these Base Listing Particulars to any persons other than the offeree and 
those persons, if any, retained to advise such offeree with respect thereto is unauthorised and any 
disclosure of any of its contents, without the prior written consent of the Issuer, is prohibited, save as 
otherwise authorised under these Base Listing Particulars, in particular, the sections entitled "FATCA 
Considerations for Holders", "Certain ERISA Considerations" and "Transfer Restrictions". Each 
recipient in the United States, by accepting delivery of these Base Listing Particulars, agrees to the 
foregoing and to make no copies of these Base Listing Particulars or any documents related hereto. 

Disclosure permitted for certain tax purposes 

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, each offeree (and each employee, representative, or 
other agent of such offeree) may disclose to any and all other persons, without limitation of any kind, the 
tax treatment and tax structure of the transactions described herein (including the ownership and 
disposition of the Notes) and all materials of any kind (including opinions or other tax analyses) that are 
provided to the offeree relating to such tax treatment and tax structure.  For the purposes of this paragraph, 
the terms "tax treatment" and "tax structure" have the meaning given to such terms under US Treasury 
Regulation Section 1.6011-4(c) and applicable state and local law. 
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Documents incorporated by reference form part of these Base Listing Particulars 

These Base Listing Particulars are to be read in conjunction with the documents incorporated herein by 
reference (see the section entitled "Documents Incorporated by Reference"). These Base Listing 
Particulars shall be read and construed on the basis that such documents are so incorporated and form 
part of these Base Listing Particulars. 

No post-issuance reporting 

Neither the Issuer nor the Guarantor intends to provide any post-issuance information or has authorised 
the making or provision of any representation or information regarding the Issuer, the Guarantor or the 
Notes other than as contained or incorporated by reference in these Base Listing Particulars, in any other 
document prepared in connection with the Programme or any Pricing Supplement or as expressly 
approved for such purpose by the Issuer or the Guarantor.  Any such representation or information should 
not be relied upon as having been authorised by the Issuer or the Guarantor.  The delivery of this 
document or the delivery of any Pricing Supplement at any time does not imply that any information 
contained herein is correct at any time subsequent to the date hereof. 

Disclaimer by Dealer 

No Dealer has separately verified the information contained in these Base Listing Particulars. No Dealer 
makes any representation, express or implied, or accepts any responsibility, with respect to the accuracy 
or completeness of any of the information in these Base Listing Particulars. These Base Listing 
Particulars are not intended to provide the basis of any credit or other evaluation and should not be 
considered as a recommendation by the Issuer, the Guarantor or any Dealer that any recipient of these 
Base Listing Particulars should purchase the Notes. Each potential purchaser of Notes should determine 
for himself or herself the relevance of the information contained in these Base Listing Particulars and 
any purchase of Notes should be based upon such investigation as such potential purchaser deems 
necessary. No Dealer undertakes to review the financial condition or affairs of either the Issuer or the 
Guarantor during the life of the arrangements contemplated by these Base Listing Particulars nor to 
advise any investor or potential investor in the Notes of any information coming to the attention of any 
Dealer. 

Definitions 

In these Base Listing Particulars, unless otherwise specified or the context otherwise requires, references 
to: 

 "US$", "$" and "US Dollars" are to United States dollars; 

 "Euro" and "€" are to the lawful single currency of the member states of the European Union 

that have adopted and continue to retain a common single currency through monetary union in 
accordance with European Union treaty law (as amended from time to time); 

 "EGP" are to Egyptian pounds; and 

 "£" are to the currency of the United Kingdom. 

An index of defined terms is set out in the "Index of Defined Terms" below. 
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SUMMARY 

This Summary must be read as an introduction to these Base Listing Particulars and any decision to 
invest in the Notes should be based on a consideration of the Base Listing Particulars as a whole, 
including the documents incorporated by reference. 

Words and expressions defined in the "Terms and Conditions of the Notes" below shall have the same 
meanings in this Summary.  

Issuer: EFG-Hermes MENA Securities Limited (the "Issuer") was 
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, with registered number 
1424759, on 9 August 2007 for an unlimited duration. 

 The Issuer was incorporated as a BVI business company with limited 
liability under the BVI Business Companies Act, 2004. The Issuer's 
registered office is Kingston Chambers, P.O. Box 173, Road Town, 
Tortola, British Virgin Islands. The Issuer's registered agent is 
Maples Corporate Services (BVI) Limited and the telephone number 
of its registered agent is +1 284 852 3000. The Issuer's registered 
number is 1424759. 

 The primary activity and business of the Issuer is to act as an 
intermediary in dealings in shares and bonds and to issue the Notes 
under the Programme and enter into transactions contemplated by the 
Programme. The Issuer's activities are organised and integrated with 
the business of the Guarantor (as defined below). 

Guarantor: EFG–Hermes Holding S.A.E. (the "Guarantor") 

 The Guarantor was incorporated in Egypt as a Public Joint Stock 
Company pursuant to decree No. 106 of 1984 and operates under the 
Capital Market Law 95 of 1992.   

 The Guarantor's registered office and principal administrative 
establishment is Building No. B129, Phase 3, Smart Village, Km 28 
Cairo Alexandria Desert Road, 6 October 12577, Egypt and the 
telephone number of its registered office is + 20 2 3535 6499. Its 
current registered number is 12665. 

 The Guarantor is the parent holding company of a leading financial 
services group in the MENA Region (as defined below) and frontier 
markets, and carries on its activities through a number of direct and 
indirect subsidiaries and has holdings in other companies. In 
particular, its subsidiaries carry on the activities of securities 
brokerage, research, investment banking, asset management, private 
equity, leasing, factoring, micro-finance, and consumer-finance. 

Dealer: Unless otherwise provided in the applicable Pricing Supplement, 
Financial Brokerage Group will act as Dealer to purchase, procure 
the placement of and/or distribute the Notes to be sold outside the 
United States to non-US Persons in reliance on Regulation S under 
the Securities Act. 

Form of Notes: Notes may be issued in bearer or registered form, as specified in the 
relevant Pricing Supplement.  



Summary 

 

 2  
 
 

 Each series of Bearer Notes will initially be in the form of a 
Temporary Global Note or a Permanent Global Note, as specified in 
the relevant Pricing Supplement.  Each Temporary Global Note or 
Permanent Global Note will be deposited on or about the Issue Date 
with a common depository for Euroclear and/or Clearstream 
Luxembourg.  Each Temporary Global Note shall be exchangeable 
for a Permanent Global Note.  US Persons may not hold an interest 
in a Global Note at any time. See Condition 2 (Form, Denomination 
and Title) and the section entitled "Transfer Restrictions". 

 Registered Notes sold outside the United States to non-US Persons 
in reliance on Regulation S under the Securities Act (which will be 
deposited on the Issue Date with Euroclear and Clearstream, 
Luxembourg) will each be represented on issue by beneficial 
interests in one or more permanent Global Certificates in fully 
registered form, without interest coupons or principal receipts (each 
a "Global Certificate" and, together, the "Global Certificates").  US 
Persons may not hold an interest in a Global Certificate at any time.  
See Condition 2 (Form, Denomination and Title) and the section 
entitled "Transfer Restrictions". 

 Bearer Notes and any coupons relating to such Notes will contain the 
following legend: 

 THIS OBLIGATION MAY NOT BE OWNED BY A UNITED 
STATES PERSON. ANY UNITED STATES PERSON WHO 
HOLDS THIS OBLIGATION WILL BE SUBJECT TO 
LIMITATIONS UNDER THE UNITED STATES INCOME TAX 
LAWS, INCLUDING THE LIMITATIONS PROVIDED IN 
SECTIONS 165(j) AND 1287(a) OF THE US INTERNAL 
REVENUE CODE OF 1986. 

Issue Price:  The Issue Price will, in respect of each series of Notes (a "Series"), 
be set out in the applicable Pricing Supplement (and expressed either 
as a monetary amount or as a percentage of the aggregate nominal 
amount, as appropriate).  The price and amount of Notes will be 
determined by the Issuer and the Guarantor at the time of issuance in 
accordance with prevailing market conditions. 

Specified Denomination of 
the Notes: 

The Notes may be issued in such denomination as may be specified 
in the applicable Pricing Supplement as at the date of issue, which 
will, unless otherwise specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, 
be the Initial Price of a Share. 

Shares:  The Notes will be linked to Shares as specified in the relevant Pricing 
Supplement. 

Final Redemption Amount: Each Note will be linked to a number of Shares specified in the 
applicable Pricing Supplement. The Final Redemption Amount of 
each Note at maturity will be based on the volume weighted average 
price at which a Hypothetical Investor could have sold the Aggregate 
Number of Shares on the Exchange during the Valuation Period, as 
adjusted for conversion of the currency of the Shares to the currency 
of the Notes at the prevailing spot rate as determined by the 
Calculation Agent on or about the date of receipt of the sale proceeds 
by a Hypothetical Investor, and subject to adjustment due to certain 
adjustment events specified in the Terms and Conditions of the 
Notes, and after deducting certain costs, expenses and taxes specified 
in the Terms and Conditions of the Notes. 
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Early Redemption: Early redemption will only be permitted prior to maturity in whole 
but not in part for reasons of illegality or potentially on the 
occurrence of certain events (being, a Merger Event, Tender Offer, 
Nationalisation, Liquidation, Delisting, Change of Law, Insolvency, 
Jurisdictional Event, Trading Failure, Hedging Disruption, CMA 
Order and CMA Resolution Ineligible Investor Event) as set out in 
Condition 6 (Adjustments and Additional Redemption Events) and/or 
upon an Event of Default under Condition 12 (Events of Default).  

 The Early Redemption Amount shall be calculated in the same 
manner as the Final Redemption Amount as described above save 
that the Valuation Date shall be the date following as soon as 
practicable after the Calculation Agent has become aware of the 
event leading to the early redemption of the Notes. 

Issuer Buy-back/Further 
Issuer Orders: 

Subject to the exceptions, qualifications and requirements therein, 
including, without limitation, the state of the market as determined 
by the Calculation Agent, the Issuer shall at the request of a 
Noteholder (a) provide indicative bid and ask prices in respect of the 
Notes, and/or (b) accept a sale order from a Noteholder specifying a 
certain number of Notes to be sold. See the section entitled "Buy-back 
Provisions". 

Settlement Currency: The Settlement Currency of the Notes is the currency of 
denomination of the Notes. The Settlement Currency may be 
different from the currency the Shares or any cash dividend payable 
thereunder. The weakening of a country's currency relative to the 
Settlement Currency will negatively affect the value of the Notes. 

FX Disruption Condition: Pursuant to Condition 7 (FX Disruption Condition), an FX 
Disruption Condition comprises certain events that may affect the 
convertibility or transferability of the Reference Currency for the 
Settlement Currency (or in relation to an applicable intermediate 
currency). If an FX Disruption Condition continues to exist for five 
years after its determination, then the Notes shall be deemed to have 
been redeemed on such date without any payment on the part of the 
Issuer (or Guarantor) (and without entitlement to any interest) and 
the Issuer's obligations under the Notes (and the Guarantor's 
obligations under the Guarantee) shall be deemed to have been 
discharged in full. 

Additional Amounts: Unless specified as "Not Applicable" in the applicable Pricing 
Supplement, the Issuer shall pay each Noteholder an Additional 
Amount (if any) equal to the amount of any cash dividends per Share 
(as determined by the Calculation Agent in its sole discretion), which 
would have been received by a Hypothetical Investor (and in respect 
of which the ex-dividend date has occurred) during the Additional 
Amount Period as defined in Condition 21 (Definitions), after 
deduction of taxes, and after conversion thereof into the Settlement 
Currency of the Notes. 

Adjustments: If (i) certain adjustment events occur which could have a diluting or 
concentrative effect on the Shares or (ii) certain other events occur 
(being, a Merger Event, Tender Offer, Insolvency, Jurisdictional 
Event, Trading Failure and Hedging Disruption and (in the case of 
Notes Linked to Saudi Shares only) CMA Order and CMA 
Resolution Ineligible Investor Event), the Calculation Agent may, 
(other than as a consequence of a Potential Adjustment Event, Merger 
Event or Tender Offer, in its sole and absolute discretion), make 
appropriate adjustments to the Terms and Conditions of the relevant 
Notes, or (in the case of adjustment events under (i) only) issue 
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further Notes (including notes of a different Series) to account for 
that event (or in the case of (ii), determine that the Notes shall be 
redeemed at their Early Redemption Amount).  See Condition 6 
(Adjustments and Additional Redemption Events) of the Notes. 

Interest: The Notes are not interest-bearing. However, see "Additional 
Amounts" above.  

Status of Notes: The Notes will constitute unsubordinated and unsecured obligations 
of the Issuer as described in Condition 3 (Status and Guarantee).   

Status of the Guarantee: The Notes will be unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by the 
Guarantor, on an unsubordinated and unsecured basis as described in 
Condition 3 (Status and Guarantee). 

Calculation Agent: Unless otherwise specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement, EFG-
Hermes UAE Limited will be the Calculation Agent. The Calculation 
Agent is subject to certain conflicts of interest. See risk factor 4 
(Conflicts of Interest) of the section entitled "Risk Factors". 

Fiscal Agent: Deutsche Bank AG, London Branch 

Registrar and Transfer 
Agent: 

Deutsche Bank Luxembourg S.A. 

Clearing Systems: Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg or in relation to any 
Tranche of Notes, any other clearing system as may be specified in 
the relevant Pricing Supplement. 

Listing and admission to 
trading: 

As specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement, a Series of Notes 
may either be (i) admitted to the Official List and trading on the 
Global Exchange Market of Euronext Dublin or (ii) unlisted. 

Taxation The Issuer is not liable and does not assume responsibility for, any 
tax, duty, charges, withholding or other payment which may arise as 
a result of, or in connection with, the ownership, transfer, redemption 
or enforcement of any Note, including, without limitation, the 
payment of any Additional Amount, the Early Redemption Amount 
and/or the Final Redemption Amount unless the withholding or 
deduction of such tax, duty, charges or other payment is required by 
law. In that event, the appropriate withholding or deduction shall be 
made and the Issuer shall have no obligation to pay any additional 
amounts to compensate any Noteholder for such withholding or 
deduction.  

Governing law: English law 

Enforcement of Notes in 
Global Form: 

In the case of Global Notes and Global Certificates, individual 
investor rights against the Issuer will be governed by a Deed of 
Covenant, a copy of which will be available for inspection at the 
registered offices of each of the Agents, Issuer and Guarantor. 

Selling Restrictions: For a description of certain restrictions on offers, sales and deliveries 
of Notes and on the distribution of offering material in the United 
States of America, the United Kingdom, the British Virgin Islands, 
Kingdom of Bahrain, Egypt, Ireland, Kuwait, Qatar, Kingdom of 
Saudi Arabia, United Arab Emirates and the EEA, see the section 
entitled "Subscription and Sale".   

Risk Factors: Prospective investors should consider carefully the risks set forth 
below, the other information contained in these Base Listing 
Particulars prior to making any investment decision with respect 
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to the Notes. Each of the risks highlighted could have a material 
adverse effect on the amount of principal and the return, which 
investors will receive in respect of the Notes. In addition, each of 
the risks highlighted below could adversely affect the trading 
price of the Notes or the rights of investors under the Notes. AS 
A RESULT, INVESTORS COULD LOSE SOME OR ALL OF 
THEIR INVESTMENT. See "Risk Factors" below. 
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RISK FACTORS 

Prospective investors should consider carefully the risks set forth below and also the other 
information contained in these Base Listing Particulars prior to making any investment decision 
with respect to the Notes. Each of the risks highlighted could have a material adverse effect on the 
amount of principal and the return which investors will receive in respect of the Notes. In addition, 
each of the risks highlighted below could adversely affect the trading price of the Notes or the 
rights of investors under the Notes and, as a result, investors could lose some or all of their 
investment. 

The Notes involve complex risks, which include equity market risks and may include interest rate, foreign 
exchange and/or political risks. Before buying Notes, investors should carefully consider, among other 
things, (i) the trading price of the Shares, (ii) the value and volatility of the Shares, (iii) any change(s) in 
interim interest rates and dividend yields, (iv) any change(s) in currency exchange rates, (v) the depth of 
the market or liquidity of the Shares, (vi) the possible range of redemption amounts and (vii) any related 
transaction costs. 

1. Risks relating to the Issuer and Guarantor 

Investors in the Notes are exposed to the creditworthiness of the Issuer and the Guarantor. 
It is possible that the Issuer or the Guarantor could go bankrupt, become insolvent or 
enter receivership, or otherwise be unable to make the payments owing to investors under 
the Notes. If that happens, investors will not have the protection of any deposit insurance 
scheme and will not be secured, and may lose some or all of their money. 

The Notes constitute direct, unsubordinated, unconditional and unsecured obligations of the 
Issuer and rank equally among themselves and rank equally (subject to exceptions as are from 
time to time provided by applicable laws) with all other present and future direct, 
unsubordinated, unconditional and unsecured indebtedness or obligations, as applicable, of the 
Issuer. 

The obligations of the Guarantor under the Guarantee, save for such exceptions as may be 
provided by applicable legislation or judicial order, rank pari passu with its other present and 
future unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness. 

Since the Guarantor is a holding company, the right of the Guarantor, and hence the right of 
creditors of the Guarantor (including the Noteholders), to participate in any distribution of the 
assets of any subsidiary (including the Issuer) upon its liquidation or reorganisation or otherwise 
is necessarily subject to Egyptian insolvency law. 

The financial statements of the Guarantor, as incorporated by reference herein, have been 
prepared in accordance with Egyptian Accounting Standards ("EAS") and in light of prevailing 
Egyptian laws. There may be material differences in the financial statements had another 
internationally-recognised standard, such as International Financial Reporting Standards, been 
applied.   

2. Risks relating to the Notes and the Shares 

2.1 Synthetic Investment in the Shares 

Investors should be aware that the Notes provide a synthetic exposure to an investment in the 
Shares, subject to and in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Notes. Therefore, 
depending on the performance of the Shares, the value of the Shares at maturity may be 
substantially lower than when the Notes were initially purchased. In the event that due to the 
occurrence of one or more market disruption events or any other reason the Calculation Agent 
determines in its sole and absolute discretion that a hypothetical investor could not have sold all 
of the aggregate number of Shares during the period of 180 calendar days from the applicable 
valuation date, the price of each such unsold Share shall be determined by the Calculation Agent 
in its sole and absolute discretion (for the avoidance of doubt, in such case, the determination 
of the price of the Share shall take into account the market disruption event or other reason why 
the Share remains unsold, and could be as low as zero). There is no assurance that the Final 
Redemption Amount at maturity will be equal to or more than the purchase price of the Notes. 
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In the worst case, the Notes may redeem at zero, exposing investors to the full loss of their initial 
investment. If investors have any doubt on the risk level implied, they should consult a 
professional investment adviser. 

The Issuer makes no representation or warranty about, or guarantee of, the performance of the 
Shares. Past performance of the Shares cannot be considered to be either a guarantee of, or 
necessarily a guide to, future performance. The value of the Shares may go down as well as up 
during the term of the Notes.  

2.2 No claim against a Share Issuer, Share, Hedge Position or Hedge Counterparty 

A Note does not represent a claim against any Share Issuer and, in the event of any loss, a 
Noteholder will not have recourse under a Note to any Share Issuer nor shall a Noteholder have 
any legal, beneficial or other interest whatsoever in any of the Shares. In addition, a Note does 
not represent a claim against any Hedge Counterparty and, in the event of any loss, a Noteholder 
will not have recourse under a Note against the Hedge Counterparty nor have any interest 
whatsoever in the Hedge Position or the Hedge Proceeds.  

2.3 No Voting Rights 

If voting rights are attached to the Shares, the Noteholder will not be able to exercise such rights 
and neither the Issuer nor any of its affiliates is obliged to take account of the interests of the 
Noteholders in exercising voting rights. It is therefore possible that such rights may be exercised 
in a manner which is contrary to the interests of Noteholders.  

In respect of Notes Linked to Saudi Shares, in order to ensure compliance with the applicable 
regulations in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia with regard to any Hedge Position entered into 
between the Authorised Person and the Issuer, the Authorised Person holding the Shares is 
prohibited from exercising voting rights in respect of such Shares. Matters requiring a 
shareholder vote are therefore more likely to result in an outcome contrary to the interests of 
Noteholders. 

2.4 Market Value of the Notes  

The market value for the Notes will be affected by a number of factors independent of the 
creditworthiness of the Issuer and the value of the Shares, including but not limited to, the 
volatility of the Shares, the return rate on the Shares, the financial results and prospects of the 
relevant Share Issuer, market interest and yield rates and the time remaining to any redemption 
date or the Maturity Date. In addition, the value of the Shares depends on their liquidity and a 
number of inter-related factors, including economic, financial and political events in countries 
where the relevant Share Issuer operates and elsewhere, including factors affecting capital 
markets generally and the stock exchanges on which the Shares are traded. The price at which 
a Noteholder will be able to sell Notes prior to maturity may be at a discount, which could be 
substantial, from the accreted principal amount thereof, if, at such time, the market price of the 
Shares is below, equal to or not sufficiently above the market price of the Shares at the date of 
the Pricing Supplement pursuant to which the relevant Notes were issued. 

2.5 Limited Liquidity of the Notes 

It is highly unlikely that the Notes will trade in the secondary market or that such market will 
be liquid. If so agreed with the relevant investor, the Issuer shall, at the request of a Noteholder, 
accept a sale order from a Noteholder specifying a certain number of Notes to be sold.  However, 
any such potential sale by the Noteholder will be subject to (among other things) consideration 
by the Calculation Agent (in its sole and absolute discretion) as to whether market conditions at 
the relevant time make it impossible or impracticable to provide an indicative bid or ask price 
and/or to accept or execute such order and any other exceptions, qualifications and requirements 
as may be agreed. 

2.6 Early Redemption of the Notes 

The Notes may be redeemed in whole but not in part before the Maturity Date upon the 
occurrence of certain events more particularly described in Conditions 5 (Redemption and 
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Purchase), 6 (Adjustments and Additional Redemption Events), 7 (FX Disruption Condition) 
and 12 (Events of Default) of the Notes, including, (a) the Issuer's obligations under the Notes 
become illegal; (b) the occurrence of a Merger Event or Tender Offer; (c) the nationalisation or 
insolvency of the Share Issuer, the delisting of the Shares and/or loss of the relevant Hedge 
Position; (d) the occurrence of any event which reduces or eliminates any Hedge Proceeds or 
affects the ability of the Issuer or the Hedge Counterparty to establish, maintain or unwind any 
Hedge Position or make any payments thereunder; and/or (e) the occurrence of an Event of 
Default under the Notes.  

Notes that are redeemed before the Maturity Date will be redeemed at their Early Redemption 
Amount, which is an amount per Note equal to the volume weighted average price at which a 
Hypothetical Investor could have sold the Aggregate Number of Shares on the Exchange during 
the Valuation Period in respect of such redemption (after deducting taxes and certain costs and 
expenses). It is possible that such amount could be less than the purchase price of the Notes and 
could be as low as zero.  

2.7 Adjustments to the terms of the Notes 

The Conditions provide that on the occurrence of certain specified events, more particularly 
described in Condition 6 (Adjustments and Additional Redemption Events) of the Notes, 
including, (a) the occurrence of a Potential Adjustment Event, (b) the occurrence of a Merger 
Event or Tender Offer, (c) the insolvency of the Share Issuer, (d) the trading failure of the 
Shares, (e) the occurrence of any event which reduces or eliminates any Hedge Proceeds or 
affects the ability of the Issuer or the Hedge Counterparty to establish, maintain or unwind any 
Hedge Position or make any payments thereunder), (f) certain events in relation to the 
jurisdiction of the Share Issuer, and (g) (where the jurisdiction of the Share Issuer is the 
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia) the Capital Market Authority has requested that the Hedge 
Counterparty (or Issuer) terminate or otherwise modify the Hedge Position or imposes any 
qualitative or quantitative limitation or any other requirements in relation to the Hedge Position, 
the Notes, the Guarantee, the Calculation Agent may, (other than the events described in (a) and 
(b) above) in its sole and absolute discretion, make such downward adjustment to any Additional 
Amount, the Early Redemption Amount and/or the Final Redemption Amount and/or any 
adjustment to the terms of the Notes as it shall determine (taking into account the effect of such 
events on the Hedge Position). Such adjustments may negatively affect the value of any 
Additional Amount, Early Redemption Amount and/or Final Redemption Amount and/or the 
value of the Notes and may result in the Noteholder losing its entire investment in the Notes. 

2.8 Currency Risk and FX Disruption Condition 

The Notes may be denominated in currencies other than the currency of the Shares or any cash 
dividend payable thereunder. The weakening of a country's currency relative to the Settlement 
Currency will negatively affect the value of the Notes. Currency valuations are linked to a host 
of economic, social and political factors and can fluctuate greatly, even during intra-day trading. 
It is important to note that some countries have foreign exchange controls which may include 
the suspension of the ability to exchange or transfer currency, or the devaluation of the currency. 
Hedging can increase or decrease the exposure to any one currency, but may not eliminate 
completely exposure to changing currency values. 

Pursuant to Condition 7 (FX Disruption Condition), an FX Disruption Condition comprises 
certain events that may affect the convertibility or transferability of the Reference Currency for 
the Settlement Currency (or in relation to an applicable intermediate currency). If an FX 
Disruption Condition continues to exist for five years after its determination, then the Notes 
shall be deemed to have been redeemed on such date without any payment on the part of the 
Issuer (or Guarantor) (and without entitlement to any interest) and the Issuer's obligations under 
the Notes (and the Guarantor's obligations under the Guarantee) shall be deemed to have been 
discharged in full.  

2.9 The Calculation Agent 

The Conditions provide that the Calculation Agent shall (a) determine the occurrence of certain 
events which may affect the value of the Notes or any Additional Amount, Early Redemption 
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Amount and/or Final Redemption Amount thereunder and (b) have the power to make certain 
decisions in respect of the Notes, such as adjustments to the terms thereof or early redemption 
thereof. The Calculation Agent acts solely as agent of the Issuer and the Guarantor and does not 
assume any obligations or duty to, or relationship of agency or trust for or with, any Noteholder. 
In making any determination or exercising any discretion, the Calculation Agent is not obliged 
to consider the interests of any Noteholder and no liability shall attach to the Calculation Agent, 
the Issuer, the Guarantor or any of the Agents for good faith errors or omissions in the 
Calculation Agent's calculations and determinations.  

Any matter that falls to be determined, considered or otherwise decided upon by the Calculation 
Agent or any other person (including, where a matter is to be decided by reference to the 
Calculation Agent's or such other person's opinion), shall be decided upon by the Calculation 
Agent or such other person as the case may be in its sole and absolute discretion (where such 
manner is specifically provided in the relevant terms and conditions - otherwise the Calculation 
Agent shall exercise its discretion in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner), 
taking into account any market factors and other factors as the Calculation Agent or such other 
person deems relevant including, without limitation, the Issuer's Hedge Position (including, 
without limitation, any impact on such position, the ability to retain such position and the cost 
of unwinding any such position). 

2.10 Additional Transfer Restriction  

In respect of Notes linked to Shares which are listed on the Saudi Stock Exchange (Tadawul) 
("Notes Linked to Saudi Shares"), each purchaser of such Notes will be required, as a 
condition of any purchase of such Notes, to execute a letter substantially in the form set out in 
section entitled "Form of Noteholder Letter" to the Issuer, the Guarantor, the Dealer, the 
Calculation Agent and the Authorised Person (if any) therein. Such letter, among other things, 
authorises any of the Issuer, the Guarantor, the Dealer, the Calculation Agent and the Authorised 
Person to disclose (amongst other items) the purchaser's identity and the terms of such Notes to 
the Capital Market Authority and also contains certain authorisations, representations, 
warranties, confirmations and undertakings that each purchaser is required to make in favour of 
the Issuer, the Guarantor, the Dealer, the Calculation Agent and the Authorised Person. Such 
letter also contains certain authorisations, representations, warranties, confirmations and 
undertakings that each purchaser is required to make in respect of US tax and securities laws.  
The requirement on all purchasers of Notes Linked to Saudi Shares to provide such letter may 
adversely affect the ability to transfer such Notes. 

2.11 No provision of advice 

The Issuer has not provided and will not provide prospective purchasers of Notes with any 
information or advice with respect to the Shares, the Share Issuer or the Reference Jurisdiction 
and makes no representation as to the credit quality of the Share Issuer or the Reference 
Jurisdiction. The Issuer may have acquired, or during the term of the Notes may acquire, non-
public information with respect to the Share Issuer or the Reference Jurisdiction, which may not 
be provided to the Noteholders. 

2.12 Taxation 

Transactions involving Notes may have tax consequences for potential purchasers which may 
depend, among other things, upon the status of the potential purchaser and laws relating to 
transfer, registration, income and capital gains taxes.  No representation is made by the Issuer 
or any Dealer as to the tax consequences for any person of acquiring, holding or disposing of 
any Notes or any other transaction involving any Notes.  Potential purchasers who are in any 
doubt about such matters or any other tax issues relating to Notes should consult and rely on 
their own tax advisers. 
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3. General Risks and Risk relating to Emerging Markets 

3.1 Political and economic considerations relating to Egypt 

Following the revolution on 25 January 2011 (the "25 January Revolution"), Egypt continues 
to face social, economic and political challenges. The 25 January Revolution led to the 
resignation of Egyptian president Hosni Mubarak and continued political unrest and social 
instability. A new civilian president, Mohammed Morsi was subsequently elected and took 
office in June 2013 following a period of control by the military who had assumed executive 
powers in the country in early 2011. Following the election, organised popular anti-Morsi 
demonstrations took place in several Egyptian cities to coincide with the anniversary of 
President Morsi assuming office. In July 2013, the military removed President Morsi, installed 
an interim government and suspended the constitution. In August 2013, security forces ended 
pro-Morsi demonstrations and the military announced a nationwide state of emergency as well 
as curfews in several cities including Cairo. 

In January 2014, a new constitution was approved in a public referendum. In June 2014, the 
former minister of defence, Abdel-Fattah el-Sisi won the presidential elections. The 
parliamentary elections which represent the third and final milestone in the road map declared 
by the military in July 2014 were held in two phases from October 2015 to December 2015. 
Under the new constitution and its subsequent amendments, the president will serve a term of 
six years, which is renewable once only. Following a further round of presidential elections in 
2018, President el-Sisi was re-elected for a second term in March 2018. According to the 
transitional rules of the recent constitutional amendments, President el-Sisi is entitled to run for 
a third term that would keep him in power until 2030.   

Since the parliamentary elections in 2015, the Government has been reshuffled on a number of 
occasions, including in June 2018, when a new 32-member cabinet headed by Prime Minister 
Mostafa Madbouly was sworn in. A further cabinet shuffle took place in December 2019 when 
six new ministers were sworn in and four already-serving ministers were given new or expanded 
portfolios. One of the important changes in the recent cabinet shuffle is that Prime Minister 
Mostafa Madbouly took over the role of investment minister, taking responsibility for the 
General Authority for Free Zones and Investment after the cancellation of the Ministry of 
Investment. Further to the 2020 parliamentary elections and the first session of the newly elected 
parliament held in late December 2020, a Government reshuffle is expected in the upcoming 
period. 

The current Egyptian government is likely to continue to face social, economic and political 
challenges. Any change in policy or any delay or reversal of economic reforms may lead to 
political instability or uncertainty regarding the completion of economic reforms, which could, 
in turn, negatively affect Egypt and its economy. These challenges, together with incidents of 
social and political unrest and violence in Egypt and in the wider region, have had and may 
continue to have a significant adverse effect on the Egyptian economy. There can be no 
assurance that further incidents of political or social instability, terrorism, protests or violence 
will not directly or indirectly negatively affect the Egyptian economy and, as a consequence, 
the Guarantor's businesses and financial position and prospects. 

3.2 The COVID-19 pandemic 

On 11 March 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of a strain of novel 
coronavirus disease, COVID-19, a global pandemic. The COVID-19 pandemic and 
governmental responses to the pandemic have had, and continue to have, a severe impact on 
global economic conditions, including: 

(i) significant disruption and volatility in the financial markets; 

(ii) disruption of global supply chains; 

(iii) closures of many businesses, leading to loss of revenues and increased unemployment; 

(iv) the institution of social distancing and sheltering-in-place requirements in multiple 
countries; and 
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(v) suspension of cross-border passenger traffic. 

A new variant of the COVID-19 virus was identified in London and neighbouring areas in 
December 2020. This new variant is substantially more transmissible than the existing strains 
that ravaged the world in the last nine months. If the spread of the pandemic is not brought under 
control through quarantine measures and mass immunisation, or the COVID-19 virus further 
mutates such that it becomes more infectious and virulent, the adverse impact on the global 
economy could deepen. 

The continuation of the adverse economic conditions caused by the pandemic can be expected 
to have a significant adverse effect on the Issuer's and Guarantor's businesses and results of 
operations, including: 

(i) significantly reduced demand for products and services from the Issuer's and Guarantor's 
clients and customers; 

(ii) possible recognition of credit losses and increases in the allowance for credit losses, 
especially if businesses remain closed, unemployment continues to rise and clients and 
customers draw on their lines of credit or seek additional loans to help finance their 
businesses; 

(iii) possible material impacts on the value of securities, derivatives and other financial 
instruments which the Issuer's and Guarantor's own or in which it makes markets due to 
market fluctuations; 

(iv) possible constraints on liquidity and capital, whether due to increases in risk-weighted 
assets related to supporting client activities or to regulatory actions; and 

(v) the possibility that significant portions of the Issuer's and Guarantor's workforce are 
unable to work effectively, including because of illness, quarantines, sheltering-in-place 
arrangements, government actions or other restrictions in connection with the pandemic. 

The extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic negatively affects the Issuer's and Guarantor's 
businesses, results of operations and financial condition, as well as liquidity ratios, will depend 
on future developments that are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted, including the scope 
and duration of the pandemic and actions taken by governmental authorities and other third 
parties in response to the pandemic. To the extent the COVID-19 pandemic adversely affects 
the Issuer's and Guarantor's business, results of operations and financial condition, it may also 
have the effect of heightening many of the other risks described herein. 

3.3 Recent Events in Financial Markets 

There exist significant risks for the Issuer and investors as a result of the current economic 
conditions.  These risks include, among others, (i) the possibility that, on or after the Issue Date, 
the price of the Shares will be lower than the Initial Price (or possibly be zero), and (ii) the 
possibility that on or after the Issue Date, the Share Issuer, the Hedge Counterparty and/or the 
Guarantor may be subject to bankruptcy or insolvency proceedings. These additional risks may 
affect the returns on the Notes to investors and/or the ability of investors to realise their 
investment in the Notes prior to their stated maturity. 

As the COVID-19 pandemic continues, there is risk to global growth prospects, which has had 
an impact on the economic growth world-wide. The slowdown in growth or commencement of 
a recession in Egypt or any Reference Jurisdiction will have an adverse effect on the business 
of the Share Issuers and may affect the Guarantor's ability to make any payments under the 
Guarantee or the Hedge Counterparty's ability to establish, maintain or unwind any Hedge 
Position or make any payments thereunder.  

3.4 Emerging Markets 

An investment in the Notes represents an investment in, among other things, emerging markets. 
Emerging markets are located in countries that possess one or more of the following 
characteristics: a certain degree of political instability, relatively unpredictable financial markets 
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and economic growth patterns, a financial market that is still at the development stage or a weak 
economy. Emerging markets investments usually result in higher risks such as event risk, 
political risk, economic risk, credit risk, currency rate risk, market risk, liquidity/gapping risk, 
regulatory/legal risk, trade settlement, processing and clearing risks and Noteholder/shareholder 
risk as further described below. 

3.5 Event Risk 

On occasion, a country or region will suffer an unforeseen catastrophic event (for example, a 
natural disaster) which causes disturbances in its financial markets, including rapid movements 
in its currency, that will affect the value of securities in, or which relate to, that country. 
Furthermore, the value of the Shares, and in turn the Notes, and any income derived therefrom 
can be effected by global events, including events (political, economic or otherwise) occurring 
in a country other than that in which the Notes are issued or traded. 

3.6 Political Risk 

Many emerging markets countries are undergoing, or have undergone in recent years, significant 
political change which has affected government policy, including the regulation of industry, 
trade, financial markets and foreign and domestic investment. The relative inexperience with 
such policies and instability of these political systems leaves them more vulnerable to economic 
hardship, public unrest or popular dissatisfaction with reform, political or diplomatic 
developments, social, ethnic, or religious instability or changes in government policies. For 
Noteholders, the results may include confiscatory taxation, exchange controls, compulsory re-
acquisition, nationalisation or expropriation of foreign-owned assets without adequate 
compensation or the restructuring of particular industry sectors in a way that could adversely 
affect investments in those sectors. Perceived, actual or expected disruptions or changes in 
government policies of a country, by elections or otherwise, can have a major impact on the 
value of the Shares, and in turn the Notes, linked to those countries. 

3.7 Economic Risk 

The economies of emerging markets countries are by their nature in early or intermediate stages 
of economic development, and therefore more vulnerable to rising interest rates and inflation. 
In many countries, high interest and inflation rates are the norm. Rates of economic growth, 
corporate profits, domestic and international flows of funds, external and sovereign debt, 
dependence on international trade, and sensitivity to world commodity prices play key roles in 
economic development, yet vary greatly from country to country. Businesses and governments 
in these countries may have a limited history of operating under market conditions. Emerging 
markets countries are relatively inexperienced in dealing with market conditions and have a 
limited capital base from which to borrow funds and develop their operations and economies. 
In addition, the lack of an economically feasible tax regime in certain countries poses the risk 
of sudden imposition of arbitrary or excessive taxes, which could adversely affect foreign 
Noteholders. All of the above factors, among others, can affect the proper functioning of the 
economy and have a corresponding adverse effect on the performance of the Shares, and in turn 
the Notes, linked to a particular market. 

3.8 Market Risk 

Emerging financial markets generally lack the level of transparency, liquidity, efficiency and 
regulation found in more developed markets.  

Price volatility in many of these markets can be extreme. Price discrepancies can be common 
and market dislocation is not uncommon. Additionally, as news about a country becomes 
available, the financial markets may react with dramatic upswings and/or downswings in prices 
during a very short period of time. These markets might not have regulations governing the 
availability of information and the use or misuse thereof in such markets. It may be difficult to 
employ risk management practices for emerging markets securities, such as forward currency 
exchange contracts, stock options, currency options, stock and stock index options, futures 
contracts and options on futures contracts. 
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3.9 Liquidity/Gapping Risk 

Liquidity of the Shares is directly affected by the supply and demand for those Shares. As the 
supply of potential sellers increases or demand by potential buyers decreases, or both, liquidity 
of the Shares will decrease and bid/offer spreads will generally widen. In respect of certain 
Shares, because of their structure, liquidity is affected by the costs of unwinding an imbedded 
transaction. Natural disasters and economic, social, and political developments in a country can 
cause a decrease in the liquidity of investments related to that country, thereby making it 
difficult to sell promptly at an acceptable price. In addition, the failure, pending failure or 
financial difficulties of an entity holding significant positions in certain types of securities may 
trigger a decrease in the liquidity and value of the same or similar type of securities. The sale of 
certain Shares, including illiquid Shares, could also be subject to legal restrictions in some 
countries. 

3.10 Regulatory/Legal Risk 

In emerging markets countries there is generally less government supervision and regulation of 
business and industry practices, stock exchanges, over-the-counter markets, brokers, dealers and 
issuers than in more developed countries. Whatever supervision is in place may be subject to 
manipulation or control. Many countries have mature legal systems comparable to those of more 
developed countries, while others do not. The process of regulatory and legal reform may not 
proceed at the same pace as market developments, which could result in confusion and 
uncertainty and, ultimately, increased investment risk. Legislation to safeguard the rights of 
private ownership may not yet be in place in certain areas, and there may be the risk of conflict 
among local, regional and national requirements. In certain areas, the laws and regulations 
governing investments in securities may not exist or may be subject to inconsistent or arbitrary 
application or interpretation and may be changed with retroactive effect. Both the independence 
of judicial systems and their immunity from economic, political or nationalistic influences 
remain largely untested in many countries. Judges and courts in many countries are generally 
inexperienced in the areas of business and corporate law. Companies are exposed to the risk that 
legislatures will revise established law solely in response to economic or political pressure or 
popular discontent. There is no guarantee that a foreign Noteholder would obtain a satisfactory 
remedy in local courts in case of a breach of local laws or regulations or a dispute over ownership 
of assets. A Noteholder may also encounter difficulties in pursuing legal remedies or in 
obtaining and enforcing judgments in foreign courts. 

3.11 Trade Settlement, Processing and Clearing 

Many emerging markets have different clearance and settlement procedures from those in more 
developed countries. For many emerging markets securities, there is no central clearing 
mechanism for settling trades and no central depositary or custodian for the safe keeping of 
securities. Custodians can include domestic and foreign custodian banks and depositaries, 
among others. The registration, recordkeeping and transfer of Notes may be carried out 
manually, which may cause delays in the recording of ownership. Where applicable, the Issuer 
will settle trades in emerging markets securities in accordance with the current market practice 
developed for such transactions by the Emerging Markets Traders Association ("EMTA"). 
Otherwise, the transaction may be settled in accordance with the practice and procedure (to the 
extent applicable) of the relevant market. There are times when settlement dates are extended, 
and during the interim the market value of the Shares, and in turn the Notes, may change. 
Moreover, certain markets have experienced times when settlements did not keep pace with the 
volume of transactions resulting in settlement difficulties. Because of the lack of standardised 
settlement procedures, settlement risk is more prominent than in more mature markets. In 
addition, Noteholders may be subject to operational risks in the event that Noteholders do not 
have in place appropriate internal systems and controls to monitor the various risks, funding and 
other requirements to which Noteholders may be subject by virtue of their activities with respect 
to emerging market securities.  

3.12 Noteholder/Shareholder Risk 

Rules in emerging markets countries regulating the ownership and corporate governance of 
companies (for example, requiring the disclosure of large ownership positions or governing 



Risk Factors 

 

 14  
 
 

tender offers by majority shareholders) may not exist or may provide little protection to 
Noteholders and shareholders. Disclosure and reporting requirements in general, from annual 
and quarterly reports to prospectus content and delivery, may be minimal or non-existent. 
Antifraud and insider trading law is generally not very developed in many emerging markets 
countries. There may be no prohibitions or restrictions under local law on the ability of 
management to terminate existing business operations, sell or dispose of assets, or otherwise 
materially affect the value of the company without the consent of its shareholders. Anti-dilution 
protection may also be very limited. There may be no fiduciary duty, or a limited concept of 
fiduciary duty, on the part of management or the directors to the company or to the shareholders 
as a whole or minority shareholders. Remedies for violations of shareholders' rights may be 
difficult to obtain because of the absence of a system of derivative or class action litigation. 

The amount payable under the Notes may be reduced if the value of the proceeds of the Issuer's 
hedging arrangements are reduced as a result of various matters relating to risks connected with 
the relevant country or countries specified as Reference Jurisdictions. 

3.13 Particular risks in relation to Notes Linked to Saudi Shares  

The Capital Market Authority regulates share dealing and associated activities in the Kingdom 
of Saudi Arabia. Pursuant to the Capital Market Authority Board of Commissioners' resolution 
dated 07/08/1439H corresponding to 23/04/2018G, which amends the Capital Market Authority 
Board of Commissioners' resolution dated 20/03/1438H corresponding to 19/12/2016G 
regarding the approval for Authorised Persons to enter into Swap Agreements (as amended from 
time to time) (the "CMA Resolution"), an Authorised Person may enter into a swap agreement 
("Swap Agreement") with the Issuer (the "Foreign Counterparty") only for the benefit of non-
resident foreign investors (each, an "Ultimate Beneficiary") to transfer the economic benefits 
of shares listed on the Saudi Stock Exchange (Tadawul) to such Ultimate Beneficiaries through 
swap transactions executed as contemplated by such Swap Agreement, subject to the conditions 
and requirements set out in the CMA Resolution. A copy of the CMA Resolution may be 
obtained on request from the Dealer.  

In relation to Notes Linked to Saudi Shares, the Issuer may (but shall be under no obligation 
under the Notes to) enter into a Swap Agreement with the Authorised Person to establish a 
Hedge Position in respect of the Issuer's obligations under such Notes. The Authorised Person, 
who is the Hedge Counterparty under the Notes, shall hold the relevant Shares underlying such 
Notes. The Hedge Position is for the benefit of the Issuer, and not for the benefit of any holder 
of Notes Linked to Saudi Shares. The Swap Agreement and the Hedge Position are subject to 
the terms of the CMA Resolution, including that the Authorised Person: 

(a) may not enter into any Swap Agreement or execute any related swap transaction where 
the Ultimate Beneficiary (i) is a party prohibited under the terms of section 3 of the CMA 
Resolution from entering into or executing a Swap Agreement or related swap 
transaction, or (ii) does not satisfy the limitations on the shareholdings of the Ultimate 
Beneficiary under the terms of section 13 of the CMA Resolution; and 

(b) would be required to (among other things) (a) provide to the Capital Market Authority 
certain information on the Ultimate Beneficiaries as the Capital Market Authority may 
request from time to time and (b) implement all orders imposed by the Capital Market 
Authority which could include any type of limitations, restrictions, or requirements in 
relation to the Swap Agreement, the Foreign Counterparty or any Ultimate Beneficiary, 
including an order to terminate the Swap Agreement.  

In relation to any Notes Linked to Saudi Shares, in order to ensure (a) compliance by the 
Authorised Person with the CMA Resolution in relation to any Hedge Position established 
pursuant to the Swap Agreement entered into between the Authorised Person and the Issuer 
and/or (b) that there is no mis-match between (i) the terms of any such Hedge Position (including 
such terms may be adjusted and/or such Hedge Position may be terminated by order of the 
Capital Market Authority at any time) and (ii) the terms of such Notes (and, as noted above, any 
such Hedge Position is for the benefit of the Issuer, and not for the benefit of any holder of 
Notes Linked to Saudi Shares): 
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(i) each purchaser of Notes Linked to Saudi Shares will be required to make the additional 
disclosures and the authorisations, representations, confirmations and undertakings in a 
letter substantially in the form set out in the section entitled "Form of Noteholder Letter" 
below to the Issuer, the Guarantor, the Dealer, the Calculation Agent and the Authorised 
Person including but not limited to the purchaser: 

(A) undertaking to provide to, and authorising, the Authorised Person to disclose to 
the Capital Market Authority information relating to any Swap Agreement, Hedge 
Position and/or any information the Capital Market Authority may otherwise 
request from time to time;  

(B) authorising the Authorised Person to include its name, nationality and 
identification information in the Authorised Person's investment portfolio with 
the Securities Depository Centre (Edaa);  

(C) representing that it is a "non-resident foreign investor" for the purposes of the 
CMA Resolution, that it is not a foreign investor as described in section 3 of the 
CMA Resolution and that it meets certain legislative and other limitations of 
foreign ownership in the Shares underlying the Notes as described in section 13 
of the CMA Resolution; and 

(D) undertaking to comply with the laws relating to the prevention and detection of 
money laundering as they apply to it and to comply with all laws and regulations 
applicable to it regarding trading in any share or security of an entity whose shares 
are listed on the Tadawul (such entity being a "Tadawul Issuer"), including not 
acting on the basis of non-public information about such Tadawul Issuer; 

(ii) the terms and conditions of Notes Linked to Saudi Shares shall include that the 
Calculation Agent under the Notes may in its sole and absolute discretion adjust the terms 
and conditions of the Notes and/or cause the early redemption of the Notes (in each case, 
without the consent of Noteholders), as applicable, in order to ensure compliance with 
any limitations or other requirements that the Capital Market Authority may impose from 
time to time. See Condition 6 (Adjustments and Additional Redemption Events) of 
section entitled "Terms and Conditions of the Notes";  

(iii) any adjustment and/or early redemption of Notes Linked to Saudi Shares (as described 
in the paragraph above) may result in the loss of some or all of a purchaser's investment; 
and 

(iv) the Authorised Person holding the relevant Shares as the Issuer's Hedge Position under 
the Notes is prohibited from exercising voting rights in respect of such Shares (and, for 
the avoidance of doubt, as set out under paragraph 2.3 (No Voting Rights) above, 
Noteholders will not have any voting rights in respect of the Shares, or any other Shares). 

See the sections entitled "Terms and Conditions of the Notes" and "Form of Noteholder Letter". 

4. Conflicts of Interest 

4.1 The Issuer and the Guarantor are subject to various potential conflicts of interest in respect 
of the Notes, which could have an adverse effect on the Notes. 

(a) The Issuer and the Guarantor may take positions in or deal with the Share(s) 

In the ordinary course of their business, whether or not there will be any secondary market 
making activities, the Issuer and the Guarantor may effect transactions for their own account or 
for the account of their customers and hold long or short positions in the Share(s). In addition, 
in connection with the offering of Notes, the Issuer and the Guarantor may enter into one or 
more hedging transactions with respect to the Share(s). In connection with such hedging or 
market-making activities or with respect to proprietary or other trading activities by the Issuer 
and the Guarantor, the Issuer and the Guarantor may enter into transactions in the Shares which 
may adversely (or positively) affect price, liquidity or value of the relevant Notes and which 
could therefore be adverse to the interests of the relevant holders.   
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(b) The Calculation Agent, which will generally be an affiliate of the Guarantor, has broad 
discretionary powers which may be exercised against the interest of the holders 

As the Calculation Agent will generally be an affiliate of the Guarantor, potential conflicts of 
interest may exist between the Calculation Agent and the holders, including with respect to the 
exercise of the very broad discretionary powers of the Calculation Agent. For example, the 
Calculation Agent has the authority (i) to determine whether certain specified events and/or 
matters so specified in the conditions relating to a series of Notes have occurred, (ii) to determine 
any resulting adjustments and calculations or substitutions or early redemption as described in 
such conditions, and (iii) to determine the price of the underlying Shares upon the occurrence 
of any market disruption events as defined in the conditions of the Notes or due to illiquidity of 
the underlying Shares generally. Prospective purchasers should be aware that any determination 
made by the Calculation Agent may have an impact on the value and financial return of the 
Notes. Any such discretion exercised by, or any calculation made by, the Calculation Agent (in 
the absence of manifest or proven error) shall be binding on the Issuer and all holders, and shall 
be exercised by the Calculation Agent in its sole and absolute discretion (where such manner is 
specifically provided in the relevant terms and conditions, otherwise the Calculation Agent shall 
exercise its discretion in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner), taking into 
account any market factors and other factors as the Calculation Agent or such other person 
deems relevant including, without limitation, any Hedge Position (including, without limitation, 
any impact on such position, the ability to retain such position and the cost of unwinding any 
such position). 

(c) EFG-Hermes entities may have confidential information relating to the Share(s) and the Notes 

Certain affiliates of the Issuer and the Guarantor (the "EFG-Hermes" or "Group") may from 
time to time, by virtue of their status as underwriter, adviser or otherwise, possess or have access 
to information relating to the Notes and the Share(s) and any derivative Notes referencing them. 
Such entities will not be obliged to disclose any such information to a purchaser of the Notes. 

4.2 Fees 

In connection with the placement and distribution of the Notes, the Issuer may pay to distributors 
of Notes (which may include affiliates of the Issuer) such commissions or fees as such parties 
may agree (including in the form of a discount to the purchase price of such Notes). 

5. US Securities Regulation and Taxation  

5.1 Regulation S  

The notes are not suitable investments for US Persons.  Further, the Notes and the Guarantee 
thereof may not be offered, sold or delivered within the United States or to, or for the account 
or benefit of, a US Person ("US Person" means, save as otherwise provided, a person who is 
either a "US person" as defined in Regulation S or a "United States person" as defined in the US 
Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the "Code") and US Treasury regulations thereunder).  

5.2 Forced Transfer  

The Notes are subject to certain transfer restrictions and can be transferred only to certain 
transferees.  See the sections entitled "Subscription and Sale", "Transfer Restrictions", "Terms 
and Conditions of the Notes – "ERISA Transfer Restrictions" and "Certain ERISA 
Considerations".  Such restrictions on the transfer of the Notes may further limit their liquidity. 

In particular, the Notes may not be offered, sold, pledged or otherwise transferred to a person 
who is, or is acting for the account or benefit of, a "US person" (as defined in Regulation S 
under the Securities Act) or a "United States Person" (as defined in the US Internal Revenue 
Code of 1986, as amended, and US Treasury regulations thereunder) or who is located in the 
United States (any such person, a "Non-Permitted US Holder").  If there is any transfer of 
Notes, or any interest therein, to a Non-Permitted US Holder, the Issuer will have the right to 
direct such Non-Permitted US Holder to transfer the Notes, or any interest therein, to a person 
who is not a Non-Permitted US Holder (and who meets other relevant criteria) within 14 days 
following receipt of notice of such direction.  If such Non-Permitted US Holder fails to sell or 



Risk Factors 

 

 17  
 
 

transfer the relevant Notes, or interest therein, within such period, the Issuer may at its discretion 
cause such Notes, or interest therein, to be sold to a purchaser selected by the Issuer that is not 
a Non-Permitted US Holder (and who meets other relevant criteria), on terms as the Issuer may 
choose, subject to the transfer restrictions set out herein, and, pending such transfer, no further 
payments will be made in respect of the Notes. 

In addition, if the Issuer determines at any time that any holder of the Notes has made or been 
deemed to have made an ERISA related representation that is false or misleading (any such 
person, a "Non-Permitted ERISA Holder"), the Issuer shall direct such holder to sell or 
transfer its Notes to a person who is not a Non-Permitted ERISA Holder within 14 days 
following receipt of notice of such direction.  If such Non-Permitted ERISA Holder fails to sell 
or transfer its Notes within such period, the Issuer shall cause such Notes to be sold to a 
purchaser selected by the Issuer that certifies to the Issuer that such purchaser is not a Non-
Permitted ERISA Holder, on such terms as the Issuer may choose, subject to the transfer 
restrictions set out herein, and, pending such transfer, no further payments will be made in 
respect of such Notes.  The terms and conditions of any such sale shall be determined in the sole 
and absolute discretion of the Issuer and the Issuer shall not be liable to any person having an 
interest in the Notes sold as a result of any such sale or the exercise of such discretion.  

5.3 Taxation of the Issuer  

The Directors intend to conduct the affairs of the Issuer in such a manner as to minimise, so far 
as they consider reasonably practicable, taxation suffered by the Issuer. This will include 
conducting the affairs of the Issuer so that, to the extent that it is within the capacity of the 
Directors and the Issuer, the Issuer is at all times resident in the British Virgin Islands for 
taxation purposes.  There can be no assurance, however, that the Issuer's income will not become 
subject to net income or withholding taxes in the United States or other countries as a result of 
unanticipated activities by the Issuer, changes in law, contrary conclusions by relevant tax 
authorities or other causes. 

5.4 FATCA — Considerations for Holders  

Under sections 1471-1474 of the Code and regulations and guidance issued thereunder, an 
agreement with the US Internal Revenue Service pursuant to such sections of the Code, or an 
intergovernmental agreement between the United States and another jurisdiction in furtherance 
of such sections of the Code (including any non-US laws implementing such an 
intergovernmental agreement) (collectively, "FATCA"), certain payments made to the Issuer or 
the Guarantor may be subject to a 30 per cent. withholding tax if the Issuer, the Guarantor or 
certain intermediaries fail to meet the requirements under FATCA.  In order to be treated as 
FATCA compliant, the Issuer anticipates that it will comply with the intergovernmental 
agreement (the "US IGA") between the British Virgin Islands and the United States in respect 
of FATCA, including any legislation implementing the IGA, and the Guarantor may enter into 
an agreement with the US Internal Revenue Service. Under FATCA, the Issuer or Guarantor 
may be required to, among other things, obtain certain identifying information about Holders 
and beneficial owners of Notes and certain of their direct and indirect owners, and to withhold 
up to 30 per cent. of payments, including principal, made to (i) a Holder or beneficial owner of 
a Note that fails to comply with reasonable requests for information that will help enable the 
Issuer or the Guarantor to comply with its reporting requirements under FATCA (or, if 
applicable, that fails to provide a waiver of law that prohibits the disclosure of such information 
to a taxing authority) or (ii) a Holder or beneficial owner that is a "foreign financial institution" 
as defined under FATCA and that is not FATCA compliant, unless such Holder or beneficial 
owner is exempted or otherwise deemed to be compliant.  In addition, a beneficial owner of 
Notes that holds a Note through a financial institution, broker, agent or other intermediary 
(collectively, "Intermediaries") should note that payments made to, or by, such an Intermediary 
in respect of the Notes may be subject to withholding if a Holder, beneficial owner or 
Intermediary is not FATCA compliant.  Further, certain non-compliant Holders and beneficial 
owners may be subject to the forced sale or redemption of their Notes as described in Condition 
2(g) (FATCA – Application to Holders) in the "Terms and Conditions". 

Prospective investors should read section 3 (FATCA Considerations for Holders) under the 
section entitled "Taxation". 
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DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE 

These Base Listing Particulars should be read and construed in conjunction with the following documents 
which shall be deemed to be incorporated in, and form part of, these Base Listing Particulars, save that 
any statement contained in a document which is deemed to be incorporated by reference herein, shall be 
deemed to be modified or superseded for the purpose of these Base Listing Particulars to the extent that 
a statement contained herein modifies or supersedes such earlier statement (whether expressly, by 
implication or otherwise). Any statement so modified or superseded shall not be deemed, except as so 
modified or superseded, to constitute a part of these Base Listing Particulars. 

The financial statements of the Guarantor were prepared by the management in accordance with Egyptian 
Accounting Standards ("EAS") and in light of prevailing Egyptian laws. Consequently, there may be 
material differences to the consolidated financial statements of the Guarantor had another internationally-
recognised standard, such as International Financial Reporting Standards, been applied. KPMG Hazem 
Hassan has conducted a review in accordance with Egyptian Standard on Review Engagements 2410: 
"Limited Review of Interim Financial Statements Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity". 

1. The audited financial statements of the Issuer for the year ended 31 
December 2019, the key sections of which are: 

Page number* 

 (i) Independent auditors' report Pages 1-4 

 (ii) Statement of financial position Page 5 

 (iii) Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income Page 6 

 (iv) Statement of changes in equity Page 7 

 (v) Statement of cash flows Page 8 

 (vi) Notes to the financial statements Pages 9-23 

2. The audited financial statements of the Issuer for the year ended 31 
December 2018, the key sections of which are: 

 

 (i) Independent auditors' report Pages 1-4 

 (ii) Statement of financial position Page 5 

 (iii) Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income Page 6 

 (iv) Statement of changes in equity Page 7 

 (v) Statement of cash flows Page 8 

 (vi) Notes to the financial statements Pages 9-26 

3. The condensed interim financial statements for the Issuer for the nine-
month period ending 30 September 2020, the key sections of which are: 

 

 (i) Independent auditors' report on review of condensed interim 
financial information 

Pages 1-2 

 (ii) Condensed interim statement of financial position Page 3 

 (iii) Condensed interim statements of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income (un-audited) 

Page 4 

 (iv) Condensed interim statement on changes in equity (un-audited) Page 5 

 (v) Condensed interim statement of cash flows (un-audited) Page 6 
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 (vi) Notes to the condensed interim financial statements (un-audited) Pages 7-10 

4. The consolidated interim financial statements for the Issuer for the nine-
month period ending 30 September 2019, the key sections of which are: 

 

 (i) Independent auditors' report on review of condensed interim 
financial information 

Pages 1-2 

 (ii) Condensed interim statement of financial position Page 3 

 (iii) Condensed interim statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income (un-audited) 

Page 4 

 (iv) Condensed interim statement on changes in equity (un-audited) Page 5 

 (v) Condensed interim statement of cash flows (un-audited) Page 6 

 (vi) Notes to the condensed interim financial statements (un-audited) Pages 7-10 

5. The audited consolidated financial statements of the Guarantor for the year 
ended 31 December 2019, the key sections of which are: 

 

 (i) Auditors' report   

 (ii) Separate statement of financial position Page 1 

 (iii) Separate income statement Page 2 

 (iv) Separate statement of comprehensive income Page 3 

 (v) Separate statement of changes in equity Page 4 

 (vi) Separate statement of cash flows Page 5 

 (vii) Notes to the separate financial statements Pages 6-24 

 (viii) Significant accounting policies applied Pages 25-40 

6. The audited consolidated financial statements of the Guarantor for the year 
ended 31 December 2018, the key sections of which are: 

 

 (i) Auditors' report   

 (ii) Consolidated statement of financial position Page 1 

 (iii) Consolidated income statement Page 2 

 (iv) Consolidated statement of comprehensive income Page 3 

 (v) Consolidated statement of changes in equity Page 4 

 (vi) Consolidated statement of cash flows Page 5 

 (vii) Notes to the consolidated financial statements Pages 6-32 

 (viii) Significant accounting policies applied Pages 33-54 

7. The consolidated interim financial statements for the Guarantor for the nine-
month period ending 30 September 2020, the key sections of which are:  

 

 (i) Review report   

 (ii) Consolidated statement of financial position Page 1 
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 (iii) Consolidated income statement Page 2 

 (iv) Consolidated statement of comprehensive income Page 3 

 (v) Consolidated statement of changes in equity Page 4 

 (vi) Consolidated statement of cash flows Page 5 

 (vii) Notes to the consolidated financial statements Pages 6-33 

 (viii) Significant accounting policies applied Pages 34-70 

8. The consolidated interim financial statements for the Guarantor for the nine-
month period ending 30 September 2019, the key sections of which are: 

 

 (i) Review Report  

 (ii) Consolidated statement of financial position Page 1 

 (iii) Consolidated income statement Page 2 

 (iv) Consolidated statement of comprehensive income Page 3 

 (v) Consolidated statement of changes in equity Page 4 

 (vi) Consolidated statement of cash flows Page 5 

 (vii) Notes to the consolidated financial statements Pages 6-31 

 (viii) Significant accounting policies applied Pages 32-51 

9. The section "Terms and Conditions of the Notes" from the following 
offering documents relating to the Programme 

 

 (i) Base Listing Particulars dated 27 January 2014 Pages 29-53 

 (ii) Base Listing Particulars dated 27 January 2015 Pages 29-53 

 (iii) Base Listing Particulars dated 1 February 2016 Pages 29-54 

 (iv) Base Listing Particulars dated 1 February 2017 Pages 30-55 

 (v) Base Listing Particulars dated 5 February 2018 Pages 24-50 

 (vi) Base Listing Particulars dated 5 February 2019 Pages 24-50 

 (vii) Base Listing Particulars dated 4 February 2020 Pages 23-49 

*The page numbers referenced above relate to the order in which the pages appear in the PDF version of 
such document. 

Investors who have not previously reviewed the information contained in the above documents should 
do so in connection with their evaluation of the Notes. Any statement contained in a document, all or the 
relevant portion of which is incorporated by reference into these Base Listing Particulars, shall be deemed 
to be modified or superseded for the purpose of these Base Listing Particulars to the extent that a 
statement contained in these Base Listing Particulars or in any supplement to these Base Listing 
Particulars, including any documents incorporated therein by reference, modifies or supersedes such 
earlier statement.  

Copies of these Base Listing Particulars and the documents incorporated herein (and any future filings 
or financial statements published by the Issuer and Guarantor) may be inspected in physical or electronic 
form at the registered offices of the Issuer and the Guarantor for so long as the Programme and these 
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Base Listing Particulars remain in effect or any Notes shall be outstanding during normal business hours 
on any business day (except Fridays, Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays). 
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USE OF PROCEEDS 

The new proceeds from each issue of Notes will be used by the Issuer to hedge the obligations of the 
Issuer under the Notes.   
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TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE NOTES 

The following (other than any provisions set out in italicised text) are the Terms and Conditions of the 
Notes which will be incorporated by reference into each Global Note or each Global Certificate, as the 
case may be, and each definitive Note, in the latter case only if permitted by the rules of the relevant 
stock exchange or other relevant authority (if any) and agreed by the Issuer and the Dealer at the time 
of issue but, if not so permitted and agreed, such definitive Note will have endorsed thereon or attached 
thereto the following Terms and Conditions.  The applicable Pricing Supplement in relation to any 
Tranche of Notes will complete the following Terms and Conditions for the purpose of such Notes.  The 
applicable Pricing Supplement will be endorsed upon, or attached to, the applicable Global Note or 
Global Certificate, as the case may be, and each definitive Note.  Reference should be made to the "Form 
of Pricing Supplement for Notes" for a description of the content of a Pricing Supplement which will 
include the definitions of certain terms used in the following Terms and Conditions and/or will specify 
which of such terms are to apply in relation to the relevant Notes.   

1. Introduction 

(a) Programme: EFG-Hermes MENA Securities Limited (the "Issuer") has established a 
programme (the "Programme") for the issuance of Notes guaranteed by EFG-Hermes Holding 
S.A.E. (the "Guarantor"). 

(b) Notes: References herein to the "Notes" shall be references to the Notes of this Series and shall 
mean: 

(i) in relation to any Notes in bearer form ("Bearer Notes") represented by a temporary or 
permanent global Note (each, a "Global Note"), units of the lowest Specified 
Denomination in the Specified Currency; 

(ii) any Global Note; 

(iii) any definitive Bearer Notes issued in exchange for a Global Note; 

(iv) in relation to any Notes in registered form ("Registered Notes") represented by a 
permanent Global Certificate (a "Global Certificate"), units of the lowest Specified 
Denomination in the Specified Currency; 

(v) any Global Certificate; and 

(vi) any definitive Registered Notes issued in exchange for a Global Certificate. 

(c) Pricing Supplement: Notes issued under the Programme are issued in series (each, a "Series") 
and each Series may comprise one or more tranches (each, a "Tranche") of Notes. Each Tranche 
is the subject of a pricing supplement (the "Pricing Supplement") which completes these Terms 
and Conditions of the Notes (the "General Terms and Conditions").  The terms and conditions 
applicable to any particular Tranche of Notes are these General Terms and Conditions, as 
completed by the applicable Pricing Supplement (the General Terms and Conditions as so 
completed by the applicable Pricing Supplement in relation to a particular Tranche of Notes, the 
"Conditions" of such Notes). In the event of any inconsistency between these Conditions and 
the applicable Pricing Supplement, the applicable Pricing Supplement will prevail.  In the event 
of inconsistency between the Agency Agreement and the applicable Pricing Supplement, the 
applicable Pricing Supplement will prevail. References to the "applicable Pricing 
Supplement" or to the "relevant Pricing Supplement" are to the Pricing Supplement (or the 
relevant provisions thereof) attached to or endorsed on this Note. 

(d) Agency Agreement: The Notes are issued pursuant to an amended and restated agency agreement 
dated on or about 4 February 2021 as amended and/or supplemented and/or replaced under the 
Programme as at the issue date specified in the Pricing Supplement (the "Agency Agreement") 
between the Issuer, Deutsche Bank AG, London Branch as fiscal agent, Deutsche Bank 
Luxembourg S.A. as registrar and transfer agent and the other parties named in it. The fiscal 
agent, the registrar, the transfer agent and the calculation agent(s) for the time being (if any) are 
referred to below respectively as the "Fiscal Agent" (or the "Paying Agent"), the "Registrar", 
the "Transfer Agent", and the "Calculation Agent(s)" (together the "Agents").  
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(e) Deed of Covenant: The Notes have the benefit of a deed of covenant dated 4 February 2021 as 
amended and/or supplemented and/or replaced under the Programme as at the Issue Date (the 
"Deed of Covenant").   

(f) Deed of Guarantee: The Notes are the subject of a deed of guarantee dated 4 February 2021 as 
amended and/or supplemented and/or replaced under the Programme as at the Issue Date (the 
"Deed of Guarantee") entered into by the Guarantor.  

(g) Noteholders: Subject as provided in Conditions 2(b)(i) and 2(b)(iv) below, any reference to 
"Noteholder(s)" or "holder(s)" in relation to any Notes shall mean (in the case of Bearer Notes) 
the holders of the Notes and (in the case of Registered Notes) the persons in whose names the 
Notes are registered and shall, in relation to any Notes represented by a Global Note or a Global 
Certificate, as the case may be, be construed as provided below.  

(h) Summaries: Certain provisions of these Conditions are summaries of the Agency Agreement, 
Deed of Covenant and the Deed of Guarantee and are subject to their detailed provisions. The 
Noteholders are bound by and are deemed to have notice of all of the provisions of the Agency 
Agreement, Deed of Covenant and the Deed of Guarantee applicable to them. Copies of the 
Agency Agreement, the Deed of Covenant and the Deed of Guarantee are available for 
inspection at the registered offices of each of the Agents, Issuer and Guarantor for so long as 
the Programme and these Base Listing Particulars remain in effect or any Notes shall be 
outstanding during normal business hours on any business day (except Fridays, Saturdays, 
Sundays and legal holidays). In addition, electronic copies of the Agency Agreement, the Deed 
of Covenant and the Deed of Guarantee may be obtained via electronic mail from any of the 
Fiscal Agent, the Paying Agent, the Registrar and the Transfer Agent upon request and provision 
of satisfactory proof of holding or beneficial interest in the relevant Notes to such Agents. 

2. Form, Denomination and Title 

(a) Form and Denomination:  The Notes are in bearer form or in registered form as specified in the 
applicable Pricing Supplement and, in the case of definitive Notes, serially numbered, in the 
Specified Currency and the Specified Denomination(s). Notes of one Specified Denomination 
may not be exchanged for Notes of another Specified Denomination. 

(b) Transfer and Title: 

(i) Bearer Notes and Registered Notes 

Subject as set out in Condition 2(b)(iv) below, title to the Bearer Notes will pass by 
delivery and in accordance with applicable law, and title to the Registered Notes will 
pass upon registration of transfers in accordance with the Conditions of the Notes and 
the provisions of the Agency Agreement.  Subject as set out below, the bearer of any 
Bearer Note and the registered holder of any Registered Note will (except as otherwise 
required by law or ordered by a court of competent jurisdiction or an official authority) 
be treated as the absolute owner thereof (whether or not overdue and notwithstanding 
any notice of ownership or writing thereon or notice of any previous loss or theft thereof) 
for all purposes. 

(ii) Global Notes 

If the Notes are Bearer Notes, the Notes will (as indicated in the applicable Pricing 
Supplement) either (a) initially be represented by a temporary global note (a 
"Temporary Global Note"), or (b) be represented by a permanent global note (a 
"Permanent Global Note"), which, in each case, will be deposited on the Issue Date 
with a common depositary on behalf of Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V. ("Euroclear") and 
Clearstream Banking, S.A. ("Clearstream, Luxembourg").  Beneficial interests in a 
Temporary Global Note will be exchangeable (as specified in the applicable Pricing 
Supplement) in whole or in part (free of charge) upon a request as described therein for 
beneficial interests in a Permanent Global Note on or after the date (the "Exchange 
Date") which is 40 days after the later of (i) the relevant issue date and (ii) the completion 
of the offering, and upon certification as to non-US beneficial ownership as required by 
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US Treasury regulations, provided that no such certification will be required if one has 
been provided prior to the Exchange Date in accordance with Condition 8(b). 

(iii) Registered Notes  

Registered Notes will be represented by a Global Certificate registered in the name of a 
nominee for, and deposited with a common depositary on behalf of, Euroclear and 
Clearstream, Luxembourg.  

(iv) Global Notes and Global Certificates 

For so long as any of the Notes is represented by a Global Note or a Global Certificate, 
as the case may be, held on behalf of Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg, a person 
(other than Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg) who is for the time being shown in 
the records of Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg as the holder of a particular 
principal amount of such Notes (in which regard any certificate or document issued by 
Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg as to the principal amount of such Notes 
standing to the account of any person shall be conclusive and binding for all purposes 
save in the case of manifest error or proven error) shall be treated by the Issuer, the 
Guarantor and the Agents as the holder of such principal amount of such Notes for all 
purposes other than with respect to the payment of principal or interest (if any) or any 
Additional Amount on such Notes, for which purpose (X) (if the Notes are Bearer Notes) 
the bearer or (Y) (if the Notes are Registered Notes) the common depositary or its 
nominee in respect of the relevant Registered Notes, shall be treated by the Issuer, the 
Guarantor and any Agent as the holder of such principal amount of such Notes in 
accordance with and subject to the terms of the Global Note, or as the case may be, 
Global Certificate; and the expressions "Noteholder" and "holder of Notes" and related 
expressions shall be construed accordingly.  Notes which are represented by a Global 
Note or a Global Certificate, as the case may be, will be transferred only in accordance 
with the rules and procedures for the time being of Euroclear and Clearstream, 
Luxembourg as the case may be.  References to Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg 
shall, wherever the context so permits, be deemed to include a reference to any additional 
or alternative clearing system. 

(v) Exchange of Global Notes and Global Certificates for Definitive Notes 

(A) A Global Note will be exchangeable (free of charge), in whole but not in part, for 
definitive Bearer Notes only upon (as indicated in the applicable Pricing 
Supplement) the occurrence of an Exchange Event.  For these purposes, 
"Exchange Event" shall mean that (i) an Event of Default has occurred and is 
continuing or (ii) the Issuer has been notified by the Fiscal Agent that both 
Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg have been closed for business for a 
continuous period of 14 days (other than by reason of holiday, statutory or 
otherwise) or have announced an intention permanently to cease business or have 
in fact done so. 

(B) A Global Certificate will be exchangeable (free of charge), in whole but not in 
part, for a definitive Registered Note only upon the occurrence of an Exchange 
Event.  For these purposes, "Exchange Event" shall mean that (i) an Event of 
Default has occurred and is continuing or (ii) the Issuer has been notified by the 
Fiscal Agent that both Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg have or been 
closed for business for a continuous period of 14 days (other than by reason of 
holiday, statutory or otherwise) or have announced an intention permanently to 
cease business or have in fact done so. 

(c) Registration:  The Issuer will cause to be kept at the specified office of the Registrar, outside 
the United Kingdom, for the time being a register (the "Register") on which shall be entered 
the names and addresses of the holders from time to time of the Registered Notes, together with 
the particulars of the Registered Notes held by them respectively and of all transfers of 
Registered Notes.  The Issuer will procure that, as soon as practicable after the Issue Date, the 
Register is duly made up in respect of the subscribers of the Registered Notes and certificates 
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evidencing the Registered Notes will be despatched.  The Issuer has initially appointed the 
Registrar acting through its specified office.  

(d) Exchange of Bearer Notes and Registered Notes: Registered Notes may not be exchanged for 
Bearer Notes and Bearer Notes may not be exchanged for Registered Notes. 

(e) Exchange and Transfer of Registered Notes:  Registered Notes in definitive form may, subject 
to Condition 1(b)(iv) and the provisions of the Agency Agreement, be transferred by the 
registered holder free of and without regard to any set-off, counterclaim or equities between the 
Issuer and the first or any subsequent registered holder of such Notes, in whole or in part (being 
the denomination of the Notes given in the Pricing Supplement or an integral multiple thereof), 
by delivery of the relevant certificate or certificates evidencing ownership of the Note(s) to the 
Registrar at its specified office together with the form of transfer in writing endorsed thereon 
duly completed and signed and upon compliance with such reasonable requirements as the 
Issuer and the Registrar, may prescribe without charge but upon payment of any taxes, duties 
and other governmental charges in respect of such transfer.  No transfer of a Registered Note 
shall be recognised by the Issuer unless entered on the Register.  A Registered Note may be 
registered only in the name of, and transferred only to, a named person (or persons, not 
exceeding four in number) and neither the Registrar will accept transfers of Registered Notes to 
"bearer".  The Registrar will within 14 days of any duly made request to register the transfer of 
a Registered Note enter the transferee in the Register and procure the authentication and delivery 
by the Fiscal Agent or itself deliver a Registered Note certificate to the transferee (and, in the 
case of transfer of part only of a Registered Note, a Registered Note certificate for the 
untransferred balance to the transferor) at the specified office of the Registrar or (at the risk and, 
if mailed at the request of the transferee or, as appropriate, transferor otherwise than by ordinary 
uninsured mail, expense of the transferee or, as appropriate, transferor) mail the Registered Note 
certificate to such address as the transferee (or, as appropriate, the transferor) may request or, 
alternatively, in the case of transfers effected through the stock exchange (if any) or market (if 
any) on which the Issuer has agreed to maintain a listing or admission to trading of the Notes, 
will deliver the Registered Note certificate in accordance with the normal procedures and 
systems of such exchange or market. In the case of the transfer of only part of a Registered Note, 
a new Registered Note in respect of the balance of the Registered Note not transferred will be 
delivered (as described above) to, and at the risk of, the transferor. 

(f) Forced Transfer of Certain Notes: The Notes may not be offered, sold, pledged or otherwise 
transferred to a person who is, or is acting for the account or benefit of, a "US person" (as 
defined in Regulation S under the Securities Act) or a "United States Person" (as defined in the 
US Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and US Treasury regulations thereunder) or 
who is located in the United States (any such person, a "Non-Permitted US Holder").  If there 
is any transfer of Notes, or any interest therein, to a Non-Permitted US Holder, the Issuer will 
have the right to direct such Non-Permitted US Holder to transfer the Notes, or any interest 
therein, to a person who is not a Non-Permitted US Holder (and who meets other relevant 
criteria) within 14 days following receipt of notice of such direction.  If such Non-Permitted US 
Holder fails to sell or transfer the relevant Notes, or interest therein, within such period, the 
Issuer may at its discretion cause such Notes, or interest therein, to be sold to a purchaser 
selected by the Issuer that is not a Non-Permitted US Holder (and who meets other relevant 
criteria), on terms as the Issuer may choose, subject to the transfer restrictions set out herein, 
and, pending such transfer, no further payments will be made in respect of the Notes.  In 
addition, if the Issuer determines at any time that any holder of the Notes has made or been 
deemed to have made an ERISA related representation that is false or misleading (any such 
person, a "Non-Permitted ERISA Holder"), the Issuer shall direct such holder to sell or 
transfer its Notes to a person who is not a Non-Permitted ERISA Holder within 14 days 
following receipt of notice of such direction.  If such Non-Permitted ERISA Holder fails to sell 
or transfer its Notes within such period, the Issuer shall cause such Notes to be sold to a 
purchaser selected by the Issuer that certifies to the Issuer that such purchaser is not a Non-
Permitted ERISA Holder, on such terms as the Issuer may choose, subject to the transfer 
restrictions set out herein, and, pending such transfer, no further payments will be made in 
respect of such Notes.  In the case of a forced transfer of any Notes held by either a Non-
Permitted US Holder or a Non-Permitted ERISA Holder (together, the "Non-Permitted 
Holders"), the Issuer may select the purchaser by soliciting one or more bids from one or more 
brokers or other market professionals that regularly deal in securities similar to such Notes and 
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selling such Notes to the highest such bidder.  However, the Issuer may select a purchaser by 
any other means determined by it in its sole and absolute discretion.  Each Noteholder and each 
other Person in the chain of title from the permitted Noteholder to the Non-Permitted Holder by 
its acceptance of an interest in such Notes agrees to co-operate with the Issuer to effect such 
transfers. The proceeds of such sale, net of any commissions, expenses and taxes due in 
connection with such sale shall be remitted to the selling Noteholder.  The terms and conditions 
of any sale hereunder shall be determined in the sole and absolute discretion of the Issuer, 
subject to the transfer restrictions set out herein, and the Issuer shall not be liable to any person 
having an interest in the Notes sold as a result of any such sale or the exercise of such discretion.  
Furthermore, the Issuer shall not honour a transfer of beneficial interests in any Note to any 
person who is a Non-Permitted Holder.  

(g) FATCA — Application to Holders 

Each holder of a Note (for itself and for any person for whom it holds an interest in a Note) 
acknowledges and agrees to all of the following. FATCA could impose withholding taxes on 
certain payments made to the Issuer on its assets and also on payments made by the Issuer on 
the Notes.  Payments received by the Issuer may be subject to a withholding tax of 30 per cent. 
if the Issuer or certain intermediaries fail to meet the requirements under FATCA.  It is 
anticipated that the Issuer will seek to comply with FATCA in order to avoid the withholding 
tax. 

To comply with FATCA, the Issuer may be required to, among other things, obtain certain 
identifying information about holders and beneficial owners of Notes and certain of their direct 
and indirect owners, and to withhold up to 30 per cent. of payments, including principal, made 
to (i) a holder or beneficial owner of a Note that fails to comply with reasonable requests for 
information that will help enable the Issuer to comply with its reporting requirements under 
FATCA (or, if applicable, that fails to provide a waiver of law that prohibits the disclosure of 
such information to a taxing authority) (such a holder or beneficial owner, a "Recalcitrant 
Holder") or (ii) a holder or beneficial owner that is a "foreign financial institution" as defined 
under FATCA and that is not FATCA compliant, unless such holder or beneficial owner is 
exempted or otherwise deemed to be compliant.  In addition, a beneficial owner of Notes that 
holds a Note through a financial institution, broker, agent or other intermediary (collectively 
"Intermediaries") should note that payments made to, or by, such an Intermediary in respect of 
the Notes may be subject to withholding.  In the event that the Issuer or an Intermediary is 
required to deduct a withholding tax in respect of FATCA on any amounts paid on the Notes, 
no additional amounts will be payable in respect of amounts withheld. 

In addition, a holder or beneficial owner that does not comply with the relevant requirements 
under FATCA may be subject to the forced sale or redemption of its Notes. In the event the 
Issuer does "close out" any holder's interest, it may do so by causing the sale to a third party or 
the early redemption of such Notes. Any sale or redemption will be at the Early Payment 
Amount (an amount determined by the Issuer that is not less than the net proceeds the Issuer 
believes it could receive for such Note by selling it) or by issuing an identical Note (and using 
the proceeds to retire the holder's or beneficial owner's interest in a Note) to an investor that is 
FATCA compliant. 

References in this part (g) to the Issuer include the Guarantor. 

3. Status and Guarantee 

(a) Status of the Notes: The Notes are unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the Issuer and 
will rank pari passu and rateably without any preference among themselves and equally with 
all other unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the Issuer from time to time outstanding, 
save for such obligations as may be preferred by provisions of law that are of both mandatory 
and general application. 

(b) Guarantee of the Notes: The Guarantor has in the Deed of Guarantee unconditionally and 
irrevocably guaranteed the due and punctual payment of all sums from time to time payable by 
the Issuer in respect of the Notes. This Guarantee of the Notes will at all times rank pari passu 
with all other unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the Guarantor from time to time 
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outstanding save for such obligations as may be preferred by provisions of law that are of both 
mandatory and general application. 

4. Additional Amounts 

The following provisions shall apply unless "Additional Amount" is specified as "not 
applicable" in the Pricing Supplement. 

(a) Additional Amount: The Issuer shall, until the Notes are redeemed or purchased and cancelled 
under Conditions 5 (Redemption and Purchase) or 6 (Adjustments and Additional Redemption 
Events), pay each Noteholder a Cash Amount (as determined by the Calculation Agent in its 
sole discretion), and which is subject to adjustment in accordance with Conditions 6 
(Adjustments and Additional Redemption Events) and/or 7 (FX Disruption Condition) in respect 
of each Note (an "Additional Amount"). 

For the purposes of the Conditions: 

"Applicable Exchange Rate" means the exchange rate as determined by the Calculation Agent 
by reference to such sources as it may, in its absolute discretion, select. 

"Cash Amount" means a cash amount equal to the Paid Amount multiplied by the Number of 
Shares Per Note, converted into the Settlement Currency at the Applicable Exchange Rate. 

"Number of Shares per Note" means, subject to adjustment in accordance with Condition 5 
(Redemption and Purchase), the Number of Shares per Note specified in the Pricing 
Supplement. 

"Paid Amount" means, in respect of a Note and the relevant Share, 100 per cent. of the net cash 
dividend per Share that would have been received by a Hypothetical Investor as holder of such 
Share during the relevant Additional Amount Period (and in respect of which the Additional 
Amount Accrual Date has occurred during the Additional Amount Period), as determined by 
the Calculation Agent. 

Any "net cash dividend" shall represent a sum after the deduction of any Taxation but 
excluding any imputation or other credits, refunds or deductions granted by any applicable 
authority having power to tax in respect of such dividend and any taxes, credits, refunds or 
benefits imposed, withheld, assessed or levied thereon, as determined by the Calculation Agent.   

(b) Additional Amount Accrual Date: The "Additional Amount Accrual Date" shall be the ex-
dividend date (or if the Reference Jurisdiction is the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, the Scheduled 
Trading Day prior to the ex-dividend date) in relation to the Additional Amount as determined 
by the Calculation Agent, unless the Calculation Agent notifies the Issuer and the Fiscal Agent 
of a different date for such purpose (in which case the Fiscal Agent shall as soon as reasonably 
practicable notify the Noteholders thereof). 

(c) Additional Amount Payment Date: The Issuer shall pay each Additional Amount as soon as 
practicable but no later than the tenth Business Day following receipt by a Hypothetical Investor 
of the cash dividend and/or the stock dividend from the Share Issuer.  

(d) Notification: The Fiscal Agent, following instructions from the Issuer and receipt of all relevant 
information from the Issuer and/or the Calculation Agent, shall notify the Noteholders as soon 
as reasonably practicable that an Additional Amount has become payable.  The Fiscal Agent 
shall, following instructions from the Issuer and receipt of all relevant information from the 
Issuer and/or the Calculation Agent, notify the Noteholders in accordance with Condition 16 
(Notices) in the case of a Cash Amount, the amount payable to each Noteholder. 

5. Redemption and Purchase 

(a) Final Redemption: Unless previously redeemed or purchased under this Condition 5 or 
Condition 6 (Adjustments and Additional Redemption Events), the Issuer will pay or cause to be 
paid on the Maturity Date the Final Redemption Amount.  
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For the purposes of the Conditions, "Final Redemption Amount" means an amount (as 
determined by the Calculation Agent, and which may be zero but not less) per Note 
(representing a principal amount equal to the Calculation Amount) in the Settlement Currency 
equal to the Weighted Average Sale Price per Share multiplied by the Number of Shares per 
Note, less the pro rata proportion (of such Note in respect of all of the Notes of the Series) of 
Costs and Taxation rounded down to the smallest unit of the Settlement Currency (after 
conversion thereof to the Settlement Currency at the applicable Redemption Exchange Rate), 
subject to adjustment in accordance with Condition 6 (Adjustments and Additional Redemption 
Events) and/or 7 (FX Disruption Condition). 

For the purposes of the Conditions: 

"Number of Shares per Note" means, subject to adjustment in accordance with Condition 6 
(Adjustments and Additional Redemption Events), the Number of Shares per Note specified in 
the Pricing Supplement; and 

"Weighted Average Sale Price per Share" means an amount (as determined by the Calculation 
Agent) equal to the product of (i) the aggregate of the Final Sale Price of each Share of the 
Aggregate Number of Shares determined by Calculation Agent, multiplied by (ii) one divided 
by the Aggregate Number of Shares. 

(b) Redemption for Illegality: If the Calculation Agent in its sole and absolute discretion determines 
that the performance of (a) any of the Issuer's obligations under the Notes or (b) any Hedge 
Position is or will become unlawful, illegal, or otherwise prohibited in whole or in part as a 
result of compliance with any applicable present or future law, rule, regulation, judgment, order 
or directive of any governmental, administrative, legislative or judicial authority or power, or 
any change in the interpretation thereof, then the Issuer may, by giving not more than 30 nor 
less than ten days' notice to Noteholders (which notice shall be irrevocable), redeem all, but not 
some only, of the Notes at their Early Redemption Amount.   

For the purposes of the Conditions, "Early Redemption Amount" means an amount (as 
determined by the Calculation Agent, and which may be zero but not less) per Note 
(representing a principal amount equal to the Calculation Amount) in the Settlement Currency 
equal to the Weighted Average Sale Price per Share multiplied by the Number of Shares per 
Note, less the pro rata proportion (of such Note in respect of all of the Notes of the Series) of 
Costs and Taxation rounded down to the smallest unit of the Settlement Currency (after 
conversion thereof to the Settlement Currency at the applicable Redemption Exchange Rate), 
subject to adjustment in accordance with Condition 6 (Adjustments and Additional Redemption 
Events) and/or Condition 7 (FX Disruption Condition).  

(c) Purchase of Notes: The Issuer and any Affiliate thereof may at any time purchase Notes in the 
open market or otherwise at any price and may hold such purchased Notes in inventory, or resell 
them or surrender them as provided below for cancellation. 

(d) Cancellation: Any Notes that are redeemed under this Condition 5 (Redemption and Purchase) 
or Condition 6 (Adjustments and Additional Redemption Events) or purchased (and which are 
to be surrendered for cancellation) shall be surrendered for cancellation:  

(i) in the case of Notes represented by a Global Note or a Global Certificate, by presentation 
of the Global Note or Global Certificate, as the case may be, to or to the order of the 
Fiscal Agent or the Registrar, whereupon the principal amount of the Notes shall be 
reduced by the amount so cancelled and endorsed; and 

(ii) in the case of definitive Bearer Notes or Registered Notes, by surrendering each such 
Note or Registered Note certificate to the Fiscal Agent and if so surrendered, shall, 
together with all Notes redeemed by the Issuer, be cancelled forthwith.  

Any Notes that are so cancelled may not be reissued or resold and the obligations of the Issuer 
in respect of any such Notes shall be discharged. 

(e) Reference to Principal: References to principal shall be deemed to include, wherever the context 
so admits, any amounts payable under the Notes other than by way of Additional Amounts. 
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6. Adjustments and Additional Redemption Events 

(a) Potential Adjustment Event: Following the declaration by the Share Issuer of a Potential 
Adjustment Event, the Calculation Agent will determine whether such Potential Adjustment 
Event has a diluting or concentrative effect on the theoretical value of the Shares and, if so, will: 

(i) make the corresponding adjustment(s) to any one or more of: 

(1) any Additional Amount, the Final Redemption Amount, the Early Redemption 
Amount, the Number of Shares per Note, the Number of Notes, the Calculation 
Amount and/or the Specified Denomination (as applicable); and/or  

(2) any other terms of the Conditions of the Notes, and/or 

(ii) issue further Notes in accordance with Condition 15 (Further Issues) or notes of a 
different Series and distribute such further Notes or Series, as the case may be, to 
Noteholders on a pro rata basis in proportion to the aggregate principal amount of the 
Notes then held by each such Noteholder, 

as the Calculation Agent determines appropriate to account for that diluting or 
concentrative effect (provided that no adjustments or further issues will be made to 
account solely for changes in volatility, expected dividends, stock loan rate or liquidity 
relevant to the Shares); and  

(iii) determine the effective date(s) of such adjustment(s) and/or further issues. The 
Calculation Agent may (but need not) determine the appropriate adjustment(s) and/or 
further issues to be made by reference to the adjustment(s) in respect of such Potential 
Adjustment Event made (A) by any Related Exchange to listed contracts on the Shares 
traded on such Related Exchange or (B) to the Hedge Position. The Calculation Agent 
shall, as soon as reasonably practicable, notify the Noteholders and the Fiscal Agent of 
any adjustment and/or further issues to be made. 

(b) Merger Event: Following the determination by the Calculation Agent that a Merger Event has 
occurred, the Calculation Agent shall, on or after the Merger Date either:  

(i) (A) make such adjustment(s) to the settlement, payment or any other terms of the Notes 
as the Calculation Agent determines appropriate to account for the economic effect on 
the Notes of such Merger Event (provided that no adjustment(s) will be made to account 
solely for changes in volatility, expected dividends, stock loan rate or liquidity relevant 
to the Shares), which may, but need not, be determined by reference to the adjustment(s) 
made in respect of such Merger Event (X) by an options exchange to options on the 
Shares traded on such options exchange or (Y) to the Hedge Position and (B) determine 
the effective date of the adjustment(s); or  

(ii) if the Calculation Agent determines that no adjustment that it could make under (i) will 
produce a commercially reasonable result, notify the Noteholders that the relevant 
consequence shall be the redemption of the Notes in which case the Issuer shall redeem 
the Notes in whole but not in part at their Early Redemption Amount on such date as the 
Issuer may notify to Noteholders. 

The Calculation Agent shall, as soon as reasonably practicable, notify the Noteholders and the 
Fiscal Agent of any adjustment thereof. 

(c) Tender Offer: Following the determination by the Calculation Agent that a Tender Offer has 
occurred, the Calculation Agent shall, on or after the Tender Offer Date either: 

(i) (A) make such adjustment(s) to the settlement, payment or any other terms of the Notes 
as the Calculation Agent determines appropriate to account for the economic effect on 
the Notes of such Tender Offer (provided that no adjustment(s) will be made to account 
solely for changes in volatility, expected dividends, stock loan rate or liquidity relevant 
to the Shares or to the Notes), which may, but need not, be determined by reference to 
the adjustment(s) made in respect of such Tender Offer (X) by an options exchange to 
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options on the Shares traded on such options exchange or (Y) to the Hedge Position and 
(B) determine the effective date of the adjustment(s); or  

(ii) if the Calculation Agent determines that no adjustment that it could make under (i) will 
produce a commercially reasonable result, notify the Noteholders that the relevant 
consequence shall be the redemption of the Notes, in which case the Issuer shall redeem 
the Notes in whole but not in part at their Early Redemption Amount on such date as the 
Issuer may notify to Noteholders and the Fiscal Agent.  

The Calculation Agent shall, as soon as reasonably practicable, notify the Noteholders of any 
adjustment thereof. 

(d) Nationalisation, Liquidation, Delisting and Change of Law: If at any time the Calculation Agent 
determines that:  

(i) Nationalisation: all the Shares of the Share Issuer or all the assets or substantially all the 
assets of the Share Issuer are nationalised, expropriated or are otherwise required to be 
transferred to any governmental agency, authority, entity or instrumentality thereof;  

(ii) Liquidation: by reason of the voluntary or involuntary liquidation, bankruptcy, 
insolvency, dissolution or winding-up of or any analogous proceeding affecting a Share 
Issuer, (A) all the Shares of that Share Issuer are required to be transferred to a trustee, 
liquidator or other similar official or (B) holders of the Shares become legally prohibited 
from transferring them;  

(iii) Delisting: the Exchange announces that pursuant to the rules of such Exchange, the 
Shares cease (or will cease) to be listed, traded or publicly quoted on that Exchange for 
any reason (other than a Merger Event or Tender Offer) and are not immediately re-
listed, re-traded or re-quoted on an exchange or quotation system located in the same 
country as the Exchange (or, where the Exchange is within the European Union, in any 
member state of the European Union); or 

(iv) Change of Law: on or after the Issue Date of the Notes (A) due to the adoption of or any 
change in any applicable law or regulation (including, without limitation, any tax law), 
compliance with any request, directive or policy of any governmental, administrative, 
legislative or judicial authority or power, or (B) due to the promulgation of or any change 
in the interpretation by any court, tribunal or regulatory authority with competent 
jurisdiction of any applicable law or regulation (including any action taken by a taxing 
authority), the Calculation Agent determines that (X) it has become illegal or contrary to 
any such request, directive or policy for the Issuer or the Hedge Counterparty to hold, 
acquire or dispose of Shares or any Hedge Position, or (Y) the Issuer (directly or 
indirectly through the Hedge Counterparty) will incur a materially increased cost in 
performing or hedging its obligations under the Notes (including, without limitation, due 
to any increase in tax liability, decrease in tax benefit or other adverse effect on its tax 
position) or any requirements in relation to reserves, special deposits, insurance 
assessments or other requirements, 

the Calculation Agent may in its sole and absolute discretion notify the Noteholders that the 
relevant consequence shall be the redemption of the Notes, in which case the Issuer shall redeem 
the Notes in whole but not in part at their Early Redemption Amount on the date designated in 
the Calculation Agent's notice (which date shall not be earlier than five Business Days' following 
the date of the giving of such notice). 

(e) Insolvency, Jurisdictional Event, Trading Failure, Hedging Disruption, CMA Order and CMA 
Resolution Ineligible Investor Event: If at any time the Calculation Agent determines that: 

(i) Insolvency: the Share Issuer has instituted, or has had instituted against it by a regulator, 
supervisor or any similar official with primary insolvency, rehabilitative or regulatory 
jurisdiction over it in the jurisdiction of its incorporation or organisation or the 
jurisdiction of its head or home office, or it consents to, a proceeding seeking a judgment 
of insolvency or bankruptcy or any other relief under any bankruptcy or insolvency law 
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or other similar law affecting creditors' rights, or a petition is presented for its winding-
up or liquidation by it or such regulator, supervisor or similar official or it consents to 
such a petition (provided that proceedings instituted or petitions presented by creditors 
and not consented to by the Share Issuer shall be disregarded for the purpose of this 
provision);  

(ii) Jurisdiction Event: an event has occurred, whether of general application or otherwise 
and which occurs as a result of present or future risks in or connected with the Reference 
Jurisdiction(s) including, but not limited to, risks associated with fraud or corruption, 
political risk, legal uncertainty, imposition of foreign exchange controls or capital 
controls, changes in laws or regulations and changes in the interpretation or enforcement 
of laws and regulations (including without limitation those relating to taxation) and other 
legal and/or sovereign risks;  

(iii) Trading Failure: the Hedge Counterparty is not able to buy and/or sell Shares via a 
trading system commonly used within the Reference Jurisdiction for such Shares or such 
trading system fails to calculate and publish the price of the Shares on a day on which 
the Calculation Agent determines that such calculation and publication was otherwise 
expected to be made, and in each case, which has or may have (as determined by the 
Calculation Agent) the effect of reducing or eliminating the value of the Hedge Proceeds 
at any time;  

(iv) Hedging Disruption: a condition has arisen which has the effect of prohibiting or 
restricting the ability of the Issuer or the Hedge Counterparty to hedge the Issuer's 
position under the Notes including to remain the owner of, or to acquire or freely transfer 
(otherwise than as provided in the terms of the Shares) the Reference Currency, any 
Intermediate Currency, the Settlement Currency or the Shares or any securities or 
positions forming the Hedge Position, when compared to the position on the Trade Date; 

(v) CMA Order: in relation to Notes Linked to Saudi Shares, the Capital Market Authority 
has made an order, based on its absolute discretion, pursuant to the terms of the CMA 
Resolution, that the Hedge Counterparty (where it is an Authorised Person) may not enter 
into or maintain a Swap Agreement which would otherwise or does comprise the related 
Hedge Position, or has imposed any type of limitation(s), restriction(s), or requirement(s) 
in relation to such Swap Agreement(s) entered into by such Authorised Person, or in 
relation to the related Foreign Counterparty or the related Ultimate Beneficiary; or  

(vi) CMA Resolution Ineligible Investor Event: in relation to Notes Linked to Saudi Shares, 
a Noteholder has notified the Issuer, or the Calculation Agent has otherwise become 
aware to its reasonable satisfaction, that such Noteholder is an Ultimate Beneficiary (i) 
is or at any time becomes a party prohibited under the terms of section 3 of the CMA 
Resolution from entering into or executing a Swap Agreement or related swap 
transaction or (ii) does not satisfy the limitations on the shareholdings of the Ultimate 
Beneficiary under the terms of section 13 of the CMA Resolution,  

the Calculation Agent may in its sole and absolute discretion (A) (save in respect of a CMA 
Resolution Ineligible Investor Event, other than as specified in (C) below) make such downward 
or other adjustment to any Additional Amount, the Early Redemption Amount and/or the Final 
Redemption Amount and/or make any other adjustment to the terms of the conditions of the 
Notes as it shall determine to take account of the effect of such Insolvency, Jurisdictional Event, 
Trading Failure, Hedging Disruption or CMA Order (as applicable) on the Hedge Position and 
its obligations under the Notes (and, in the case of a CMA Order, to ensure compliance 
therewith); (B) notify the Noteholders that the relevant consequence shall be the redemption of 
some or all of the Notes of the relevant series, in which case the Issuer shall redeem the relevant 
Notes at their Early Redemption Amount on the date designated in the Calculation Agent's 
notice; or (C) determine any combination of (A) or (B) to account for the Insolvency, 
Jurisdictional Event, Trading Failure, Hedging Disruption, CMA Order or CMA Resolution 
Ineligible Investor Event (as applicable). The Calculation Agent shall, as soon as reasonably 
practicable, notify the Noteholders of any adjustment thereto. 

For the purposes of the Conditions:  
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"Capital Market Authority" means the Capital Market Authority of the Kingdom of Saudi 
Arabia or any successor or equivalent body thereof; 

"CMA Resolution" means the Capital Market Authority Board of Commissioners' resolution 
dated 07/08/1439H corresponding to 23/04/2018G, which amends the Capital Market Authority 
Board of Commissioners' resolution dated 20/03/1438H corresponding to 19/12/2016G 
regarding the approval for Authorised Persons to enter into Swap Agreements (as amended from 
time to time); and  

each of "Authorised Person", "Foreign Counterparty", "Swap Agreement" and "Ultimate 
Beneficiary" has the respective meaning given to it in the CMA Resolution or the Glossary of 
Defined Terms Used in the Regulations of the Capital Market Authority issued by the Board of 
the Capital Market Authority pursuant to Resolution Number 4-11-2004 dated 20/8/1425H 
corresponding to 4/10/2004G as amended from time to time. 

(f) Change of Exchange: If an Exchange is changed, the Calculation Agent shall make such 
consequential modifications to the calculation of any Additional Amount, Early Redemption 
Amount and/or Final Redemption Amount as it may determine appropriate to account for the 
effect of such change of Exchange. Any such modification will be promptly notified to the 
Noteholders. 

(g) More than one adjustment or termination event: In the circumstance where one or more event 
may satisfy the terms of two or more of the adjustment or termination events set forth in this 
Condition 6 (or Condition 5 (Redemption and Purchase)), then the Calculation Agent shall 
determine (in its sole and absolute discretion) which adjustment or termination event shall be 
applicable. 

7. FX Disruption Condition  

If the Calculation Agent determines that an FX Disruption Condition exists on (or on the 
Business Day prior to) the date on which any of the Final Redemption Amount, the Early 
Redemption Amount or any Additional Amount (as the case may be, the "Applicable 
Payment") (or a date on which the Applicable Exchange Rate or Redemption Exchange Rate, 
as the case may be, in relation to the calculation of the amount of the Applicable Payment in the 
Settlement Currency is otherwise to be determined in accordance with these Conditions) is 
otherwise payable under these Conditions (such date of the existence of the FX Disruption 
Condition, the "FX Disruption Determination Date"), then (subject to the next sentence) the 
Applicable Payment shall be postponed until the date falling on or prior to the third Business 
Day following the date on which the Calculation Agent has notified the Issuer that the FX 
Disruption Condition is no longer in existence. 

If such (or other) FX Disruption Condition continues to exist up to, but excluding, the Cut-off 
Date, then: 

(i) if the Calculation Agent determines that (A) there is no condition created by or resulting 
from any action of or failure to act by any governmental authority, or a local market 
condition that has the effect of prohibiting, restricting or materially delaying the free and 
unconditional transferability of the Reference Currency and (B) it is possible to settle 
payments in respect of the Notes in the Reference Currency through Euroclear or 
Clearstream, Luxembourg, as the case may be, then the Issuer shall make the Applicable 
Payment in the Reference Currency on such date as if the Reference Currency has been 
specified as the Settlement Currency in the applicable Pricing Supplement; or 

(ii) in each other case, the Notes shall be deemed to have been redeemed on such date without 
any payment on the part of the Issuer (or Guarantor) and the Issuer's obligations under 
the Notes shall be deemed to have been discharged in full.  

There shall be no interest payable in respect of any extension of the date of payment of any 
Applicable Payment in accordance with the terms of this paragraph. 

For the purposes of the Conditions:  
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"Cut-off Date" means, in relation to an FX Disruption Condition, the first Business Day 
to fall five years after the FX Disruption Determination Date;  

"FX Disruption Condition" means, in the determination of the Calculation Agent, a 
condition created by or resulting from any action of or failure to act by any governmental 
authority, or a local market condition that has the effect of prohibiting, restricting or 
materially delaying the exchange of the Reference Currency for the Settlement Currency 
(whether directly or, pursuant to any Hedge Position, indirectly by exchange into a third 
currency (the "Intermediate Currency") (and including, without limitation, where the 
effect is that the applicable rate of exchange is not as favourable as the rate for domestic 
institutions located in the Reference Jurisdiction)), or prohibiting, restricting or 
materially delaying the free and unconditional transferability of the resulting Settlement 
Currency (or Intermediate Currency) or the free and unconditional transfer of the 
Reference Currency (or Intermediate Currency) between (i) accounts inside the 
Reference Jurisdiction to accounts outside the Reference Jurisdiction, from accounts 
outside the Reference Jurisdiction to accounts inside the Reference Jurisdiction or (ii) to 
or from accounts of non-residents of the Reference Jurisdiction, or which otherwise 
results in an exchange for the Settlement Currency (or Intermediate Currency), in each 
case when compared with the position on the Issue Date; 

"Reference Currency(ies)" means the currency(ies) of the proceeds which a holder of 
the Aggregate Number of Shares may receive upon sale of these assets; and 

"Settlement Currency" means, with respect to a Series of Notes, the Specified Currency 
so specified in the Pricing Supplement.  

8. Payments  

(a) Payments in respect of definitive Notes: 

(i) Bearer Notes and Coupons: In the case of definitive Bearer Notes, payments of principal 
will be (subject as provided below) payable by electronic transfer to an account 
maintained outside the United States and will be made in the manner provided in 
Condition 5(a) above only against presentation and surrender (or, in the case of part 
payment of any sum due, endorsement) of definitive Bearer Notes and payments of any 
Additional Amount in respect of definitive Bearer Notes will (subject as provided below 
in respect of Bearer Notes) be made as aforesaid only against presentation and surrender 
(or, in the case of part payment of any sum due, endorsement) of the coupons attached 
on issue to a definitive Note ("Coupon"), in each case at the specified office of the Fiscal 
Agent or any Paying Agent outside the United States as the Issuer may from time to time 
designate, as set forth in the relevant Pricing Supplement.  Upon the date on which any 
Bearer Note in definitive form becomes due and repayable, unmatured Coupons relating 
thereto (whether or not attached) shall become void and no payment shall be made in 
respect thereof. 

(ii) Registered Notes: In the case of definitive Registered Notes, payments of principal and 
any Additional Amount will (subject as provided below) be payable by electronic 
transfer, to the holder(s) in whose name such definitive Registered Notes are registered 
as at the close of business on the 15th calendar day (whether or not a Business Day) 
preceding the date such payment of principal or any Additional Amount is due and will 
be made in the manner provided in Condition 5(a) above only against presentation and 
surrender (or, in the case of part payment of any sum due, endorsement) of the definitive 
Registered Notes.   

(b) Payments in respect of Global Notes and Global Certificates:  

(i) Global Notes: In the case of Global Notes, payments of principal and any Additional 
Amount will (subject as provided below) be made in the manner specified above in 
relation to definitive Bearer Notes and otherwise in the manner specified in the relevant 
Global Note against presentation or surrender, as the case may be, of such Global Note 
at the specified office of any Paying Agent outside the United States. Prior to any 
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Exchange Date, payments of principal or any Additional Amount in respect of a Global 
Note will only be made upon certification as to non-US beneficial ownership status as 
required by US Treasury regulations. If such certification as to non-US beneficial 
ownership is not made on or prior to the Exchange Date, no payments in respect of Notes 
represented by a Global Note will be made until such certification is made. In addition, 
after the Exchange Date, a record of each payment made against presentation or 
surrender of any Global Note distinguishing between any payment of principal and any 
payment of interest, will be made on such Global Note by the Paying Agent to which it 
was presented and such record shall be prima facie evidence that the payment in question 
has been made. 

(ii) Global Certificates: In the case of Global Certificates, payments of principal will (subject 
as provided below) be made in the manner specified above in relation to definitive 
Registered Notes and, if no further payment falls to be made in respect of the Global 
Certificates, surrender of that Global Certificate to, or to the order to the Registrar. 
Payments in respect of any Additional Amount on Registered Notes (represented by a 
Global Certificate) shall (subject as provided below) be paid to the person shown on the 
Register at the close of the business day (being a day on which each Clearing System is 
open for business) before the due date for payment by way of electronic transfer to an 
account maintained outside the United States. Prior to any Exchange Date, payments of 
principal or any Additional Amount in respect of a Note will only be made upon 
certification as to non-US beneficial ownership status as required by US Treasury 
regulations. If such certification as to non-US beneficial ownership is not made in respect 
of Notes represented by a Global Certificate on or prior to the Exchange Date, no 
payments in respect of such Notes will be made until such certification is made. In 
addition, after the Exchange Date, a record of each payment made against presentation 
or surrender of any Global Certificate, distinguishing between any payment of principal 
and any payment of interest, will be made on such Global Certificate by the Registrar to 
which it was presented and such record shall be prima facie evidence that the payment 
in question has been made. 

(c) General provisions applicable to payments: The holder of a Global Note or, as the case may be, 
Global Certificate shall be the only person entitled to receive payments or make a claim with 
respect to payments in respect of Notes represented by such Global Note or, as the case may be, 
Global Certificate and the Issuer or, as the case may be, the Guarantor will be discharged by 
payment to, or to the order of, the holder of such Global Note or, as the case may be, Global 
Certificate in respect of each amount so paid. Each of the persons shown in the records of 
Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg at the close of business on the day which such clearing 
system is open for the acceptance and execution of settlement instructions immediately prior to 
the due date for payment (such day, the "Record Date") as the beneficial holder of a particular 
nominal amount of Notes represented by such Global Note or, as the case may be, Global 
Certificate must look solely to Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg or as the case may be, 
for his share of each payment so made by the Issuer or, as the case may be, the Guarantor to, or 
to the order of, the holder of such Global Note or, as the case may be, Global Certificate. 

(d) Payments in the United States: In the case of Bearer Notes in definitive form, notwithstanding 
the foregoing provisions of this Condition 8, if any amount of principal and/or additional 
amounts in respect of Notes is payable in US Dollars, such US Dollar payments of principal 
and/or additional amounts in respect of such Notes will be made at the specified office of a 
Paying Agent in the United States if: 

(i) the Issuer has appointed Paying Agents with specified offices outside the United States 
with the reasonable expectation that such Paying Agents would be able to make payment 
in US Dollars at such specified offices outside the United States of the full amount of 
principal and any Additional Amount on the Notes in the manner provided above when 
due;  

(ii) payment of the full amount of such principal and any Additional Amount at all such 
specified offices outside the United States is illegal or effectively precluded by exchange 
controls or other similar restrictions on the full payment or receipt of principal and 
interest in US Dollars; and 
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(iii) such payment is then permitted under US law without involving, in the opinion of the 
Issuer and the Guarantor, adverse tax consequences to the Issuer or the Guarantor. 

(e) Payment Day: If the date for payment of any amount in respect of any Note is not a Payment 
Day, the holder thereof shall not be entitled to payment until the next succeeding Payment Day 
and shall not be entitled to further interest or other payment in respect of such delay or 
amendment. 

9. Taxation 

Neither the Issuer nor the Guarantor (in the event that it is called upon to make any payment 
under the terms of the Guarantee of the Notes) is liable, nor does any of them assume 
responsibility, for any tax, duty, charges, withholding or other payment which may arise as a 
result of, or in connection with, the ownership, transfer, redemption or enforcement of any Note, 
including, without limitation, the payment of any Additional Amount, the Early Redemption 
Amount and/or the Final Redemption Amount unless the withholding or deduction of such tax, 
duty, charges or other payment is required by law. In that event, the appropriate withholding or 
deduction shall be made and neither the Issuer nor the Guarantor (as case may be) shall have 
any obligation to pay any additional amounts to compensate any Noteholder for such 
withholding or deduction.  

10. ERISA Transfer Restrictions 

By its purchase or holding of a Note, or any interest therein, the purchaser and/or holder thereof 
and each transferee will be deemed to have represented and warranted at the time of its purchase 
and throughout the period that it holds such Note or interest therein that (1)(A) it is not an 
"employee benefit plan" (as defined in Section 3(3) of the US Employee Retirement Security 
Act of 1974, as amended ("ERISA")) that is subject to the fiduciary responsibilities provisions 
of ERISA, a "plan" as defined in Section 4975(e)(1) of the Code that is subject to Section 4975 
of the Code, any entity whose underlying assets include "plan assets" by reason of any such 
employee benefit plan's or plan's investment in the entity or a "benefit plan investor" as such 
term is otherwise defined in any regulations promulgated by the US Department of Labor under 
Section 3(42) of ERISA (any such investor, a "Benefit Plan Investor") or (B) it is an insurance 
company acting on behalf of its general account and (i) it is not a person who has discretionary 
authority or control with respect to the assets of the Issuer or a person who provides investment 
advice for a fee (direct or indirect) with respect to such assets, or any affiliate of such a person, 
(ii) as of the date it acquires and throughout the period it holds the Notes, or any interest therein, 
less than 25 per cent. of the assets of such general account constitutes "plan assets" (as defined 
in Section 3(42) of ERISA and US Department of Labor regulations) for purposes of ERISA 
and/or Section 4975 of the Code, (iii) it agrees that if, after its initial acquisition of the Notes, 
or any interest therein, at any time during any month, 25 per cent. or more of the assets of such 
general account constitute "plan assets", then such insurance company shall, in a manner 
consistent with the restrictions on transfer set forth herein, dispose of all of the Notes, or any 
other class of equity interest in the Issuer, and any interest therein, held in its general account 
by the end of the next following month and (iv) the acquisition and holding of the Notes, or any 
interest therein, will not constitute or result in a prohibited transaction under ERISA or Section 
4975 of the Code which is not covered under Prohibited Transaction Class Exemption 95-60 or 
some other applicable exemption and (2) if it is a US governmental, church, non-US or other 
plan which is subject to any federal, state, local or non-US law substantially similar to the 
provisions of Section 406 of ERISA or Section 4975 of the Code, its purchase and holding of 
such Notes will not constitute or result in a non-exempt violation under any such substantially 
similar federal, state, local or non-US law.  

In addition, each purchaser, holder and/or transferee of a Note, or any interest therein, that is a 
Benefit Plan Investor will be deemed to have represented and warranted at the time of its 
purchase and throughout the period that it holds such Note or interest therein that: (1) it is 
represented by a fiduciary (the "Fiduciary") that is independent of the Issuer, the Guarantor and 
the Dealer (i.e., there is no financial interest, ownership interest, agreement or understanding 
that would limit the Fiduciary's ability to carry out its fiduciary responsibilities with respect to 
the Benefit Plan Investor beyond the control, direction or influence of the Issuer, the Guarantor 
and the Dealer); (2) the Fiduciary is capable of evaluating investment risks independently, both 
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in general and with regard to the Benefit Plan Investor's purchase and holding of the Note or 
interest therein; (3) the Fiduciary understands that the Issuer, the Guarantor and the Dealer are 
not undertaking to provide impartial investment advice, or to give advice in a fiduciary capacity, 
in connection with the transaction; (4) the Fiduciary understands that the Issuer, the Guarantor 
and the Dealer have financial interests in the transaction and has been informed of the nature of 
such financial interests; (5) the Fiduciary is a fiduciary under ERISA or the Code, or both, with 
respect to the transaction and is responsible for exercising independent judgment in evaluating 
the transaction; and (6) the Fiduciary understands that the Issuer, the Guarantor and the Dealer 
did not receive a fee or other compensation directly from the plan, plan fiduciary, plan 
participant or beneficiary, IRA, or IRA Owner for the provision of investment advice (as 
opposed to other services) in connection with the transaction.  For the purposes of this 
paragraph, "IRA" means any account or annuity described in section 4975(e)(1)(B) through (F) 
of the Code, including, for example, an individual retirement account described in section 408(a) 
of the Code and a health savings account described in section 223(d) of the Code and "IRA 
Owner" means, with respect to an IRA, either the person who is the owner of the IRA or the 
person for whose benefit the IRA was established. 

If there is any transfer of the Notes, or any interest therein, to a purchaser or transferee that does 
not comply with the foregoing requirements, the Issuer shall direct such purchaser to transfer 
the Notes, or any interest therein, as applicable, to a person who meets the foregoing criteria 
(and any other relevant criteria) within 14 days following receipt of notice of such direction. If 
such purchaser fails to sell or transfer the Notes, or any interest therein, within such period, the 
Issuer shall cause such Notes, or any interest therein, to be sold to a purchaser selected by the 
Issuer that meets the foregoing criteria (and any other relevant criteria), on such terms as the 
Issuer may choose, subject to the transfer restrictions set out in the Base Listing Particulars, and, 
pending such transfer, no further payments will be made in respect of the Notes. The terms and 
conditions of any such sale shall be determined in the sole and absolute discretion of the Issuer 
and the Issuer shall not be liable to any person having an interest in the Notes sold as a result of 
any such sale or the exercise of such discretion. For the avoidance of doubt, notwithstanding 
that such purchaser shall have been selected by the Issuer, if the Notes are Notes Linked to Saudi 
Shares, it shall also execute a letter substantially in the form set out in the section of the Base 
Listing Particulars entitled "Form of Noteholder Letter". 

11. Prescription 

The Notes and Coupons will become void unless presented for payment within a period of ten 
years (in the case of principal) and five years (in the case of any Additional Amount) after the 
Relevant Date (as defined below) therefor. 

As used herein, the "Relevant Date" means the date on which such payment first becomes due, 
except that, if the full amount of the moneys payable has not been duly received by the Fiscal 
Agent on or prior to such due date, it means the date on which, the full amount of such moneys 
having been so received, notice to that effect is duly given to the Noteholders in accordance 
with Condition 16 (Notices). 

12. Events of Default 

If any one or more of the following events (each, an "Event of Default") has occurred and is 
continuing: 

(a) the Issuer fails to pay any amount due on the Notes within 30 days after the due date; 

(b) a resolution is passed, or a final order of a court in the British Virgin Islands (in the case 
of the Issuer) or Egypt (in the case of the Guarantor) is made and, where possible, not 
discharged or stayed within a period of 90 days, that the Issuer and/or the Guarantor (as 
applicable) be wound up or dissolved; or 

(c) in respect of the Notes issued by the Issuer, the Guarantee is not (or is claimed by the 
Guarantor not to be) in full force and effect, 
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then the Noteholder may by notice in writing given to the Fiscal Agent at its specified office, 
declare such Note immediately due and payable, whereupon such Note shall become redeemable 
at the Early Redemption Amount unless prior to the time when the Fiscal Agent receives such 
notice all Events of Default have been cured. 

13. Meeting of Noteholders and Modifications 

(a) Meetings of Noteholders: The Agency Agreement contains provisions for convening meetings 
of Noteholders to consider any matter affecting their interests, including the sanctioning by 
Extraordinary Resolution of a modification of any of these Conditions. Such a meeting may be 
convened by Noteholders holding not less than ten per cent. in nominal amount of the Notes for 
the time being outstanding. The quorum for any meeting convened to consider an Extraordinary 
Resolution shall be two or more persons holding or representing a clear majority in nominal 
amount of the Notes for the time being outstanding, or at any adjourned meeting two or more 
persons being or representing Noteholders whatever the nominal amount of the Notes held or 
represented, unless the business of such meeting includes consideration of proposals, inter alia, 
(i) to amend the dates of maturity or redemption of the Notes, (ii) to reduce or cancel the nominal 
amount of, or any other amount payable or deliverable on redemption of, the Notes, (iii) to vary 
any method of, or basis for, calculating the Additional Amount, the Final Redemption Amount, 
the Early Redemption Amount or any other amount payable on the Notes, (iv) to vary the 
currency or currencies of payment or denomination of the Notes, (v) to take any steps that as 
specified hereon may only be taken following approval by an Extraordinary Resolution to which 
the special quorum provisions apply or (vi) to modify the provisions concerning the quorum 
required at any meeting of Noteholders or the majority required to pass the Extraordinary 
Resolution in which case the necessary quorum shall be two or more persons holding or 
representing not less than 75 per cent., or at any adjourned meeting not less than 25 per cent., in 
nominal amount of the Notes for the time being outstanding. Any Extraordinary Resolution duly 
passed shall be binding on Noteholders (whether or not they were present at the meeting at 
which such resolution was passed). 

(b) Modification of the Agency Agreement or the Conditions: The Issuer may agree to any 
modification of, or any waiver or authorisation of any breach or proposed breach of or any 
failure to comply with, the Agency Agreement or the Conditions without the consent of the 
Noteholders, if:  

(i) such modification, waiver or authorisation modifies the restrictions on and procedures 
for resales and other transfers of Notes to reflect any changes in applicable law or 
regulation (or the interpretation thereof) or enables the Issuer to rely upon any exemption 
from registration under the Securities Act or the Investment Company Act or British 
Virgin Islands banking or securities laws or removes restrictions on resale and transfer 
to the extent not required thereunder or to modify the restrictions on the Notes related to 
ERISA or otherwise makes any modification to the restrictions on and procedures for 
resales and other transfers of Notes as the Calculation Agent determines is necessary or 
advisable; 

(ii) such modification is of a formal, minor or technical nature or is made to correct a 
manifest error or a defective provision or to comply with mandatory provisions of the 
law; or 

(iii) to do so could not reasonably be expected to be prejudicial to the interests of the 
Noteholders, 

in each case provided that the Issuer shall as soon as practicable notify the Noteholders of such 
modification, waiver or authorisation. In the event of any inconsistency between Conditions 
13(a) and 13(b), Condition 13(b) shall prevail.  

14. Replacement of Notes  

If a Note is lost, stolen, mutilated, defaced or destroyed, it may be replaced, subject to applicable 
laws, regulations and stock exchange or other relevant authority regulations, at the specified 
office of the Fiscal Agent (in the case of Bearer Notes) and of the Registrar (in the case of 
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Registered Notes) or such other Paying Agent or Transfer Agent, as applicable, as may from 
time to time be designated by the Issuer for the purpose and notice of whose designation is given 
to Noteholders, in each case on payment by the claimant of the fees and costs incurred in 
connection therewith and on such terms as to evidence, security and indemnity (which may 
provide, inter alia, that if the allegedly lost, stolen or destroyed Note or Registered Certificate 
is subsequently presented for payment, there shall be paid to the Issuer on demand the amount 
payable by the Issuer in respect of such Notes or Registered Certificates) and otherwise as the 
Issuer may require. Mutilated or defaced Notes or Registered Certificates must be surrendered 
before replacements will be issued. 

15. Further Issues 

The Issuer may from time to time without the consent of the Noteholders create and issue further 
Notes having the same terms and conditions as the Notes (so that, for the avoidance of doubt, 
references in the conditions of such Notes to "Issue Date" shall be to the first issue date of the 
Notes) and so that the same shall be consolidated and form a single series with such Notes, and 
references in these Conditions to "Notes" shall be construed accordingly. 

If the Issuer issues further Notes of the same Series during the initial 40-day restricted period 
applicable to the outstanding Notes of such Series, then such 40-day period will be extended 
until 40 days after the later of the commencement of the offering of such further issue of Notes 
and the Issue Date of such further issue of Notes. In addition, if the Issuer issues further Notes 
of the same Series after the expiration of the 40-day restricted period, a new 40-day restricted 
period will be applied to such further issue of Notes without applying to the outstanding Notes. 
After the expiration of the new 40-day restricted period, all such Notes will be consolidated with 
and form a single Series with the outstanding Notes. 

16. Notices 

(a) Definitive Notes:  

(i) in the case of definitive Bearer Notes, such notice is published in a daily newspaper of 
general circulation in London (which is expected to be the Financial Times) and, as long 
as the Notes are listed on any stock exchange, is published in such manner as the rules 
of such exchange may require. Any such notice shall be deemed to have been given on 
the date of such publication or, if published more than once or on different dates, on the 
date of the first publication as provided above; and 

(ii) in the case of definitive Registered Notes, (A) such notice is published in the manner 
described in paragraph (i) above and (B) mailed to Noteholders at their respective 
addresses in the Register. Any such notice shall be deemed to have been given on the 
fourth weekday (being a day other than a Saturday or a Sunday) after the date of mailing. 

(b) Global Notes and Global Certificates: Until such time as any definitive Notes are issued, there 
may, so long as any Global Notes and Global Certificates are held in their entirety on behalf of 
Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg, be substituted for such publication in such 
newspaper(s) the delivery of the relevant notice to Euroclear, and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg 
for communication by them to the holders of the Notes and, in addition, for so long as any Notes 
are listed on a stock exchange or are admitted to trading by another relevant authority and the 
rules of that stock exchange or relevant authority so require, such notice will be published in a 
manner which complies with the rules of any stock exchange or other relevant authority on 
which the Notes are for the time being listed or by which they have been admitted to trading.  
Any such notice shall be deemed to have been given to the holders of the Notes on the day which 
such notice was given to Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg.  Unless and until any 
definitive Notes are issued, any obligation of the Issuer or an Agent on the Issuer's behalf to 
publish a notice to the Noteholders shall be satisfied upon delivery of such notice to Euroclear 
and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg. 

(c) Notices to be given by a Noteholder: Notices to be given by any Noteholder shall be in writing 
and given by lodging the same, together (in the case of any Note in definitive form) with the 
relative Note or Notes, with the Fiscal Agent.  Whilst any of the Notes are represented by a 
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Global Note or a Global Certificate, such notice may be given by any holder of a Note to the 
Fiscal Agent through Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as applicable, in such manner 
as the Fiscal Agent and Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as applicable, may approve 
for this purpose. 

17. Agents 

(a) Status of Agents:  The Agents act solely as agents of the Issuer and the Guarantor and do not 
assume any obligations or duty to, or relationship of agency or trust for or with, any Noteholder.  

(b) Variation or termination of appointment of Agents: The Issuer and the Guarantor, if applicable, 
reserve the right at any time to vary or terminate the appointment of any Agents and to appoint 
other or additional Agents in accordance with the terms set out in the Agency Agreement, 
provided that at all times the following shall be maintained: 

(i) a Fiscal Agent; 

(ii) a Registrar in respect of all Registered Notes; 

(iii) one or more Calculation Agent(s); 

(iv) such agents (including a Paying Agent) as may be required by the Global Exchange 
Market of Euronext Dublin, or any relevant authorities or any other stock exchange on 
which any Notes may be listed, and the applicable rules of such relevant authority or 
such other stock exchange so require;   

(v) a Paying Agent in the United States in respect of any Bearer Notes in definitive form of 
which the Settlement Currency is US Dollars in the circumstances described in Condition 
8(d); 

The Agency Agreement contains provisions permitting any entity into which an Agent is merged 
or converted or with which it is consolidated as to which it transfers all or substantially all of its 
assets to become the successor agent. 

Notice of any such change or any change of any specified office shall promptly be given to the 
Noteholders of the affected Notes in accordance with Condition 16 (Notices). 

(c) Resignation of Agents:  Each Agent may resign its appointment at any time by giving the Issuer, 
and where applicable, the Guarantor, and the Fiscal Agent at least 60 days' notice to that effect, 
and in accordance with such other terms as are specified in the Agency Agreement. 

18. Calculation Agent, Determination, Disclaimer of Liability and other terms 

(a) Status of Calculation Agent:  The Calculation Agent acts solely as agent of the Issuer and the 
Guarantor and does not assume any obligations or duty to, or relationship of agency or trust for 
or with, any Noteholder. In making any determination or exercising any discretion, the 
Calculation Agent is not obliged to consider the interests of any Noteholder. 

(b) Standard of care:  Any matter that falls to be determined, considered or otherwise decided upon 
by the Calculation Agent or any other person (including, where a matter is to be decided by 
reference to the Calculation Agent's or such other person's opinion), shall be decided upon by 
the Calculation Agent or such other person as the case may be in good faith and in a 
commercially reasonable manner (unless otherwise explicitly provided), taking into account any 
market factors and other factors as the Calculation Agent or such other person deems relevant 
including, without limitation, any Hedge Position (including, without limitation, any impact on 
such position, the ability to retain such position and the cost of unwinding any such position). 

(c) Disclaimer of liability:  No liability shall attach to the Calculation Agent to any of the 
Noteholders, the Issuer, the Guarantor or the other Agents for good faith errors or omissions in 
the Calculation Agent's calculations and determinations as provided in the Conditions of the 
Notes, whether caused by negligence or otherwise, and no liability shall attach to any of the 
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Issuer or the Guarantor or any of the other Agents for any calculation or determination made by 
the Calculation Agent in respect of the Notes.  

(d) Delegation:  The calculation functions and other discretionary actions required of the 
Calculation Agent may be delegated to any such person as the Calculation Agent, in its sole and 
absolute discretion, may decide. 

(e) Calculations and determinations all binding:  All calculations and determinations made by the 
Calculation Agent in respect of the Notes shall be final and binding on the Issuer and 
Noteholders in the absence of manifest or proven error. 

(f) Two or more Calculation Agents:  Where more than one Calculation Agent is appointed in 
respect of the Notes, references in these Conditions to the Calculation Agent shall be construed 
as each Calculation Agent performing its respective duties under the Conditions of the Notes.  

(g) Replacement of Calculation Agent:  If the Calculation Agent is unable to act as such or if the 
Calculation Agent fails duly to establish any rate or any amount, whether in cash or in kind, 
specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement, to make any other required determination or to 
comply with any of its other obligations, the Issuer shall appoint a leading bank or investment 
banking firm engaged in the interbank market (or, if appropriate, money, swap or over-the-
counter options market) that is most closely connected with the calculation or determination to 
be made by the Calculation Agent (acting through its principal London office or any other office 
actively involved in such market) to act as such in its place. 

19. Third Parties 

No person shall have any right to enforce any term or condition of the Notes under the Contracts 
(Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 except and to the extent (if any) that the Notes expressly 
provide for such Act to apply to any of their terms. 

20. Governing Law and Jurisdiction 

(a) Governing Law: The Notes (and any dispute, controversy, proceedings or claim of whatever 
nature arising out of or in any way relating to the Notes) are governed by and shall be construed 
in accordance with English law.  

(b) Jurisdiction: The courts of England are to have jurisdiction to settle any disputes that may arise 
out of or in connection with any Notes and accordingly any legal action or proceedings arising 
out of or in connection with any Notes may be brought in such courts. 

(c) Service of Process: Without prejudice to any other mode of service allowed under any relevant 
law: 

(i) the Issuer irrevocably appoints EFG Hermes U.K. Limited, 6th Floor, 103 Mount Street, 
London W1K 2TJ, United Kingdom as its agent for service of process in relation to any 
proceedings before the English courts in connection with the Notes; and 

(ii) the Guarantor irrevocably appoints EFG Hermes U.K. Limited, 6th Floor, 103 Mount 
Street, London W1K 2TJ, United Kingdom as its agent for service of process in relation 
to any proceedings before the English courts in connection with the Notes. 

If any person appointed as an agent for service of process is unable for any reason to act as agent 
for service of process, the Issuer and/or the Guarantor (as applicable) must immediately (and in 
any event within five days of such event taking place) appoint another agent to act as their agent 
for service of process in relation to any proceedings before the English courts in connection with 
the Notes. 

21. Definitions 

In these Conditions, the following expressions have the following meanings: 

"Additional Amount" has the meaning given in Condition 4 (Additional Amounts). 
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"Additional Amount Accrual Date" has the meaning given in Condition 4(b). 

"Additional Amount Period" means the period commencing on, and including, the Trade Date 
and ending on, but excluding, the Scheduled Valuation Date.  

"Agency Agreement" has the meaning given in Condition 1(d). 

"Agents", "Calculation Agent", "Fiscal Agent", "Transfer Agent" and "Registrar" each have 
the meaning given in Condition 1(d).  

"Aggregate Number of Shares" means the Number of Shares per Note multiplied by the 
Outstanding Number of Notes, rounded down to the nearest integral number of Shares.  

"Affiliate" means, in relation to any person, any entity controlled, directly or indirectly, by the 
person, any entity that controls, directly or indirectly, the person or any entity directly or 
indirectly under common control with the person.  For this purpose, "control" of any entity or 
person means ownership of a majority of the voting power of the entity or person. 

"Applicable Exchange Rate" means the reference exchange rate for the conversion of the 
Reference Currency into the Settlement Currency (or the effective rate resulting from the 
application of rates into and out of one or more Intermediate Currencies) as the Calculation 
Agent may determine to be the prevailing spot rate for such exchange on the relevant day. 

"applicable Pricing Supplement" or "relevant Pricing Supplement" each have the meaning 
given in Condition 1(c).  

"Authorised Person" has the meaning given to it in the CMA Resolution, provided that 
references to "Authorised Person" shall, if the context so requires, refer to EFG-Hermes KSA, 
a Capital Market Authority Authorised Person having license number 06016-37.  

"Banking Day" means, in respect of any city, a day on which commercial banks are open for 
general business (including dealings in foreign exchange and foreign currency deposits) in such 
city. 

"Bearer Notes" has the meaning given in Condition 1(b). 

"Business Day" means any day which is: 

(i) a day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments and are 
open for general business (including dealings in foreign exchange and foreign currency 
deposits) in London and in each Additional Financial Centre specified in the applicable 
Pricing Supplement; and 

(ii) either (1) in relation to any sum payable in a Settlement Currency other than euro, a day 
on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments and are open 
for general business (including dealing in foreign exchange and foreign currency 
deposits) in the principal financial centre of the country of the relevant Settlement 
Currency (which shall, if the Settlement Currency is Australian dollars or New Zealand 
dollars, be Sydney or Auckland respectively) or (2) in relation to any sum payable in 
euro, a day on which the TARGET2 System is open.  

"Calculation Amount" means a principal amount of the Notes equal to the amount so specified 
in the applicable Pricing Supplement. 

"Capital Market Authority" has the meaning given in Condition 6(e).  

"Clearing System" means Euroclear, Clearstream, Luxembourg, and any other clearing system 
as specified in the Pricing Supplement, or any successor entity thereto. 

"Clearstream, Luxembourg" has the meaning given in Condition 2(b)(ii). 

"Code" means the US Internal Revenue Code of 1986. 
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"Commission(s)" means an amount equal to any commission, fee or other transaction cost per 
Share which may be incurred by a Hypothetical Investor as a result of, or in connection with, 
the holding of and/or selling of and/or realising any Shares and/or Hedge Position, as determined 
by the Calculation Agent.  

"Conditions" has the meaning given in Condition 1(c). 

"Costs" means, in respect of any Additional Amount, Early Redemption Amount or Final 
Redemption Amount, any Commissions, taxes, levies, fees, custodial fees, registrations or other 
charges which may be incurred by a Hypothetical Investor as a result of, or in connection with, 
the holding of and/or selling of and/or realising any Shares and/or Hedge Position, as determined 
by the Calculation Agent.  

"Coupon" has the meaning given in Condition 8 (Payments). 

"Cut-off Date" has the meaning given in Condition 7 (FX Disruption Condition).  

"Deed of Covenant" has the meaning given in Condition 1(e). 

"Deed of Guarantee" has the meaning given in Condition 1(f). 

"Early Redemption Amount" has the meaning given in Condition 5(b).  

"ERISA" means the US Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended. 

"Euroclear" has the meaning given in Condition 2(b)(ii). 

"Event of Default" has the meaning given in Condition 12 (Events of Default). 

"Exchange" means the stock exchanges so specified in the Pricing Supplement or such other 
stock exchange on which the Shares are, in the determination of the Calculation Agent, traded 
or quoted as the Issuer may (acting on the instructions of the Calculation Agent) select and 
notify to Noteholders, or (in any such case) any transferee or successor exchange.  

"Exchange Business Day" means any Scheduled Trading Day on which each Exchange is open 
for trading during its regular trading sessions, notwithstanding any such Exchange closing prior 
to its Scheduled Closing Time. 

"Exchange Date" has the meaning given in Condition 2(b)(ii). 

"Exchange Disruption" means any event (other than an Early Closure) that disrupts or impairs 
(as determined by the Calculation Agent) the ability of market participants in general (i) to effect 
transactions in, or obtain market values for, the Shares on an Exchange, or (ii) to effect 
transactions in, or obtain market values for, futures or options relating to the Shares on any 
relevant Related Exchange.  

"Exchange Event" has the meaning given in Condition 2(b)(v).  

"FATCA" means sections 1471 to 1474 of the Code and regulations and guidance issued 
thereunder, an agreement with the US Internal Revenue Service pursuant to such sections of the 
Code, or an intergovernmental agreement between the United States and another jurisdiction in 
furtherance of such sections of the Code (including any non-US laws implementing such an 
intergovernmental agreement). 

"Final Redemption Amount" has the meaning given in Condition 5(a).  

"Final Sale Price" means, in respect of a Share, the Share Price. 

"FX Disruption Condition" has the meaning given in Condition 7 (FX Disruption Event). 

"General Terms and Conditions" given in Condition 1(c). 

"Global Certificates" has the meaning given in Condition 1(b)(iv).  



Terms and Conditions of the Notes 

 

 45  
 
 

"Global Note" has the meaning given in Condition 1(b)(i). 

"Guarantor" has the meaning given in Condition 1(a). 

"Hedge Counterparty" means, in relation to any Series of Notes, the entity (which may be an 
Affiliate of the Issuer) with whom the Issuer or any Affiliate has entered into, or maintains with, 
a Hedge Position. 

"Hedge Position" means, in respect of any Series of Notes, any purchase, sale, entry into or 
maintenance of one or more (i) positions or contracts in securities, options, futures, derivatives 
or foreign exchange or (ii) other instruments or arrangements (howsoever described) by (a) the 
Issuer or any Affiliate thereof in order to hedge such Notes or (b) a Hypothetical Investor in 
order to hedge its holding of the Aggregate Number of Shares. 

"Hedge Proceeds" means, in relation to any Additional Amount, Early Redemption Amount or 
Final Redemption Amount as the case may be, the cash amount (which may be zero) constituting 
the proceeds (if any) relating to such Additional Amount, Early Redemption Amount or Final 
Redemption Amount (as applicable) received by the Hedge Counterparty under the Hedge 
Position (as determined by the Calculation Agent).  

"holder(s)" has the meanings given in Condition 1(g). 

"Hypothetical Investor" means a company (which, if the Reference Jurisdiction is the 
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, is incorporated in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and which may be a 
wholly or partly non-Saudi Arabian owned company) with a holding in the Aggregate Number 
of Shares. 

"Initial Fixing Date" means the date specified in the Pricing Supplement, which shall, where 
the Reference Jurisdiction is the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, be no earlier than the Trade Date.  

"Initial Price" means, in respect of any Shares, the volume weighted price per Share specified 
in the applicable Pricing Supplement, or if not so specified, the volume weighted price per Share 
at which the Hedge Counterparty has bought (or if the Hedge Counterparty does not hold the 
Shares, is able to buy) such Shares on the Initial Fixing Date.  

"Intermediate Currency" has the meaning given in Condition 7 (FX Disruption Event). 

"Investment Company Act" means the US Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended. 

"Issue Date" means the date specified as such in the Pricing Supplement and shall be construed 
in accordance with Condition 15 (Further Issues). 

"Issue Price" means the price specified in the Pricing Supplement. 

"Issuer" has the meaning given in Condition 1(a). 

"Market Disruption Event" means the occurrence or existence on any Scheduled Trading Day 
of (a) a Trading Disruption, (b) an Exchange Disruption, (c) a material restriction on the sale 
and purchase of Shares in the Reference Jurisdiction, (d) any failure by local entities in the 
Reference Jurisdiction involved in the process of transfer and/or registration of the Shares, 
including, without limitation, custodians, registrars and clearing houses to perform their duties 
in a timely manner or (e) any prevailing market conditions which in the good faith opinion of 
the Calculation Agent should be characterised as such. For the purpose of this definition, a 
limitation on the hours and number of days of trading of the Shares if it results from an 
announced change in the regular business hours of any Exchange or Related Exchange shall not 
constitute a Market Disruption Event. 

"Maturity Date" means the later of (a) the Scheduled Maturity Date and (b) two Business Days 
following the date on which the Calculation Agent determines the Final Redemption Amount. 
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"Merger Date" means, in respect of a Merger Event, the closing date of such Merger Event or, 
where the Calculation Agent determines that a closing date cannot be determined under the local 
law applicable to such Merger Event, such other date as determined by the Calculation Agent. 

"Merger Event" means, in respect of the Shares, any (a) reclassification or change of the Shares 
that results in a transfer of or an irrevocable commitment to transfer all of such Shares 
outstanding, to another entity or person, (b) consolidation, amalgamation, merger or binding 
share exchange of the Share Issuer with or into another entity or person (other than a 
consolidation, amalgamation, merger or binding share exchange in which the Share Issuer is the 
continuing entity and which does not result in reclassification or change of all of the Shares 
outstanding) or (c) takeover offer, tender offer, exchange offer, solicitation, proposal or other 
event by any entity or person to purchase or otherwise obtain 100 per cent. of the outstanding 
Shares of the Share Issuer that results in a transfer of or an irrevocable commitment to transfer 
all such Shares (other than such Shares owned or controlled by such other entity or person), or 
(d) consolidation, amalgamation, merger or binding share exchange of the Share Issuer or its 
subsidiaries with or into another entity in which the Share Issuer is the continuing entity and 
which does not result in a reclassification or change of all such Shares outstanding but results 
in the outstanding Shares (other than Shares owned or controlled by such other entity) 
immediately prior to such event collectively representing less than 50 per cent. of the 
outstanding Shares immediately following such event, in each case if the Merger Date is on or 
before the last Valuation Date in the Valuation Period. 

"Noteholder(s)" has the meanings given in Condition 1(g). 

"Notes" has the meaning given in Condition 1(b) and construed in accordance with Condition 
15 (Further Issues) (as applicable). 

"Notes Linked to Saudi Shares" means Notes linked to Shares which are listed on the Saudi 
Stock Exchange (Tadawul).  

"Number of Notes" means the initial aggregate principal amount of Notes, plus the initial 
aggregate principal amount of any Notes issued pursuant to Condition 15 (Further Issues), 
divided by the Specified Denomination, and subject to adjustment in accordance with the 
Conditions. 

"Number of Shares per Note" has the meaning given in Condition 5(a). 

"Outstanding Number of Notes" means the Number of Notes as reduced at any date by the 
number of Notes which have been repurchased and cancelled.  

"Paid Amount" has the meaning given in Condition 4(a). 

"Payment Day" means any day which is: 

(i) either (1) in relation to any sum payable in a Settlement Currency other than euro, a day 
on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments and are open 
for general business (including dealing in foreign exchange and foreign currency 
deposits) in the principal financial centre of the country of the relevant Settlement 
Currency (which shall, if the Settlement Currency is Australian dollars or New Zealand 
dollars, be Sydney or Auckland respectively) or (2) in relation to any sum payable in 
euro, a day on which the TARGET2 System is open; and 

(ii) a day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments and are 
open for general business (including dealings in foreign exchange and foreign currency 
deposits) in each Additional Payment Financial Centre specified in the applicable Pricing 
Supplement and (A) in the relevant place of presentation of the Notes if the Notes are 
expressed to be in definitive form, or (B) a day on which each Clearing System is open 
for business if the Notes are expressed to be in global form. 

"Permanent Global Note" has the meaning given in Condition 2(b)(ii). 

"Potential Adjustment Event" means with respect to the Share Issuer, any of the following: 
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(i) a subdivision, consolidation or reclassification of relevant Shares (unless resulting in a 
Merger Event), or a free distribution or dividend of Shares to existing holders by way of 
bonus, capitalisation or similar issue; 

(ii) a distribution, issue or dividend to existing holders of the Shares of (1) such Shares or 
(2) other share capital or securities granting the right to payment of dividends and/or the 
proceeds of liquidation of the Share Issuer equally or proportionately with such payments 
to holders of the Shares, or (3) share capital or other securities of another issuer acquired 
or owned (directly or indirectly) by the Share Issuer as a result of a spin-off or other 
similar transaction, or (4) any other type of securities, rights or certificates or other assets, 
in any case for payment (cash or other consideration) at less than the prevailing market 
price as determined by the Issuer; 

(iii) the declaration by the Share Issuer of an extraordinary dividend, the characterisation of 
which shall be determined by the Calculation Agent; 

(iv) a dividend or distribution other than a cash dividend; 

(v) a call by it in respect of Shares that are not fully paid; 

(vi) a repurchase by it or any of its subsidiaries of its Shares whether out of profits or capital 
and whether the consideration for such repurchase is cash, securities or otherwise; or 

(vii) an event that results in any shareholder rights being distributed or becoming separated 
from shares of common stock or other shares of the capital stock of the Share Issuer 
pursuant to a shareholder rights plan or arrangement directed against hostile takeovers 
that provides upon the occurrence of certain events for a distribution of preferred stock, 
certificates, debt instruments or stock rights at a price below their market value, as 
determined by the Issuer, provided that any adjustment effected as a result of such an 
event shall be readjusted upon any redemption of such rights; or 

(viii) any other event that may have a diluting or concentrative effect on the value of the 
Shares. 

"Programme" has the meaning given in Condition 1(a). 

"Redemption Exchange Rate" means, in respect of each Share and the related Final Sale Price, 
the prevailing spot rate on or about the date on which the Calculation Agent determines such 
Final Sale Price for converting such Final Sale Price into the Settlement Currency (whether 
directly or via one or more Intermediate Currencies). 

"Reference Currency(ies)" has the meaning given in Condition 7 (FX Disruption Condition). 

"Reference Jurisdiction" means the jurisdiction specified as such in the Pricing Supplement.  

"Register" has the meaning given in Condition 2(c). 

"Registered Notes" has the meaning given in Condition 1(b)(iv). 

"Regulation S" means Regulation S under the Securities Act. 

"Related Exchange(s)" means the Related Exchange(s), if any, as specified in the Pricing 
Supplement, or such other options or futures exchange(s) as the Issuer may, acting upon the 
instructions of the Calculation Agent, select and notify to Noteholders, or, in any such case, any 
transferee or successor exchange. 

"Scheduled Closing Time" means, in respect of an Exchange or Related Exchange and a 
Scheduled Trading Day, the scheduled weekday closing time of such Exchange or Related 
Exchange on such Scheduled Trading Day, without regard to after hours or any other trading 
outside the regular trading session hours. 
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"Scheduled Maturity Date" means the date specified as such in the applicable Pricing 
Supplement, or if no such date is specified, the date which falls two Business Days after the 
Scheduled Valuation Date. 

"Scheduled Trading Day" means any day on which each Exchange is scheduled to be open for 
trading for its regular trading session. 

"Scheduled Valuation Date" has the meaning given in the definition of "Valuation Date" 
below. 

"Securities Act" means the US Securities Act of 1933, as amended. 

"Series" has the meaning given in Condition 1(c). 

"Settlement Currency" has the meaning given in Condition 7 (FX Disruption Condition).  

"Shares" means the shares specified in the Pricing Supplement. Any reference to a "Share" 
shall be deemed to be to one unit of the Shares. 

"Share Issuer" means the entity specified as such in the Pricing Supplement.  

"Share Price" means, in respect of a Share, an amount certified by the Calculation Agent as the 
price at which a Hypothetical Investor could have sold such Share on the Exchange during the 
Valuation Period, provided that if, due to the occurrence of one or more Market Disruption 
Events or any other reason the Calculation Agent determines in its sole and absolute discretion 
that a Hypothetical Investor could not have sold all of the Aggregate Number of Shares during 
the period of 180 calendar days from the Valuation Date, the Share Price of each such unsold 
Share shall be determined by the Calculation Agent in its sole and absolute discretion (for the 
avoidance of doubt, in such case, the determination of the Share Price shall take into account 
the Market Disruption Event or other reason why the Share remains unsold, and could be as low 
as zero). 

"Specified Denomination" means the denomination specified as such in the relevant Pricing 
Supplement.  

"TARGET2 System" means the Trans-European Automated Real-time Gross Settlement 
Express Transfer payment system which utilises a single shared platform and which was 
launched on 19 November 2007. 

"Taxation" means (a) all withholding taxes, capital gains taxes and other duties and taxes 
whatsoever in effect which may be incurred by a Hypothetical Investor, the Issuer or any 
Affiliate as a result of, or in connection with, the holding of and/or selling of and/or realising 
any Shares and/or Hedge Position, as determined by the Calculation Agent, assuming such 
Hypothetical Investor owned the Shares from the Trade Date, and (b) stamp duties or increases 
introduced in the rates of stamp duties with respect to the Shares in effect or after the Trade 
Date.  

"Temporary Global Note" has the meaning given in Condition 2(b)(ii). 

"Tender Offer" means, in respect of the Shares, a takeover offer, tender offer, exchange offer, 
solicitation, proposal or other event by any entity or person that results in such entity or person 
purchasing, or otherwise obtaining or having the right to obtain, by conversion or other means, 
more than ten per cent. and less than 100 per cent. of the outstanding voting Shares of the Share 
Issuer, as determined by the Calculation Agent, based upon the making of filings with 
governmental or self-regulatory agencies or such other information as the Calculation Agent 
deems in its determination relevant. 

"Tender Offer Date" means, in respect of a Tender Offer, the date on which voting Shares in 
the amount of the applicable percentage threshold are actually purchased or otherwise obtained 
(as determined by the Calculation Agent). 

"Trade Date" means the date specified as such in the Pricing Supplement.  
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"Trading Disruption" means, in respect of the Shares, any suspension of or limitation imposed 
on trading (i) by the relevant Exchange or Related Exchange or otherwise and whether by reason 
of movements in price exceeding limits permitted by the relevant Exchange or Related 
Exchange or otherwise, or (ii) in futures or options contracts relating to the Shares. 

"Tranche" has the meaning given in Condition 1(c). 

"US Person" means, save as otherwise provided, a person who is either a "US person" as defined 
in Regulation S or a "United States person" as defined in the US Internal Revenue Code of 1986 
(the "Code") and US Treasury regulations thereunder. 

"US Source Income" means income that is treated for US income tax purposes as being from 
sources within the United States. 

"United States" means the United States of America, its territories and possessions, any State 
of the United States and the District of Columbia.  

"Valuation Date" means: 

(i) in respect of the determination of the Final Redemption Amount, the date specified as 
such in the relevant Pricing Supplement; or 

(ii) in respect of the determination of the Early Redemption, the date following as soon as 
practicable after the Calculation Agent has become aware of the event leading to the 
early redemption of the Notes, 

(each such date, the "Scheduled Valuation Date") provided that if any such day is not an 
Exchange Business Day, the next succeeding Exchange Business Day. 

"Valuation Period" means the period commencing on (and including) the Valuation Date and 
ending on (and including) the Exchange Business Day immediately following the date on which 
(as determined by the Calculation Agent in its discretion) a Hypothetical Investor would have 
completed the sale of the Aggregate Number of Shares. 

"Valuation Period End Date" means the last date of the Valuation Period. 
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FORM OF PRICING SUPPLEMENT FOR NOTES 

[ISIN: []] 
[Common Code: []] 

 

PRICING SUPPLEMENT 

EFG-HERMES MENA SECURITIES LIMITED 

(registered as a limited liability company in the British Virgin Islands under No. 1424759) 

The Base Listing Particulars (as completed by this Pricing Supplement) have been prepared on the basis 
that any offer of Notes in (a) any Member State of the European Economic Area ("EEA") will be made 
pursuant to an exemption under Regulation (EU) 2017/1129, as amended (the "EU Prospectus 
Regulation") from the requirement to publish a prospectus for offers of the Notes and (b) the United 
Kingdom will be made pursuant to an exemption under Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 as it forms part of 
UK domestic law by virtue of the European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018 (as amended, "EUWA") and 
regulations thereunder (as amended, the "UK Prospectus Regulation") from the requirement to publish 
a prospectus for offers of the Notes.  Accordingly any person making or intending to make an offer in a 
Member State of the EEA or the United Kingdom of the Notes may only do so in circumstances in which 
no obligation arises for the Issuer or the Dealer to publish a prospectus pursuant to Article 3 of the EU 
Prospectus Regulation or Section 85 of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 ("FSMA"), as the 
case may be, in relation to such offer.  None of the Issuer, the Guarantor or the Dealer has authorised, 
nor do they authorise, the making of any offer of Notes in any other circumstances.  

Warning: Neither this Pricing Supplement nor the Base Listing Particulars constitute a "prospectus" for 
the purposes of Article 8 of the EU Prospectus Regulation and/or the UK Prospectus Regulation, and the 
Pricing Supplement and the Base Listing Particulars have been prepared on the basis that no prospectus 
shall be required under the EU Prospectus Regulation and/or the UK Prospectus Regulation in relation 
to any Notes be offered and sold under hereby. 

[Prohibition of Sales to EEA Retail Investors: The Notes are not intended to be offered, sold or 
otherwise made available to and should not be offered, sold or otherwise made available to any retail 
investor in the EEA. For these purposes, a retail investor means a person who is one (or more) of: (i) a 
retail client as defined in point (11) of Article 4(1) of Directive 2014/65/EU (as amended, "MiFID II") 
or (ii) a customer within the meaning of Directive (EU) 2016/97, where that customer would not qualify 
as a professional client as defined in point (10) of Article 4(1) of MiFID II; or (iii) not a qualified investor 
as defined in the EU Prospectus Regulation. Consequently no key information document required by 
Regulation (EU) No 1286/2014 (as amended, the "EU PRIIPs Regulation") for offering or selling the 
Notes or otherwise making them available to retail investors in the EEA has been prepared and therefore 
offering or selling the Notes or otherwise making them available to any retail investor in the EEA may 
be unlawful under the PRIIPS Regulation.] 

[Prohibition of Sales to UK Retail Investors: The Notes are not intended to be offered, sold or 
otherwise made available to and should not be offered, sold or otherwise made available to any retail 
investor in the United Kingdom. For these purposes, a retail investor means a person who is one (or 
more) of: (i) a retail client, as defined in point (8) of Article 2 of Regulation (EU) No 2017/565 as it 
forms part of UK domestic law by virtue of the EUWA; (ii) a customer within the meaning of the 
provisions of the FSMA and any rules or regulations made under the FSMA to implement Directive (EU) 
2016/97, where that customer would not qualify as a professional client, as defined in point (8) of Article 
2(1) of Regulation (EU) No 600/2014 as it forms part of UK domestic law by virtue of the EUWA; or 
(iii) not a qualified investor as defined in Article 2 of the UK Prospectus Regulation. Consequently no 
key information document required by Regulation (EU) No 1286/2014 as it forms part of UK domestic 
law by virtue of the EUWA (as amended, the "UK PRIIPs Regulation") for offering or selling the Notes 
or otherwise making them available to retail investors in the United Kingdom has been prepared and 
therefore offering or selling the Notes or otherwise making them available to any retail investor in the 
United Kingdom may be unlawful under the UK PRIIPs Regulation.] 

Series [] 
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[ISSUE AMOUNT]1 Notes linked to [Share Issuer] due [YEAR OF MATURITY] 

In respect of which payment obligations of EFG–Hermes MENA Securities Limited and guaranteed by 
EFG–Hermes Holding S.A.E. 

(registered as an Egyptian Joint Stock Company under No. 12665) 

Issue Price: [] per Note 

Pricing Supplement dated [] 

 
1  If the Settlement Currency is a currency other than Euro and the Denomination is less than an integral amount, Euroclear and Clearstream 

will not clear the relevant Notes unless they are booked "nominally" (or "unitarily").  To achieve this, the name of the Notes must be 

expressed a number of securities (as opposed to an aggregate nominal amount) and the issue price must be expressed as a monetary 

amount (and not a percentage). 
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PART A – CONTRACTUAL TERMS 

[Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Terms and Conditions 
of the Notes set forth in the base listing particulars dated 4 February 2021 [(as supplemented by the 
Supplement[s] dated [])] (the "General Terms and Conditions") ([as so supplemented,] the "Base 
Listing Particulars")]. This document constitutes the Pricing Supplement of the Notes described herein, 
and must be read in conjunction with the Base Listing Particulars. Full information on the Issuer, the 
Guarantor, and the offer of the Notes is only available on the basis of the combination of this Pricing 
Supplement and the Base Listing Particulars. The Base Listing Particulars [(including the Supplement[s] 
thereto)] [is] [are] available for viewing during normal business hours on any business day (except 
Fridays, Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays) at the registered offices of the Issuer, the Guarantor, the 
Fiscal Agent, the Transfer Agent and the Registrar specified therein and in electronic form on Euronext 
Dublin's website (www.ise.ie). [The Pricing Supplement is available for viewing in electronic form on 
Euronext Dublin's website (www.ise.ie) (include only for listed notes).] 

[The following alternative language applies if the first tranche of an issue which is being increased was 
issued under a Base Listing Particulars with an earlier date.] 

[Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Terms and Conditions 
of the Notes set forth in the base listing particulars dated [27 January 2014/27 January 2015/1 February 
2016/1 February 2017/5 February 2018/5 February 2019/4 February 2020] [as supplemented by the 
Supplement[s] dated []](the "General Terms and Conditions") ([as so supplemented,] the "Original 
Base Listing Particulars"). This document constitutes the Pricing Supplement of the Notes described 
herein, and must be read in conjunction with the base listing particulars dated 4 February 2021 [as 
supplemented by the Supplement[s] dated []] ([as so supplemented,] the "Base Listing Particulars"), 
save in respect of the Conditions which are extracted from the Original Base Listing Particulars and 
which are incorporated by reference into the Base Listing Particulars. Full information on the Issuer, the 
Guarantor, and the offer of the Notes is only available on the basis of the combination of this Pricing 
Supplement and the Base Listing Particulars. The Original Base Listing Particulars [(including the 
Supplement[s] thereto)] and the Base Listing Particulars [(including the Supplement[s] thereto)] are 
available for viewing during normal business hours on any business day (except Fridays, Saturdays, 
Sundays and legal holidays) at the registered offices of the Issuer, the Guarantor, the Fiscal Agent, the 
Transfer Agent and the Registrar specified therein and in electronic form on Euronext Dublin's website 
(www.ise.ie). [The Pricing Supplement is available for viewing in electronic form on Euronext Dublin's 
website (www.ise.ie) (include only for listed notes).] 

In the event of any inconsistency between the Pricing Supplement and the General Terms and Conditions, 
the Pricing Supplement will prevail. 

[Include whichever of the following apply or specify as "Not Applicable". Note that the numbering should 
remain as set out below, even if "Not Applicable" is indicated for individual paragraphs or sub-
paragraphs. Italics denote guidance for completing the Pricing Supplement.] 

1 Issue: Notes linked to [ordinary] [preference] shares of 
[SHARE ISSUER] 

 (i) Series Number: [] 

 (ii) Tranche Number: [] 

  [If fungible with an existing Series, provide details, 
including the date on which the Notes become 
fungible.] 

2 Settlement Currency or Currencies: [] 

3 Aggregate Nominal Amount:  

 (i) Series: [] 

 (ii) Tranche: [] 
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4 Issue Price: [[] per cent. of the Aggregate Nominal Amount] OR 
[[US$] [ ] (being [ ] per cent. of the Aggregate 
Nominal Amount)]2 

5 (i) Specified Denomination(s): [] 

 (ii) Calculation Amount: [Specified Denomination] [] 

6 Issue Date: [] 

7 Trade Date: [] 

8 Scheduled Maturity Date: [] [The date which falls two Business Days after the 
Scheduled Valuation Date] 

THE SHARES 

9 Share Issuer: [] 

10 Shares: [The Shares to which the Notes are linked]  

  The [ordinary] [preference] shares of the Share Issuer. 
Further information on the Shares, including 
information on their past and further performance, can 
be found on the website of the Exchange at 
[WEBSITE] under symbol [] (such website does not 
form part of this Pricing Supplement). 

 (i) Bloomberg Code: [] 

 (ii) ISIN: [] 

11 Exchange(s):  [] [The stock exchange(s) on which the Shares are 
listed] 

12 Related Exchange: [] [The stock exchanges on which options and futures 
in the Shares are traded.] [Not Applicable] 

13 Initial Fixing Date: [] 

 Initial Price: [] [The volume-weighted price per Share on the Initial 
Fixing Date] 

VALUATION PROVISIONS 

14 Final Redemption Amount: As specified in Condition 5(a). 

15 Number of Shares per Note: [] 

16 Final Sale Price: Share Price 

17 Valuation Date: [] [Specify a date not less than two Business Days 
prior to the Scheduled Maturity Date] 

18 Early Redemption Amount: As specified in Condition 5(b). 

 
2  If the Settlement Currency is a currency other than Euro and the Denomination is less than an integral amount, Euroclear and Clearstream 

will not clear the relevant Notes unless they are booked "nominally" (or "unitarily").  To achieve this, the name of the Notes must be 

expressed a number of securities (as opposed to an aggregate nominal amount) and the issue price must be expressed as a monetary 

amount (and not a percentage). 
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ADDITIONAL AMOUNT 

19 Additional Amount: [Applicable] [Not Applicable]  

20 Additional Amount Period: As defined in Condition 21 (Definitions). 

OTHER PROVISIONS 

21 Reference Jurisdiction: [] 

22 (i) Additional Financial Centres 
(for Business Days): 

[] 

 (ii) Additional Payment 
Financial Centre (for 
Payment Days): 

[] 

FORM OF NOTES 

23 Form of Notes: [Bearer Notes / Registered Notes] 

  [Global Note] [Global Certificate] [represented by a 
Temporary Global Note and exchangeable for a 
Permanent Global Note] [represented by a Permanent 
Global Note] and exchangeable for definitive Notes in 
certain limited circumstances. 

DISTRIBUTION 

24 Dealer(s): Financial Brokerage Group 

25 US Selling Restrictions: Notes may not be offered, sold or delivered within the 
United States or to, or for the account or the benefit of, 
a US person (as defined in Regulation S) or a United 
States person (as defined in the Internal Revenue Code 
of 1986) as set forth under the section entitled 
"Transfer Restrictions" in the Base Listing Particulars. 

26 Applicable TEFRA exemption: [TEFRA C applies 3 ] [TEFRA D applies 4 ] [Not 
Applicable5] 

27 Prohibition of Sales to EEA Retail 
Investors: 

[Applicable/Not Applicable] 

(If the Notes clearly do not constitute "packaged" 
products or the Notes do constitute "packaged" 
products and a key information document will be 
prepared in the EEA, "Not Applicable" should be 
specified. If the Notes may constitute "packaged" 
products and no key information document will be 
prepared, "Applicable" should be specified.) 

28 Prohibition of Sales to UK Retail 
Investors: 

[Applicable/Not Applicable] 

(If the Notes clearly do not constitute "packaged" 
products or the Notes do constitute "packaged" 
products and a key information document will be 
prepared in the United Kingdom, "Not Applicable" 

 
3  Specify "TEFRA C applies" for Bearer Notes for which the TEFRA D exemption is not applicable. 

4  Specify "TEFRA D applies" for Bearer Notes as the default position. 

5  Specify "Not Applicable" for Registered Notes. 
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should be specified. If the Notes may constitute 
"packaged" products and no key information document 
will be prepared, "Applicable" should be specified.) 

PURPOSE OF PRICING SUPPLEMENT 

This Pricing Supplement comprises the final terms required for issue [and] [admission to the Official 
List and to trading on the Global Exchange Market of Euronext Dublin] of the Notes described herein 
pursuant to the Securitised Holding Abwab Market Access Listed (SHAMAL) Notes Programme of the 
Issuer. 

RESPONSIBILITY 

The Issuer and the Guarantor accept responsibility for the information contained in this Pricing 
Supplement. 
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Signed on behalf of the Issuer: 

 

By: ________________________ 
 Duly authorised 

 

By: ________________________ 
 Duly authorised 

 

Signed on behalf of the Guarantor: 

 

By: ________________________ 
 Duly authorised 

 

By: ________________________ 
 Duly authorised 
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PART B – OTHER INFORMATION 

1. Listing and Admission to Trading 

[Application [will be/has been] made to Euronext Dublin for the Notes to be admitted to the 
Official List and to trading on the Global Exchange Market of Euronext Dublin with effect from, 
at the earliest, the Issue Date. 

No assurances can be given that such application for admission to trading will be granted (or, if 
granted, will be granted by the Issue Date). The Issuer has no duty to maintain the listing of the 
Notes on the Global Exchange Market of Euronext Dublin over their entire lifetime. Notes may 
be suspended from trading and/or de-listed at any time in accordance with the rules and 
regulations of the Global Exchange Market of Euronext Dublin] [Not Applicable].  

2. Post-Issuance Information 

The Issuer and the Guarantor will not provide any post-issuance information with respect to the 
Notes or the Shares unless required to do so by applicable law or regulations.   

3. Clearing System 

[The clearing system for the Notes is] [Euroclear] [Clearstream, Luxembourg] [Not Applicable].   

ISIN:  

Common Code: 

4. Names/Addresses of agents  

The Calculation Agent 
 
EFG-Hermes UAE Limited 
Office 301, The Exchange 
Dubai International Financial Centre 
P.O. Box 30727 
Dubai 
United Arab Emirates 
 
The Fiscal Agent  
 
Deutsche Bank AG, London Branch 
Winchester House 
1 Great Winchester Street 
London 
EC2N 2DB 
England 
 
The Transfer Agent  
 
Deutsche Bank Luxembourg S.A. 
2 Boulevard Konrad Adenauer 
L-1115 Luxembourg 
Attn: CTAS-GTO/EFG Hermes 
Fax: +352 473136  
 
Listing Agent 
 
Arthur Cox Listing Services Limited 
Ten Earlsfort Terrace 
Dublin 
DO2 T380  
Ireland 
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BUY-BACK PROVISIONS 

The Issuer may agree with investors in relation to a particular issuance of Notes that the "Buy-back 
Provisions" apply. In such case, the following terms and conditions shall apply: 

To the extent that, and for so long as the Calculation Agent determines (in its sole and absolute discretion) 
that normal market conditions exist the Issuer shall, during local market hours in the Reference 
Jurisdiction on each Business Day from, and including, the Issue Date to, but excluding, the Valuation 
Date, provide at a Noteholder's request indicative bid and ask prices in respect of the Notes as soon as 
reasonably practicable following receipt of such request by the Issuer.  For the avoidance of doubt, such 
bid and ask prices are for indicative purposes only, and are subject to change in accordance with normal 
market movements.  

In addition, to the extent that, and for so long as the Calculation Agent determines (in its sole and absolute 
discretion) that normal market conditions exist, the Issuer shall, following a request from a Noteholder 
received by the Issuer during the normal local market hours on any Business Day from, and including, 
the Issue Date to, but excluding, the Valuation Date, accept a sale order (a "Buy-back Order") from a 
Noteholder specifying a certain number of Notes to be sold, subject to any specified local price and 
volume conditions, and all applicable laws and regulations. The price at which the Issuer fills such Buy-
back Order and purchases such Notes from such Noteholder will reflect (i) the price which the Hedge 
Counterparty would receive on an unwind of a portion of the Hedge Position which corresponds to the 
number of Notes specified in the Buy-back Order and (ii) the Applicable Exchange Rate at such time. 
Any Buy-back Order will therefore reflect the market conditions at such time, the liquidity of the Notes 
at such time, any conditions specified in any relevant order from a Noteholder and the Applicable 
Exchange Rate at such time. Any Buy-back Order shall be executed in good faith and a commercially 
reasonable manner, based on the factors described below.   

If the Calculation Agent considers (in its sole and absolute discretion) that market conditions make it 
impossible or impracticable to provide an indicative bid or ask price and/or to accept or execute a Buy-
back Order, then the Issuer's related obligations hereunder shall be postponed to the following Business 
Day on which the Calculation Agent (in its sole and absolute discretion) determines that such market 
conditions have ceased to exist and that it considers it possible and practicable to determine such 
indicative bid and ask prices or to accept or execute such Buy-back Order, as the case may be. For the 
avoidance of doubt, such market conditions could continue until the Maturity Date of the Notes. 
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FORM OF EFG-HERMES HOLDING S.A.E. GUARANTEE  

The following is the form of guarantee given by EFG-Hermes Holding S.A.E. in respect of Notes issued 
by EFG-Hermes MENA Securities Limited under the Programme (as may be supplemented and/or 
amended and/or replaced under the Programme from time to time). 

THIS DEED OF GUARANTEE is made on 4 February 2021 

BY 

(1) EFG-HERMES HOLDING S.A.E. (the "Guarantor") 

IN FAVOUR OF 

(2) THE NOTEHOLDERS (as defined in the Conditions set out in the Base Listing Particulars 
described below); and 

(3) THE ACCOUNTHOLDERS (as defined in the Deed of Covenant described below) (together 
with the Noteholders, the "Beneficiaries" and each, a "Beneficiary"). 

WHEREAS 

(A) EFG-Hermes MENA Securities Limited (the "Issuer") and the Guarantor have established a 
Securitised Holding Abwab Market Access Listed (SHAMAL) Notes Programme (the 
"Programme") in connection with which they have entered into an amended and restated dealer 
agreement dated on or about the date hereof (as may be supplemented and/or replaced from time 
to time, the "Dealer Agreement") and an amended and restated agency agreement dated on or 
about the date hereof (as may be supplemented and/or replaced from time to time, the "Agency 
Agreement") and the Issuer has executed a deed of covenant dated on or about the date hereof 
(as may be supplemented and/or replaced from time to time, the "Deed of Covenant"). 

(B) Application has been made for notes (the "Notes") issued under the Programme on and during 
the period of 12 months after the date of approval of such application to be admitted to the 
Official List and to trading on the Global Exchange Market of the Irish Stock Exchange plc, 
trading as Euronext Dublin ("Euronext Dublin"). The Global Exchange Market is the exchange 
regulated market of Euronext Dublin and is not a regulated market for the purposes of Directive 
2014/65/EU (as amended, "MiFID II") or a UK regulated market for the purposes of Regulation 
(EU) No 600/2014 as it forms part of UK domestic law by virtue of the European Union 
(Withdrawal) Act 2018 (as amended, "EUWA") (as amended, the "UK MiFIR"). Notes may 
also be issued on the basis that they will not be admitted to listing, trading and/or quotation by 
any competent authority, stock exchange and/or quotation system or that they will be admitted 
to listing, trading and/or quotation by such other or further competent authorities, stock 
exchanges and/or quotation systems as may be agreed with the Issuer. 

(C) Notes may be issued pursuant to the Base Listing Particulars describing the Programme and 
Pricing Supplement describing the final terms of the particular Tranche of Notes. 

(D) The Guarantor has guaranteed the payment of all sums expressed to be payable from time to 
time by the Issuer to Noteholders in respect of the Notes and to Accountholders in respect of 
the Deed of Covenant by a deed dated 16 November 2009 (the "Original Guarantee") and, 
subsequently, by a deed dated 12 November 2010, a deed dated 25 October 2011, a deed dated 
26 October 2012, a deed dated 23 October 2013, a deed dated 27 January 2014, a deed dated 5 
February 2019 and a deed dated 4 February 2020 (each an "Amended Guarantee"). 

(E) The Guarantor wishes to grant this new Deed of Guarantee in respect of all Notes issued under 
the Programme on or after the date hereof (subject to replacement by a subsequent guarantee 
pursuant to clause 1.6 (Benefit of Deed of Guarantee) hereof), and also wishes that all Notes 
issued under the Programme which are issued and outstanding as at the date hereof shall also 
have the benefit of this new Deed of Guarantee subject to the terms and conditions set out herein.   

NOW THIS DEED OF GUARANTEE WITNESSES as follows: 
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1. INTERPRETATION 

1.1 Definitions 

All terms and expressions which have defined meanings in the Conditions, the Dealer 
Agreement, the Agency Agreement or the Deed of Covenant shall have the same meanings in 
this Deed of Guarantee except where the context requires otherwise or unless otherwise stated. 

1.2 Clauses 

Any reference in this Deed of Guarantee to a clause is, unless otherwise stated, to a clause of 
this Deed of Guarantee. 

1.3 Other agreements 

All references in this Deed of Guarantee to an agreement, instrument or other document 
(including the Base Listing Particulars, the Dealer Agreement, the Agency Agreement and the 
Deed of Covenant) shall be construed as a reference to that agreement, instrument or other 
document as the same may be amended, supplemented, restated, extended, replaced or novated 
from time to time. In addition, in the context of any particular Tranche of Notes, each reference 
in this Deed of Guarantee to the Base Listing Particulars shall be construed as a reference to the 
Base Listing Particulars as completed by the relevant Pricing Supplement. 

1.4 Legislation 

Any reference in this Deed of Guarantee to any legislation (whether primary legislation or 
regulations or other subsidiary legislation made pursuant to primary legislation) shall be 
construed as a reference to such legislation as the same may have been, or may from time to 
time be, amended or re-enacted. 

1.5 Headings 

Headings and sub-headings are for ease of reference only and shall not affect the construction 
of this Deed of Guarantee. 

1.6 Benefit of Deed of Guarantee 

Any Notes issued under the Programme on or after the date of this Deed of Guarantee shall have 
the benefit of this Deed of Guarantee but shall not have the benefit of any subsequent guarantee 
relating to the Programme (unless expressly so provided in any such subsequent guarantee). 

Any Notes issued under the Programme which are issued and outstanding as at the date hereof 
("Outstanding Notes") shall also have the benefit of this Deed of Guarantee (and for the 
avoidance of doubt and, pursuant to clause 12 (Arbitration) of this Deed of Guarantee, any 
disputes arising out of or in connection with this Deed of Guarantee shall be referred to and 
finally resolved by arbitration under the Rules of the London Court of International Arbitration).  
For the further avoidance of doubt, the Guarantor acknowledges and affirms that the Original 
Guarantee and each Amended Guarantee remains valid in respect of Outstanding Notes (as 
applicable), and affirms that: (a) pursuant to clause 11.2 (Jurisdiction) of the Original 
Guarantee, the courts of England have jurisdiction to settle disputes arising out of or in 
connection with the Original Guarantee; and (b) pursuant to clause 12 (Arbitration) of each 
Amended Guarantee, any disputes arising out of or in connection with such Amended Guarantee 
shall be referred to and finally resolved by arbitration under the Rules of the London Court of 
International Arbitration. Subject to the next sentence, the Guarantor waives any objection to 
valid claims in respect of Outstanding Notes being brought under the Original Guarantee, each 
Amended Guarantee or under this Deed of Guarantee.  However, it shall be a condition of any 
claim being validly made under this Deed of Guarantee that no claim has been or will be made 
for the same amount or in respect of the same loss under the Original Guarantee or under any 
Amended Guarantee by the relevant Noteholder or Accountholder in respect of the relevant 
Notes.  The acknowledgements, affirmations, waivers and statements for the avoidance of doubt 
in this clause 1.6 of this Deed of Guarantee are all subject to the provisos that a Noteholder or 
an Accountholder (i) may not make claims outstanding for the same amount or loss in relation 
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to the relevant Notes under any two or more of the Original Guarantee, any Amended Guarantee 
and this Deed of Guarantee and (ii) is not entitled to recover more than once in respect of the 
same amount or loss in respect of the relevant Notes. 

2. GUARANTEE AND INDEMNITY 

2.1 Guarantee 

The Guarantor hereby unconditionally and irrevocably guarantees: 

(a) The Notes: to each Noteholder the due and punctual payment of all sums from time to 
time payable by the Issuer in respect of the relevant Note as and when the same become 
due and payable and accordingly undertakes to pay to such Noteholder, forthwith upon 
the demand of such Noteholder and in the manner and currency prescribed by the 
Conditions of such Note for payments by the Issuer in respect of such Note, any and 
every sum or sums which the Issuer is at any time liable to pay in respect of such Note 
and which the Issuer has failed to pay; and 

(b) The Direct Rights: to each Accountholder the due and punctual payment of all sums from 
time to time payable by the Issuer to such Accountholder in respect of the Direct Rights 
as and when the same become due and payable and accordingly undertakes to pay to 
such Accountholder, forthwith upon the demand of such Accountholder and in the 
manner and currency prescribed by the Conditions of the relevant Notes for payments by 
the Issuer in respect of the Notes, any and every sum or sums which the Issuer is at any 
time liable to pay to such Accountholder in respect of the Notes and which the Issuer has 
failed to pay. 

2.2 Indemnity 

The Guarantor irrevocably and unconditionally agrees as a primary obligation to indemnify each 
Beneficiary from time to time, forthwith upon demand by such Beneficiary, from and against 
any loss, liability or cost incurred by such Beneficiary as a result of any of the obligations of the 
Issuer under or pursuant to any Note, the Deed of Covenant or any provision thereof being or 
becoming void, voidable, unenforceable or ineffective for any reason whatsoever, whether or 
not known to such Beneficiary or any other person, the amount of such loss being the amount 
which such Beneficiary would otherwise have been entitled to recover from the Issuer. Any 
amount payable pursuant to this indemnity shall be payable in the manner and currency 
prescribed by the Conditions of the relevant Notes for payments by the Issuer in respect of the 
Notes. This indemnity constitutes a separate and independent obligation from the other 
obligations under this Deed of Guarantee and shall give rise to a separate and independent cause 
of action. 

3. COMPLIANCE WITH THE CONDITIONS 

The Guarantor covenants in favour of each Beneficiary in respect of Notes that it will duly 
perform and comply with the obligations expressed to be undertaken by it in the Conditions of 
such Notes. 

4. PRESERVATION OF RIGHTS 

4.1 Principal obligor 

The obligations of the Guarantor hereunder shall be deemed to be undertaken as principal 
obligor and not merely as surety. 

4.2 Continuing obligations 

The obligations of the Guarantor herein contained shall constitute and be continuing obligations 
notwithstanding any settlement of account or other matter or thing whatsoever and shall not be 
considered satisfied by any intermediate payment or satisfaction of all or any of the Issuer's 
obligations under or in respect of any Note or the Deed of Covenant and shall continue in full 
force and effect for so long as the Programme remains in effect and thereafter until all sums due 
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from the Issuer in respect of the Notes and under the Deed of Covenant have been paid, and all 
other actual or contingent obligations of the Issuer thereunder or in respect thereof have been 
satisfied, in full. 

4.3 Obligations not discharged 

Neither the obligations of the Guarantor contained in this Deed of Guarantee nor the rights, 
powers and remedies conferred upon the Beneficiaries by this Deed of Guarantee or by law shall 
be discharged, impaired or otherwise affected by: 

(a) Winding-up: the winding-up, dissolution, administration, re-organisation or moratorium 
of the Issuer or any change in its status, function, control or ownership; 

(b) Illegality: any of the obligations of the Issuer under or in respect of any Note or the Deed 
of Covenant being or becoming illegal, invalid, unenforceable or ineffective in any 
respect; 

(c) Indulgence: time or other indulgence (including for the avoidance of doubt, any 
composition) being granted or agreed to be granted to the Issuer in respect of any of its 
obligations under or in respect of any Note or the Deed of Covenant; 

(d) Amendment: any amendment, novation, supplement, extension, (whether of maturity or 
otherwise) or restatement (in each case, however fundamental and of whatsoever nature) 
or replacement, waiver or release of, any obligation of the Issuer under or in respect of 
any Note or the Deed of Covenant or any security or other guarantee or indemnity in 
respect thereof including, without limitation, any change in the purposes for which the 
proceeds of the issue of any Note are to be applied and any extension of or any increase 
of the obligations of the Issuer in respect of any Note or the addition of any new 
obligations for the Issuer under the Deed of Covenant; or  

(e) Analogous events: any other act, event or omission which, but for this clause 4.3, might 
operate to discharge, impair or otherwise affect the obligations expressed to be assumed 
by the Guarantor herein or any of the rights, powers or remedies conferred upon the 
Beneficiaries or any of them by this Deed of Guarantee or by law. 

4.4 Settlement conditional 

Any settlement or discharge between the Guarantor and the Beneficiaries or any of them shall 
be conditional upon no payment to the Beneficiaries or any of them by the Issuer or any other 
person on the Issuer's behalf being avoided or reduced by virtue of any laws relating to 
bankruptcy, insolvency, liquidation or similar laws of general application for the time being in 
force and, in the event of any such payment being so avoided or reduced, the Beneficiaries shall 
be entitled to recover the amount by which such payment is so avoided or reduced from the 
Guarantor subsequently as if such settlement or discharge had not occurred. 

4.5 Exercise of Rights 

No Beneficiary shall be obliged before exercising any of the rights, powers or remedies 
conferred upon it by this Deed of Guarantee or by law: 

(a) Demand: to make any demand of the Issuer, save for the presentation of the relevant 
Note; 

(b) Take action: to take any action or obtain judgment in any court against the Issuer; or 

(c) Claim or proof: to make or file any claim or proof in a winding-up or dissolution of the 
Issuer, 

and (save as aforesaid) the Guarantor hereby expressly waives presentment, demand, protest 
and notice of dishonour in respect of any Note. 

4.6 Deferral of Guarantor's rights 
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The Guarantor agrees that, so long as any sums are or may be owed by the Issuer in respect of 
any Note or under the Deed of Covenant or the Issuer is under any other actual or contingent 
obligation thereunder or in respect thereof, the Guarantor will not exercise any rights which the 
Guarantor may at any time have by reason of the performance by the Guarantor of its obligations 
hereunder: 

(a) Indemnity: to be indemnified by the Issuer; 

(b) Contribution: to claim any contribution from any other guarantor of the Issuer's 
obligations under or in respect of any Note or the Deed of Covenant; or 

(c) Subrogation: to take the benefit (in whole or in part and whether by way of subrogation 
or otherwise) of any rights of any Beneficiary against the Issuer in respect of amounts 
paid by the Guarantor under this Deed of Guarantee or any security enjoyed in 
connection with any Note or the Deed of Covenant by any Beneficiary. 

4.7 Pari passu ranking 

The Guarantor undertakes that its obligations hereunder will at all times rank at least pari passu 
with all other present and future unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the Guarantor, 
save for such obligations as may be preferred by provisions of law that are both mandatory and 
of general application. 

5. DEPOSIT OF DEED OF GUARANTEE 

This Deed of Guarantee shall be deposited with and held by the Fiscal Agent, for so long as the 
Programme remains in effect and thereafter until the date which is two years after all the 
obligations of the Issuer under or in respect of the Notes (including, without limitation, its 
obligations under the Deed of Covenant) have been discharged in full. The Guarantor hereby 
acknowledges the right of every Beneficiary to the production of this Deed of Guarantee. 

6. STAMP DUTIES 

The Guarantor shall pay all stamp, registration and other taxes and duties (including any interest 
and penalties thereon or in connection therewith) which are payable upon or in connection with 
the execution and delivery of this Deed of Guarantee, and shall indemnify each Beneficiary 
against any claim, demand, action, liability, damages, cost, loss or expense (including, without 
limitation, legal fees and any applicable value added tax) which it incurs as a result or arising 
out of or in relation to any failure to pay or delay in paying any of the same. 

7. BENEFIT OF DEED OF GUARANTEE 

7.1 Deed poll 

This Deed of Guarantee shall take effect as a deed poll for the benefit of the Beneficiaries from 
time to time. 

7.2 Benefit 

This Deed of Guarantee shall enure to the benefit of each Beneficiary and its (and any 
subsequent) successors and assigns, each of which shall be entitled severally to enforce this 
Deed of Guarantee against the Guarantor. 

7.3 Assignment 

The Guarantor shall not be entitled to assign or transfer all or any of its rights, benefits and 
obligations hereunder. Each Beneficiary shall be entitled to assign all or any of its rights and 
benefits hereunder. 

8. PARTIAL INVALIDITY 

If at any time any provision hereof is or becomes illegal, invalid or unenforceable in any respect 
under the laws of any jurisdiction, neither the legality, validity or enforceability of the remaining 
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provisions hereof nor the legality, validity or enforceability of such provision under the laws of 
any other jurisdiction shall in any way be affected or impaired thereby. 

9. NOTICES 

9.1 Address for notices 

All notices, demands and other communications to the Guarantor hereunder shall be made in 
writing (by letter or fax) and shall be sent to the Guarantor at:   

EFG-Hermes Holding S.A.E. 
Building No. B129 
Phase 3, Smart Village 
Km 28 Cairo Alexandria Desert Road 
6 October 12577, Egypt 
Fax: +9714 330 0918 

Attention: Mr Mohamed Aboelkhair 

or to such other address or fax number or for the attention of such other person or department 
as the Guarantor has notified to the relevant Noteholders in the manner prescribed for the giving 
of notices in connection with the relevant Notes. 

9.2 Effectiveness 

Every notice, demand or other communication sent in accordance with clause 9.1 (Address for 
notices) shall be effective upon receipt by the Guarantor; provided that any such notice, demand 
or other communication which would otherwise take effect after 4.00 p.m. on any particular day 
shall not take effect until 10.00 a.m. on the immediately succeeding business day in Cairo. 

10. CURRENCY INDEMNITY 

If any sum due from the Guarantor under this Deed of Guarantee or any order or judgment given 
or made in relation thereto has to be converted from the currency (the "first currency") in which 
the same is payable under this Deed of Guarantee or such order or judgment into another 
currency (the "second currency") for the purpose of (a) making or filing a claim or proof against 
the Guarantor, (b) obtaining an order or judgment in any court or other tribunal or (c) enforcing 
any order or judgment given or made in relation to this Deed of Guarantee, the Guarantor shall 
indemnify each Beneficiary on demand against any loss suffered as a result of any discrepancy 
between (i) the rate of exchange used for such purpose to convert the sum in question from the 
first currency into the second currency and (ii) the rate or rates of exchange at which such 
Beneficiary may in the ordinary course of business purchase the first currency with the second 
currency upon receipt of a sum paid to it in satisfaction, in whole or in part, of any such order, 
judgment, claim or proof. This indemnity constitutes a separate and independent obligation from 
the other obligations under this Deed of Guarantee and shall give rise to a separate and 
independent cause of action. 

11. LAW AND JURISDICTION 

11.1 Governing Law 

This Deed of Guarantee (and any dispute, controversy, proceedings or claim of whatever nature 
arising out of or in any way relating to this Deed of Guarantee or its formation) shall be governed 
by and construed in accordance with English law.  

12. ARBITRATION 

12.1 Any dispute arising out of or in connection with this Deed of Guarantee, including any question 
regarding its existence, validity, formation or termination, shall be referred to and finally 
resolved by arbitration under the Rules of the London Court of International Arbitration, which 
Rules are deemed to be incorporated by reference into this Deed of Guarantee. 
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12.2 The number of arbitrators shall be three. 

12.3 The seat, or legal place, of arbitration shall be London. 

12.4 The language to be used in the arbitral proceedings shall be English. 

13. MODIFICATION 

The Agency Agreement contains provisions for convening meetings of Noteholders to consider 
matters relating to Notes, including the modification of any provision of this Deed of Guarantee. 
Any such modification to the Deed of Guarantee may be made by supplemental deed poll if 
sanctioned by an Extraordinary Resolution and shall be binding on all Beneficiaries. 

IN WITNESS whereof this Deed of Guarantee has been executed by the Guarantor and is intended to 
be and is hereby delivered on the date first before written. 

Executed as a deed and delivered by a duly authorised signatory of 

EFG-HERMES HOLDING S.A.E.  

 

 

-------------------------------------------- 
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INFORMATION ABOUT EFG-HERMES MENA SECURITIES LIMITED 

History, Development and Organisational Structure  

The Issuer's legal and commercial name is EFG-Hermes MENA Securities Limited.  

The Issuer was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, with registered number 1424759 on 9 August 
2007 for an unlimited duration. 

The Issuer was incorporated as a BVI business company with limited liability under the BVI Business 
Companies Act, 2004.  The Issuer's registered office is Kingston Chambers, P.O. Box 173, Road Town, 
Tortola, British Virgin Islands. The Issuer's registered agent is Maples Corporate Services (BVI) Limited 
and the telephone number of its registered agent is +1 284 852 3000. 

The Issuer's objective is to "to carry out any object not prohibited by the BVI Business Companies Act, 
2004 or as the same may be revised from time to time, or any other law of the British Virgin Islands" 
(see article 5 ("General Objects and Powers") of the Memorandum of Association).  The Issuer's 
purpose is to act as the intermediary in dealings in shares and bonds.   

Directors of the Issuer 

The following table lists the members of the Board of Directors (the "Board" and each such member, a 
"Director") of the Issuer as at the date of these Base Listing Particulars and their respective position on 
the Board. 

Name Position 

Ahmed Farahat Ismail Sabry Finance Director – UAE Brokerage Operations of 
the Guarantor. Mr Farahat holds a Bachelor of 
Commerce and business administration degree in 
Accounting from Helwan University, Cairo. 

Mohamed El Wakeel Chief Operating Officer, Markets Operations of 
the Guarantor.  Mr El Wakeel holds a Bachelor of 
Science degree from Ein Shams University, Cairo. 

The business address of Mr. Ahmed Farahat Ismail Sabry is Level 6, The Gate, West Wing, PO Box 
30727, Dubai International Financial Centre, Dubai, United Arab Emirates. 

The business address of Mr. Mohamed El Wakeel is Level 6, The Gate, West Wing, PO Box 30727, 
Dubai International Financial Centre, Dubai, United Arab Emirates. 

There are no principal activities performed by the Directors outside the Issuer which are significant to 
the Issuer, except that Mohamed El Wakeel is a director of Middle East North Africa Investments WLL, 
EFG-Hermes Jordan, OLT Investment International Company (B.S.C.) and Offset Holding Company 
while Ahmed Farahat is a director of Middle East North Africa Investments WLL, EFG Hermes FI 
Limited and EFG-Hermes SP Limited. 

Conflicts of Interest 

There are no conflicts of interest or potential conflicts of interest between any duties which the persons 
listed above are to the Issuer and their private interests or other duties.  

Audit Committee 

The Issuer does not have a separate audit committee.  

Auditors 

KPMG Lower Gulf Limited 
13th floor 
Tower One, Mohammad Bin Rashid Boulevard 
PO Box 3800, Dubai 
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United Arab Emirates 

KPMG Lower Gulf Limited is a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms 
affiliated with KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. KPMG is authorised by The Supervisory Board 
of Public Accountants – Revisorsnämnden (RN), and is a member of FAR SRS.   

Corporate Governance 

The Issuer has adopted corporate governance policies which comply with established and accepted 
principles of corporate governance in the British Virgin Islands. 

Authorised Shares 

The Issuer is authorised to issue a maximum of 50,000 shares of one class with a par value of US$ 0.01 
each. All 50,000 shares are in issue and are fully paid up.  The Issuer does not hold any of its own shares. 

Major Shareholders 

All of the shares in the Issuer are owned by EFG Hermes Advisory Inc.   

There are no measures in place other than statutory measures to ensure that control of the Issuer will not 
be abused. 

Principal Activities and Business of the Issuer 

The primary activity and business of the Issuer is to act as an intermediary in dealings in shares and 
bonds and to issue the Notes under the Programme and enter into the transactions contemplated by the 
Programme. The Issuer's activities are organised and integrated with the businesses of the Guarantor.   

Major Customers, Suppliers or other material dependencies of the Issuer  

See the paragraph entitled "Major Customers, Suppliers or other material dependencies of the 
Guarantor" in the section entitled "Information about EFG-Hermes Holding S.A.E.". 

Security or principal investments by the Issuer 

The Issuer's business involves acting as an intermediary in dealings in shares and bonds, and its business 
forms an integral part of the Guarantor's group business. See the paragraph entitled "Security or principal 
investments by the Guarantor" in the section entitled "Information about EFG-Hermes Holding S.A.E.". 

Trends 

To the knowledge of the Issuer, there are, as at the date of these Base Listing Particulars, no known 
trends, uncertainties, demands, commitments or events that are reasonably likely to have a material 
adverse effect on the prospects of the Issuer for the current financial year.  As an (indirectly) wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Guarantor, however, the Issuer will be impacted by the Guarantor's prospects.  
See the paragraph entitled "Trend Information" in the section entitled "Information about EFG–Hermes 
Holding S.A.E." and the section entitled "Risk Factors". 

Dividend 

The Issuer has paid only US$ 2.5 million dividends in December 2011 and US$ 2 million in September 
2018 since its date of incorporation.  

Group Structure 

The Issuer does not have any subsidiaries.  The Issuer is indirectly wholly owned by the Guarantor.  See 
the paragraph entitled "Subsidiaries" in the section of these Base Listing Particulars headed "Information 
about EFG-Hermes Holding S.A.E." below. 
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INFORMATION ABOUT EFG-HERMES HOLDING S.A.E.  

History, Development and Organisational Structure 

The Guarantor's legal and commercial name is EFG-Hermes Holding S.A.E. 

The Guarantor was incorporated in Egypt on 16 June 1998 for a period of 25 years (following the merger 
of the Egyptian Financial Group and Hermes Financial in 1996) and is renewable. 

The Guarantor was incorporated as a Public Joint Stock Company pursuant to decree No. 106 of 1984 
and operates under the Egyptian Capital Market Law 95 of 1992.  The Guarantor's registered office and 
principal administrative establishment is Building No. B129, Phase 3, Smart Village, Km 28 Cairo 
Alexandria Desert Road, 6 October 12577, Egypt and the telephone number of its registered office is + 
20 2 3535 6499. Its current registered number is 12665. 

The Guarantor's objective is to contribute to "the founding of companies that issue securities or to 
increasing their capital" (see part one, article three of the articles of association of the Guarantor).  Under 
its articles, the Guarantor may have interest in or participate in any way with investment companies that 
practice businesses similar to its own, or which may assist it in achieving its objective in Egypt or abroad.  

Management Structure 

Executive Officer 

The following person is the executive officer of the Guarantor as at the date of these Base Listing 
Particulars. 

Name Title 

Karim Awad Group CEO and Chairman of the Executive 
Committee 

 

The business address of such officer is Building No. B129, Phase 3, Smart Village, Km 28 Cairo 
Alexandria Desert Road, 6 October 12577, Egypt. 

Directors  

The following persons are the members of the Board of Directors of the Guarantor (the "Board" and 
each such member, a "Director") as at the date of these Base Listing Particulars. 

Name (Position) Principal activities  

Mona Zulficar (Non-Executive Chairperson) Ms. Zulficar has served as non-executive 
Chairperson of EFG Hermes Holding since April 
2008. She is a Founding Partner and Chairperson 
of Zulficar & Partners Law Firm, a specialized 
law firm of 11 Partners and more than 50 
Associates, which was established in June 2009 
and grew into one of the top ranked law firms in 
Egypt. She was previously Senior Partner at 
Shalakany Law Firm and Chair of its Executive 
Committee for many years. 
 
Ms. Zulficar is recognised in local and 
international legal circles as the precedent maker 
and one of Egypt's most prominent corporate, 
banking and project finance attorneys. As an 
M&A and capital markets transactions specialist, 
she has led negotiations on some of Egypt's and 
the Middle East's largest and most complex 
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Name (Position) Principal activities  

successful transactions over the past three 
decades. 
 
Ms. Zulficar has also played an instrumental role 
in modernizing and reforming economic and 
banking laws and regulations,  as a former board 
member of the Central Bank of Egypt during the 
banking reform programme (2003 - 2011) and as 
a prominent member of national drafting 
committees. She is also a leading human rights 
activist recognised locally and internationally and 
has initiated several successful campaigns for 
new legislation including women's rights, 
freedom of opinion and family courts. She served 
as VP of the Constitutional Committee of 50 and 
played a key role in drafting the 2014 Egyptian 
Constitution, and is currently member of the 
National Council for Human Rights. 
 
She has recently been elected President of the first 
Egyptian Microfinance Federation (currently the 
Egyptian Federation for Financing Medium, 
Small and Micro Enterprises)  and has been 
chairing several NGOs active in social 
development and microfinance to poor women. 
Internationally she served as an elected member 
of the  Advisory Committee of the United Nations 
Human Rights Council for two terms ending 
2011. She holds a Bachelor of Science in 
Economics and Political Science from Cairo 
University and an LLM from Mansoura 
University as well as an honorary doctorate 
degree in law from the University of Zurich. 
 

Yasser El Mallawany (Non-Executive Vice 
Chairman) 

Mr. El Mallawany is the Non-Executive Vice 
Chairman of the EFG Hermes Board. Since 
becoming the Chief Executive Officer of the firm 
in 2003, Mr. El Mallawany has played a key role 
in driving the consolidation of Egypt's investment 
banking sector. 
 
He began his career with 16 years at Commercial 
International Bank (CIB), formerly Chase 
National Bank, finally serving as the General 
Manager of the Corporate Banking Division. Mr. 
El Mallawany joined EFG Hermes at the time of 
the Firm's merger with CIIC. Mr. El Mallawany 
holds a Bachelor's degree in Accounting from 
Cairo University.  

Karim Awad (Group CEO and Chairman of the 
Executive Committee) 

Mr. Karim Awad is Group Chief Executive 
Officer, Chairman of the Executive Committee 
and a member of the board of EFG Hermes 
Holding. Since assuming leadership of the firm in 
2013, Mr. Awad has led EFG Hermes' return to 
profitability by cutting unwarranted expenses, 
selling non-core assets and distributing excess 
cash to shareholders.  Starting 2014, Mr. Awad 
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Name (Position) Principal activities  

worked with top tier professionals across the 
Company's different divisions in building a 
comprehensive regional advisory pipeline; 
extending its leadership as the Arab world's 
largest securities brokerage. 
 
By the beginning of 2016, Mr. Awad also drove 
the company into a new strategic shift based on an 
extended geographic presence that aims at 
transforming EFG Hermes from a MENA Region 
house into a finance house that has reach across 
frontier markets.  He also initiated an increased 
emphasis on product diversification in the 
Company's traditional business lines as well as 
through the creation of a parallel non-bank 
finance platform, EFG Hermes Finance – a 
platform that was formed in 2015 and currently 
encompasses a leasing, microfinance, consumer 
finance, factoring, mortgages and insurance 
businesses. 
 
Prior to assuming his current role, Mr. Awad was 
Chief Executive Officer of the Investment 
Banking platform with an overall responsibility 
for managing the firm's Investment Banking, 
Securities Brokerage, Research, Asset 
Management, and Private Equity divisions. 
Earlier, he was head of Investment Banking, 
having joined the division in 1998. 
 
Mr. Awad has a long track record advising major 
corporations on equity offerings and M&A 
transactions and was instrumental in the 
development of EFG Hermes's debt advisory 
practice. During his tenure in the Investment 
Banking division, he led and closed transactions 
with an aggregate value of more than USD 40 
billion. 
 

Takis Arapoglou (Non-Executive Director) Mr. Takis Arapoglou is a Non-Executive Member 
of the EFG Hermes Board and a consultant with 
an earlier career in International Capital Markets 
and Corporate & Investment banking and later in 
managing, restructuring and advising publicly  
listed Financial Institutions and Corporates, 
primarily in SE Europe and the Middle East.  
 
Most recent executive assignments include: 
Managing Director and Global Head of the Banks 
and Securities Industry for Citigroup; Chairman 
and CEO of the National Bank of Greece; 
Chairman of the Hellenic Banks Association; 
CEO of Commercial Banking at EFG-Hermes 
Holding SAE. 
 
He is currently holding the following non- 
executive board positions: Chairman of Bank of 
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Name (Position) Principal activities  

Cyprus Group, Chairman of Titan Cement 
International S.A., Chairman of Tsakos Energy 
Navigation (TEN) Ltd, Independent board 
member of EFG-Hermes Holding SAE and a 
Board member of Bank Alfalah Ltd., representing 
the International Finance Corporation (IFC).  
 
He is a member of the International Board of 
Advisors of Tufts University, Boston, Ma., a 
member of the Business Advisory Council for the 
International MBA program at the Athens 
University of Economics and Business. 
 
He has degrees in Mathematics, Engineering and 
Management from Greek and British 
Universities. 
 

Marwan Elaraby (Non-Executive Director) Partner – Shearman & Sterling LLP 
 
Mr. Marwan Elaraby is a Non-Executive Member 
of the EFG Hermes Board.  He is based in Dubai 
where he serves as a partner in the Capital 
Markets and Mergers & Acquisitions practices at 
Shearman & Sterling LLP, where he also 
currently serves as Head of the Dubai Office and 
a Corporate Business Unit Leader.  His practice 
focuses on advising governments and private 
capital clients on a variety of corporate and capital 
markets transactions across several industries.  
Marwan first joined Shearman & Sterling in New 
York in 1995 and became a partner in 2004.   
 
He previously served as Managing Director at 
Citadel Capital, one of the leading private equity 
firms in the Middle East and Africa.  Marwan also 
served as Executive Director in EFG Hermes' 
investment banking group, where he worked as an 
investment banker advising clients on numerous 
capital markets and M&A transactions in the 
Middle East.   
 
Mr. Elaraby is a New York-qualified lawyer.  He 
holds a bachelor's degree in economics from the 
American University in Cairo and a Juris Doctor 
(J.D.) from Columbia University School of Law. 
 

Jean Cheval (Non-Executive Director) Senior Advisor, NATIXIS 

Mr. Jean Cheval is a Non-Executive Member of 
the EFG Hermes Board. He joined Natixis in June 
2009. Between 2009 and 2012, he was in charge 
of the Debt and Finance Department (Structured 
Finance) of Natixis CIB and of the European Area 
between 2011 and 2012. He became Head of 
Finance and Risk, member of Natixis Senior 
Management Committee and second Senior 
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Manager of Natixis, from September 2012 until 
October 2017. 

Previously, he spent most of his career (1983- 
2001) at Credit Agricole lndosuez, where he was 
successively Chief Economist, Head of Strategic 
Planning and Budget, Head of Structured 
Financing, Head of the Middle East and Asia 
before being appointed General Manager. He has 
been a Director of Al Bank Al Saudi Al Fransi 
(Kingdom of Saudi Arabia), WAFA Bank 
(Morocco) and Banque Libano-Française. 

He has also been Head of Banque Audi France, 
Chairman of Banque Audi Switzerland (2001- 
2005), and member of the board of Audi-Saradar 
Bank (2002-2006). 

He previously worked for the Ministry of Industry 
and the French Planning Agency. 

Jean Cheval graduated from the Ecole Centrale de 
Paris (Engineering School) and the University of 
Berkeley. 

Zubyr Soomro (Non-Executive Director) Chairman of the National Bank of Pakistan 

Mr. Zubyr Soomro is a Non-Executive Member 
of the EFG Hermes Board. He has moved on from 
his role as the startup Chairman of the Pakistan 
Microfinance Investment Company, a market-
based entity majority owned by KfW and a DFID 
subsidiary and established to be the apex for the 
45 microfinance lenders in Pakistan. His 
engagement with the microfinance sector extends 
over 20 years and has involved board roles in the 
Pakistan Poverty Alleviation Fund, Acumen 
Pakistan and Grameen Foundation USA. He has 
been on the Board of all three of Pakistan's 
financial services regulators, namely, the State 
Bank of Pakistan, the Securities and Exchange 
Commission and the Karachi Stock Exchange 
where he was Chairman. In addition he is on the 
board of governors of the Layton Rahmatulla 
Benevolent Trust, a leading eye-care provider 
handling a million patients per year, the Shaukat 
Khanum Memorial Trust, which is Pakistan's 
leading oncology services provider and the Indus 
Valley School of Art and Architecture. 

In April 2019, Pakistan's current government 
appointed him as the Chairman of the National 
Bank of Pakistan, which is one  of the largest 
banks in the country. It is majority government 
owned and has a global network and over 1500 
domestic branches. In addition he was appointed 
to the board of Sarmaya Pakistan, a sovereign 
fund set up in March 2019 to take on oversight of 
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the country's 204 government-owned corporate 
entities. 

Mr. Soomro spent the majority of his career at 
Citibank in international corporate, investment, 
consumer, and private banking, and in 33 years at 
the bank worked across the Middle East, Turkey, 
Africa, the UK, and Pakistan. He retired in 2008 
as Managing Director and Country Head for 
Pakistan. In the midst of his Citibank career, Mr 
Soomro took a three year leave of absence to 
become the Chairman and President of United 
Bank Ltd , an 1800 branch government-owned 
institution with presence in ten countries. He was 
tasked with restructuring the bank for 
privatization. In 2004, the central bank awarded 
him the Quaid e Azam Centenary Gold Medal for 
his work in restructuring United Bank Ltd and his 
contribution to financial sector reform as 
Chairman of the Pakistan Bank's Association.  

He was a member of the government's Economic 
Advisory Council from 1997-2000 and again 
from 2013-2018. Additionally, he has been 
President of the American Business Council, and 
President of the Overseas Chamber of Commerce 
and Industry, in addition to being Chairman of the 
Pakistan Bank's Association. 

He has a Bachelor of Science degree from the 
London School of Economics, a Master's degree 
from the School of Oriental and African Studies, 
and graduated from Executive Education 
Programs in 2015, 2017( both in financial 
inclusion) and in 2020( on Leadership in 
Uncertain Times) from the Harvard Business 
School and the Harvard Kennedy School. 

Abdulla Khalil Al Mutawa (Non-Executive 
Director) 

General Manager - The Private Office of H. E. 
Sheikh Suroor Bin Mohammed Al Nahyan 

Mr. Abdulla Khalil Al Mutawa is a non-executive 
Member of the EFG Hermes Board. He is an 
investment professional with more than 35 years 
of experience and a comprehensive background in 
Finance and Administration. He holds a B.Sc. 
degree in Business Administration from the 
University of North Carolina, USA. Mr. Al 
Mutawa is currently the General Manager of the 
Private Office of H.E. Sheikh Suroor Bin 
Mohammad Al Nahyan.  

He has been a Member of the Board of Directors 
of ADCB since 1997. His ADCB Committees 
Memberships include Member of BRCC.   

Mr. Al Mutawa has also been a Member of the 
Board of Directors of Bank Alfalah Limited, 
Pakistan, since 1997, in the following 
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Committees: Member of Board Audit Committee 
(BAC), Member, Board of Directors, 
Remuneration & Nomination Committee 
(BHR&NC), Chairmen, Board Strategy & 
Finance Committee (BS&FC), Member, Board 
Risk Management Committee (BRMC), Member, 
Board Compensation Committee (BCC), 
Member, Board Information Technology 
Committee (BITC). He is also the Chairman of 
Makhazen Investment Company, Abu Dhabi and 
a Board Member of Abu Dhabi National Hotels 
Company – Abu Dhabi. 

Khalid Mana Saeed Al Otaiba (Non-Executive 
Director) 

Office Manager for His Excellency Dr. Mana 
Saeed Al Otaiba 
 
Mr. Khalid Mana Saeed Al Otaiba is a Non-
Executive Member of the EFG Hermes Board. He 
has been Office Manager for His Excellency Dr. 
Mana Saeed Al Otaiba, the personal advisor to 
His Highness the President of the UAE Sheikh 
Khalifa bin Zayed Al Nahyan, since 2005 . 

He also holds the post of Deputy Chairman of the 
Al Otaiba Group of Companies. Mr. Al Otaiba 
leverages his over 20 year career spanning 
numerous industries to serve as the Director of 
Alfalah Insurance Company Limited, Pakistan, 
Chairman of Liwa International Investment 
Tourism and Royal Mirage Hotel & Resort Ltd, 
Morocco, and Chairman of Ghantout 
International and Bank Alfalah and Director of 
Royal Mirage Masdar Abudhabi.  

Mr. Al Otaiba holds a Bachelor's degree in 
International Economics from Suffolk University 
in Boston, Massachusetts. 

Ramsay Zaki (Non-Executive Director) Founder of Wafra Export 
 
Mr. Ramsay Zaki is a Non-Executive Member of 
the EFG Hermes Board. In 2014, he founded   
Wafra Export, a fruit export company.  

Mr. Zaki was part of the EFG Hermes team for 18 
years, starting as Head of Operations Brokerage 
in 1995 and ending his tenure as Chief Operating 
Officer. As COO, Mr. Zaki was responsible for 
managing operational matters, including 
compliance-related functions.  
 
He was also part of the Firm's Board through to 
2013.  

Prior to joining EFG Hermes, Mr. Zaki worked 
for five years at Commercial International Bank 
(CIB) where he headed the team responsible for 
extending credit to the Egyptian pharmaceutical 
industry.  
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Name (Position) Principal activities  

 
He holds a Bachelor of Commerce from Cairo 
University. 

Timothy Collins (Non-Executive Director) CEO and senior MD of Ripplewood Advisors 
LLC 
 
Mr. Collins is a Non-Executive Member of the 
EFG Hermes Board . He is the CEO and senior 
managing director of Ripplewood Advisors, the 
successor to Ripplewood Holdings , which he 
founded in 1995. Ripplewood has successfully 
invested in and built companies globally, 
including in Asia, Europe andthe Middle East.  
 
Mr. Collins also sits on the Board of Directors of 
Banque Saudi Fransi and SODIC. He is the 
Chairman of AS Citadele banka and is involved 
in several not-for-profit and public sector 
activities, including the Trilateral Commission 
and the Council on Foreign Relations, NEOM, 
McKinsey and Yale Divinity School Advisory 
Boards. He is Chairman of the Advisory Board for 
the Yale School of Management, co-chair of the 
Advisory Council of the NYU Global Institute for 
Advanced Study and a member of the Investment 
Advisory Committee to the New York State 
Common Retirement Fund.  
 
Mr. Collins has a BA in Philosophy from DePauw 
University and a MBA in Public and Private 
Management from Yale University's School of 
Management. Mr. Collins received an honorary 
Doctorate of Humane Letters from DePauw 
University in 2004 and has been an Adjunct 
Professor and Visiting Fellow at New York 
University. He has served as a Visiting Lecturer 
at the Yale Law School and is Senior Fellow and 
Director of the Henry P. Becton Fellowship 
Program at the Yale School of Management. 
 

Elizabeth Critchley (Non-Executive Director) Partner of Ripplewood Advisors Limited 
 
Mrs. Critchley is a Non-Executive Member of the 
EFG Hermes Board. She is a Partner of 
Ripplewood, and runs the day to day operations. 
Before joining Ripplewood, Mrs. Critchley was a 
Founding Partner of Resolution Operations which 
raised £660 million via a listed vehicle at the end 
of 2008, and went on to make three acquisitions 
in financial services (Friends Provident plc for 
US$2.7 billion, most of Axa's UK life businesses 
for US$4 billion, and Bupa for US$0.3 billion). 
This consolidation strategy was financed through 
a combination of debt and equity raisings, as well 
as structured vendor financing. Until forming 
Resolution Operations,  
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Name (Position) Principal activities  

Mrs. Critchley was a Managing Director at 
Goldman Sachs International where she ran the 
European FIG Financing business. Mrs. Critchley 
has structured, advised, or invested in transactions 
with more than fifty global financials and 
corporates.  

Mrs. Critchley has a First Class Honours Degree 
in Mathematics from University College London. 

The business address of each Director is Building No. B129, Phase 3, Smart Village, Km 28 Cairo 
Alexandria Desert Road, 6 October 12577, Egypt. 

Conflicts of Interest 

There are no conflicts of interest or potential conflicts of interest between the duties of the persons listed 
above to the Guarantor and of their private interests or other duties. 

Audit Committee 

The Guarantor's Audit Committee comprises Ms Mona Zulficar as Chairperson, Mr Zubyr Soomro, Mr 
Ramsay Zaki and Mr. Timothy Collins. All other members of the Board of Directors of EFG-Hermes 
Holding may also attend the Audit Committee meetings. 

Audit Committee terms of reference 

The Committee shall understand EFGH Group's structure, controls, and type of transactions in order to 
adequately assess the significant risks faced by EFGH Group in the current environment and shall 
perform the following duties: 

Financial reporting 

 The Committee, assisted by the Group Chief Financial Officer and the external auditor shall 
monitor the integrity of the financial statements of the Group, including its annual and quarterly 
reports, interim management statements, significant financial reports to regulators and any other 
formal announcement relating to its financial performance. 

 The Committee shall review significant accounting and financial reporting issues. 
 The Committee shall review and challenge where necessary: 
 the consistency of, and any changes to, accounting policies both on a year on year basis and 

across the EFGH Group; 
 the methods used to account for significant or unusual transactions where different 

approaches are possible; 
 whether EFGH Group has followed appropriate accounting standards and made appropriate 

estimates and judgements, taking into account the views of the external auditor; 
 the clarity of disclosure in EFGH Group financial reports and the context in which 

statements are made;  

Internal controls, governance and risk management 

The Audit Committee shall 

 keep under review the adequacy and effectiveness of EFGH Group internal control, financial 
controls, information technology security controls, governance and risk management 
framework; 

 review each year Senior Management reports on the effectiveness of EFGH Group internal 
controls, financial controls, governance and risk management framework; 

 review and approve any statement to be included in the annual report concerning internal 
controls, financial controls, governance and risk management; 
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 ensure the adequacy of the systems of internal control through independent review of 
operational processes, whether such processes are conducted within the EFGH Group enterprise 
or (in whole or in part) outsourced to a third party provider; 

 understand the scope of internal and external auditors review of internal control over financial 
reporting, and obtain reports on significant findings and recommendations together with 
management's responses; 

 Review, approve and undertaking a regular assessment of significant policies, which include: 
 Staff Dealing Policy 
 Group Whistle-blowing Policy 
 Health and safety policy 
 Group Anti- fraud and Anti-Bribery Policy 

Compliance, whistle blowing and fraud 

The Audit Committee shall 

 Receive quarterly reports from the Group Chief Compliance Officer on the EFGH Group's 
compliance with regulatory obligations, whistle blowing, fraud and other investigations 
conducted; 

 Review the organization, structure and resources of the EFGH Compliance function; 
 Review (1) the status of EFGH Group's compliance assurance with relevant laws and 

regulations in all jurisdictions in which the Group operates, (2) major legislative and regulatory 
developments which could materially impact EFGH Group, and (3) management's efforts to 
monitor compliance with the Group's Code of Conduct; 

 Receive regulatory examination reports from regulators across the EFGH Group subsidiaries. 
 Review EFGH Group's controls for the prevention and detection of fraud and bribery and 

receive reports on non-compliance; 
 Review and investigate any matters pertaining to integrity of senior management including 

conflict of interest or adherence to standards of conduct as required by the policy. 

Internal audit 

The Audit Committee shall 

 Approve the group internal audit charter, policy and guidance. 
 Monitor and review the effectiveness of EFGH Group's internal audit function in the context of 

EFGH Group's overall risk management framework; 
 Approve the appointment, remuneration and removal of the Group Chief Internal Auditor 
 Approve key performance indicators for the Group Chief Internal Auditor and evaluate his 

performance on an annual basis. The Audit Committee shall seek views of the internal 
stakeholders including senior management and the Group Chief Executive Officer for this 
purpose; 

 Review and approve the annual internal audit plan as well as the risk assessment assumptions 
and report used to drive the audit plan; 

 Review and approve the organization structure and the budget of the internal audit function; 
 Consider and approve the responsibility of the internal audit function and ensure it has adequate 

resources and appropriate access to information to enable it to perform its function effectively 
and in accordance with the relevant professional standards. The Committee shall also ensure the 
function has adequate standing and is free from management or other restrictions; 

 Review all reports submitted to the Committee by the Group Chief Internal Auditor and monitor 
management's responsiveness to the findings and recommendations of the internal auditor; 

 Meet the Group Chief Internal Auditor at least once a year, without Senior Management being 
present, to discuss the responsibility of the internal audit function and any issues arising from 
the internal audits carried out. 

Risk Committee 

The Guarantor's Risk Committee comprises Ms. Mona Zulficar as Chairperson, Mr Zubyr Soomro, Mr 
Ramsay Zaki and Mr. Timothy Collins. All other members of the Board of Directors of EFG-Hermes 
Holding may also attend the Risk Committee meetings. 
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Risk Committee terms of reference 

 The Risk Committee shall understand EFGH Group's structure, controls, and type of 
transactions in order to adequately assess the significant risks faced by EFGH Group in the 
current environment and shall perform the following duties: 

 To advise the Board on risk appetite and tolerance. In preparing this advice to the Board, the 
Committee shall satisfy itself that the risk appetite is aligned to the Group's strategy and takes 
into account the current and prospective macroeconomic and financial environment. The 
Committee shall approve the methodology, measures, targets, and tolerances associated with 
the risk appetite, along with stress test results, if any. 

 To advise the Board on risk aspects of business strategy. In preparing this advice to the Board, 
the Committee shall evaluate risk aspects of strategies with respect to industry segments, 
countries, product portfolio, concentration, liquidity, interest rates, foreign exchange rates and 
models used internally, to ensure they are within the overall Group's risk tolerance. 

 To annually review and approve all trading and investment risk limits and ensure adherence of 
the same to Group's risk appetite. 

 To evaluate and advise the Board on the risks associated with proposed strategic acquisitions or 
disposals or other specific requests made by the Board. 

 To review comprehensive reporting on Group Enterprise Risk Management and performance 
measured against approved risk appetite. This will include reports with respect to credit, 
investments, market, liquidity, operational risks, business continuity, and regulatory 
compliance. 

 To review and approve Group's Risk Management Policies. 
 To review the effectiveness of the Group's Enterprise risk management framework, specifically: 

a) Satisfy itself that there are adequate procedures for monitoring in a timely and accurate 
manner, large exposures or risk types whose relevance may become of critical 
importance; 

b) Satisfy itself that there are adequate procedures in place for requiring compliance with 
Risk Management Policies; 

c) Gives due consideration to any material findings from regulatory reviews and 
interactions with regulators in relation to risk governance and management; 

d) Satisfy itself that the risk management function has necessary talents, expertise and 
resources of appropriate standing within the Group, and is free from constraint by 
management or other restrictions; and 

 Approval and undertaking a regular assessment of significant policies, which include: 
a) Group Risk management framework 
b) Disaster recovery & business continuity plan 

Auditors 

KPMG Hazem Hassan 
KPMG Building 
Pyramids Heights Office Park. 
Km 22 Cairo/Alex Road 
Giza 
Cairo 
Egypt 

KPMG Hazem Hassan Public Accountants and Consultants is an Egyptian partnership and a member 
firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International, a Swiss 
entity. KPMG is authorised by The Supervisory Board of Public Accountants – Revisorsnämnden (RN), 
and is a member of FAR SRS.   

Corporate Governance 

The Guarantor has adopted corporate governance policies which comply with the Egyptian laws, rules 
and regulations, in particular the Egyptian Company Law No 159 of 1981, Capital Market Law 95 of 
1992 and the Egyptian Financial Regulatory Authority (the "FRA") Corporate Governance Rules for 
Egyptian Companies operating in Securities (FRA Board of Directors' Decree No. 107 for the Year 
2016).  
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Capital Structure 

As of 30 September 2020, the Guarantor's authorised capital amounted to EGP 6.0 billion; and its issued 
and paid in capital amounted to EGP 3,843,091,115, divided into 768,618,223 ordinary shares of EGP 
5.00 each. 

Major Shareholders 

The Guarantor's shareholder structure is dominated by institutional investors.  As of 30 September 2020, 
56.3 per cent. of the Guarantor's shares were held by the public and 9.6 per cent. were held as GDRs, 
12.3 per cent. are held by RA Mena Holdings LTD & RA Holdings I LTD (related parties), 12.9 per cent. 
are held by DF EFG3 Limited (Natixis S.A), and 8.8 per cent. are held by RIMCO EGT Investment LLC. 
Please see below chart. 

 

There are no measures in place other than statutory measures to ensure that control of the Guarantor will 
not be abused. 

Principal Markets  

The Guarantor and its subsidiaries have operations in Egypt, the UAE, the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, 
Jordan, Kuwait, Oman, Pakistan, Kenya, Nigeria and offices in the United Kingdom, USA, Bangladesh, 
and a presence in Vietnam through a partnership agreement with ACBS Bank of Vietnam. The Guarantor 
and its subsidiaries serve a considerable and diversified client base from the Middle East and North 
Africa Region (the "MENA Region"), Europe, frontier markets, Asia and the United States.   

Principal Activities and Business of the Guarantor 

The Guarantor's principal activities, through its subsidiaries include Securities Brokerage, Research, 
Investment Banking, Asset Management, Private Equity, Leasing, Factoring, Micro-Finance and  
Consumer-Finance. Outlined below are the main categories of products and/or services performed: 

Research 

The Guarantor provides independent and objective analysis through its equity and economic research. 
Coverage extends across 8 MENA Region countries and 12 frontier market countries, which includes 
spheres such as economics, strategy and analysis on over 313 companies by the end of third quarter 2020, 
in key sectors such as finance, real estate, construction, building materials, telecoms, consumer goods, 
education, information services utilities and  the pharmaceutical sector. 
Investment Banking 

DF EFG3 LIMITED 
(Natixis S.A), 12.9%

RA MENA 
HOLDINGS LTD 
& RA HOLDINGS 

I LTD, 12.3%

RIMCO E G T 
INVESTMENT L 

L C, 8.8%

THE BANK OF 
NEW YORK 

MELLON ( GDRs ), 
9.6%

Public, 56.3%
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As at 30 September 2020 the Guarantor has successfully completed total executions of over US$ 120 
billion. Its range of services offered include identifying potential acquisition and divestiture targets, 
creating detailed valuation analysis and transactional structures, deal execution and developing fairness 
opinions. As of date, the Investment Banking business has successfully completed US$ 57.2 billion in 
equity raising including transactions of initial public offerings, secondary offerings, and private 
placements for its clients; executed US$ 57.4 billion of M&A transactions; and raised US$ 5.7 billion in 
debt arrangements and underwritings. 

Securities Brokerage 

The Guarantor, through its Securities Brokerage subsidiaries, enjoys market leadership in eleven direct 
markets (in which it has a local presence) with access to more than 75 markets (in which it does not have 
a local presence but executes through established third party brokers on the ground) throughout the 
MENA Region and frontier markets. The Brokerage platform serves a diversified client base covering 
Western, GCC and high net worth institutions (that is institutions/companies owned by high net worth 
individuals), in addition to retail and VIP individual clients.  

Asset Management 

Through its Asset Management subsidiaries and investments, the Guarantor manages US$ 2.56 billion 
of assets under management as of 30 September 2019, including funds, which cover various countries, 
strategies and sectors including Islamic funds, Money Market funds, Equity, Multi-asset funds and 
Capital Guaranteed funds. The asset management business serves institutional, sovereign wealth fund, 
foundation, pension, family office and insurance clients; in addition, it also offers discretionary portfolio 
management services to high net worth individuals and institutional investors.  

Private Equity  

Through its private equity arm (EFG Hermes Private Equity), the Guarantor manages private equity 
funds/investments of US$ 0.3 billion following the divestment of Vortex Energy's UK solar portfolio in 
September 2020. EFG Hermes Private Equity manages the "Egypt Education Fund" which is part of a 
USD300 million education platform in partnership with GEMS Education; the platform successfully 
completed 3 investments since establishment worth US$ 88 million. In addition, EFG Hermes Private 
Equity acquired 80% of United Pharma, a prominent pharmaceutical company with operations in the 
medical solutions sector in Egypt..   

Leasing  

The Guarantor launched its Leasing business in June 2015 through a wholly owned subsidiary. EFG 
Hermes Leasing specializes in offering comprehensive financial leasing solutions to large corporates and 
SMEs across Egypt. The company's leasing solutions and financing cover a wide range of diverse sectors 
and uses, including technology systems (servers, software, user terminals); vehicles for employee 
transport, delivery and other fleet purposes; medical equipment, from diagnostic suites to full lab setups; 
and plant and machinery (materials-handling equipment, rigs, barges and generators). The Guarantor's 
leasing business was ranked fourth by the Financial Regulatory Authority in Egypt in terms of contracts 
booked during the first nine months of 2020, with a market share of 6 per cent. As of 30 September 2020, 
total outstanding portfolio reached EGP4.3 billion. 

Factoring 

The Guarantor received a factoring license in March 2018. It finances working capital for corporations 
and small to medium size entities. Operations commenced in the fourth quarter of 2018. As at 30 
September 2020, EFG Hermes Factoring was ranked fourth by the Financial Regulatory Authority in 
Egypt with a market share of 11.5 per cent. 

Micro-Finance 

The Guarantor completed the acquisition of a majority stake in a leading micro-finance player in Egypt 
"Tanmeyah" in the second quarter of 2016. The company serves its 347,967 clients through a workforce 
of approximately 4,727 employees across its extensive branch network of 280 branches that covers 
almost the complete sphere of the Egyptian market. Tanmeyah's total outstanding portfolio came at EGP3 
billion by the end of September 2020. 
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Consumer-Finance 

The Guarantor launched its Consumer-Finance subsidiary "valU" in December 2017 which provides 
payment-on-instalment programs to consumers through a world-class Fintech platform. Since inception, 
valU successfully expanded its market reach, merchant network and client base, with limits activated 
value exceeding EGP1.7 billion, and a merchant network of 843 merchant across Egypt. As at 30 
September 2020, valU's total outstanding portfolio stood at EGP 672 million. Major Customers, 
Suppliers or other material dependencies of the Guarantor  

The Guarantor's client base comprises institutions, governments and individual investors who range from 
large regional corporations and financial institutions, to retail and high net worth individuals. The 
Guarantor has clients in Europe, the United States, Asia, Sub-Saharan Africa, and the MENA Region. 

Security or principal investments by the Guarantor 

The security and principal investments of the Guarantor are set out in the consolidated interim financial 
statements of the Guarantor in respect of the nine-month period ended 30 September 2020. There have 
been no material changes to the security and principal investments other than as disclosed in the 
consolidated interim financial statements, and any investments made have been in the Guarantor's 
ordinary course of business. 

Trend Information 

The Guarantor's prospects for 2020 will be affected, potentially adversely, by developments in global, 
regional and national economies as well as movements and activity levels, in financial, commodities, 
currency and other markets, interest rate movements, political and military developments throughout the 
MENA Region and frontier markets, client activity levels and legal and regulatory developments in 
countries where the Guarantor does business. The MENA Region, including Egypt, and frontier markets 
where the Guarantor does business continues to face socio-economic and political challenges and risks 
of instability which may affect the Guarantor's businesses.  The Guarantor reports its financial statements 
in Egyptian Pound which was floated in 2016. 

Total Turnover 

The total revenue for the Guarantor for the nine months of 2020 was EGP 4.7 billion compared to EGP 
4.9 billion in the nine months of 2019, as per EFG Hermes consolidated financial statements. 

Dividend  

The following cash/bonus dividends per common share of the Guarantor were paid for the last five fiscal 
years ended 31 December 2019: 

Fiscal Year Dividend per common share  

2019 None 

2018 Cash Dividend: EGP 0.65/share 

2017 Bonus shares: 1 share for every 4 held 

2016 Cash Dividend: EGP 2.75/share  

2015 None 

 
Subsidiaries 

List of subsidiaries (including indirectly owned subsidiaries) of the Guarantor: 
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Name Address Principal Activity 

Financial Brokerage Group Building No. B129, Phase 3, 
Smart Village, Km 28 Cairo 
Alexandria Desert Road, 6 
October 12577, Egypt 

Securities Brokerage and 
extending margin to clients. 

Egyptian Fund Management 
Group 

Building No. B129, Phase 3, 
Smart Village, Km 28 Cairo 
Alexandria Desert Road, 6 
October 12577, Egypt 

Managing investment funds. 

Egyptian Portfolio 
Management Group 

Building No. B129, Phase 3, 
Smart Village, Km 28 Cairo 
Alexandria Desert Road, 6 
October 12577, Egypt 

Managing the composition of 
securities portfolios for clients. 

Hermes Securities Brokerage Building No. B129, Phase 3, 
Smart Village, Km 28 Cairo 
Alexandria Desert Road, 6 
October 12577, Egypt 

Securities Brokerage and 
extending margin to clients. 

Hermes Fund Management Building No. B129, Phase 3, 
Smart Village, Km 28 Cairo 
Alexandria Desert Road, 6 
October 12577, Egypt 

Managing investment funds 
and company management. 

EFG-Hermes Advisory Inc. c/o Maples Corporate Services 
(BVI) Limited, Kingston 
Chambers, P.O. Box 173, Road 
Town, British Virgin Islands 

No specified principal 
activities, however, it may not 
engage in any act or activity 
prohibited under any law for 
the time being in force in the 
British Virgin Islands. 

EFG-Hermes Financial 
Management (Egypt) Limited. 

International Corporate 
Management of Bermuda 
Limited, Bermuda Commercial 
Bank Building, 19 Par-la-ville 
Road, Hamilton, HM11, 
Bermuda 

Managing mutual funds and 
portfolios. 

Bayonne Enterprises Ltd. c/o Maples Corporate Services 
(BVI) Limited, Kingston 
Chambers, P.O. Box 173, Road 
Town, Tortola, British Virgin 
Islands 

No specified principal 
activities, however, it may not 
engage in any act or activity 
prohibited under any law for 
the time being in force in the 
British Virgin Islands. 

EFG-Hermes Management Building No. B129, Phase 3, 
Smart Village, Km 28 Cairo 
Alexandria Desert Road, 6 
October 12577, Egypt 

Providing consultancy in all 
areas of financial, technical, 
economic, administrative and 
regulatory, marketing, 
engineering, investing and asset 
evaluation studies and projects, 
companies and the 
administration work. 

  Trading, marketing, promoting 
and distributing all 
requirements of production, 
machinery and equipment, 
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Name Address Principal Activity 

intermediate goods, consumer 
goods and capital assets. 

  Purchasing and selling real 
estate and land. 

EFG-Hermes Private Equity 
Ltd 

c/o Orbis Services Limited, 
Tropical Isle Building, Nibbs 
Street, Road Town, Tortola, 
British Virgin Islands 

Holding Company 

EFG-Hermes U.A.E. LLC  Office 106, The Offices 3, One 
Central, DWTC, P.O. Box 
112736 
Dubai, UAE  

Acting as an intermediary in 
dealings in stocks and shares 
which are listed on the Dubai 
financial market (DFM), the 
Abu Dhabi Securities 
Exchange (ADX) and 
NASDAQ Dubai Limited. 

EFG-Hermes UAE Limited Office 301, The Exchange, 
DIFC, P.O. Box 30727 
Dubai, UAE  

Asset management, investment 
banking and financial advisory.  

EFG-Hermes Fixed Income Building No. B129, Phase 3, 
Smart Village, Km 28 Cairo 
Alexandria Desert Road, 6 
October 12577, Egypt 

Handling, mediation of, and 
brokering in the sale of bonds. 

  Purchasing securities (on 
behalf of the company or for its 
customers) and instruments of 
finance, treasury bills and other 
similar securities. 

EFG-Hermes Promoting & 
Underwriting 

Building No. B129, Phase 3, 
Smart Village, Km 28 Cairo 
Alexandria Desert Road, 6 
October 12577, Egypt 

Promoting and Underwriting 
IPOs and financial advisory. 

Hermes Corporate Finance 

(In Liquidation) 

Building No. B129, Phase 3, 
Smart Village, Km 28 Cairo 
Alexandria Desert Road, 6 
October 12577, Egypt 

Promoting and underwriting 
the subscription of securities.   

Flemming CIIC Holdings 9 Mohamed Fahmy Street, 
Garden City, Cairo, Egypt  

Establishing shareholding 
companies. 

Flemming Mansour Securities 

(In Liquidation) 

9 Mohamed Fahmy Street, 
Garden City, Cairo, Egypt 

Brokerage of securities and 
record-keeping of securities. 

Flemming CIIC Securities 

(In Liquidation) 

9 Mohamed Fahmy Street, 
Garden City, Cairo, Egypt 

Securities Brokerage. 

Flemming CIIC Corporate 
Finance  

9 Mohamed Fahmy Street, 
Garden City, Cairo, Egypt 

Promoting subscription to 
stocks. 
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Name Address Principal Activity 

MENA Opportunities 
Management Limited 

89 Nexus Way, Camana Bay, 
Grand Cayman, KY1-9007, 
Cayman Islands 

The company has been 
appointed as investment 
manager of the Master Fund. 

 The company is also the 
investment manager of the 
Middle East North Africa 
Opportunities Fund Limited. 

 

MENA (BVI) Holdings 
Limited 

Nemours Chambers, P.O. Box 
3170, Road Town, Tortola, 
British Virgin Islands 

Conducting investment 
activities in all forms of 
securities and other financial 
instruments of US and non-US 
issuers.   

Middle East North Africa 
Financial Investments W.L.L. 

1402, Building 95, Road 1702, 
Block 317 Manama, Bahrain 

Selling and buying shares and 
securities for the Company 
only. 

EFG-Hermes KSA PO Box 300189 Third Floor, 
Sky Towers Northern Tower, 
Riyadh 11372 Kingdom of 
Saudi Arabia 

Dealing as principal or agent 
and underwriting. 

  Managing for the purpose of 
establishing and managing 
investment funds and for the 
purpose of managing 
portfolios. 

  Arranging. 

  Advising. 

  Custody for the purpose of the 
procedures and administrative 
arrangements relating to 
investment funds and managing 
portfolios and international 
equity brokerage. 

EFG-Hermes Holding – 
Lebanon  

(In Liquidation) 

Mina El Hosn, Block 47, 2nd 
Floor, Beirut, Lebanon 

Owning shares in companies or 
partnerships, (whether 
Lebanese or foreign). 

  Participating in the founding 
and management of certain 
companies. 

  Participating in corporate 
lending, with respect to certain 
companies. 

  Holding rights in patents and 
discoveries, privileges and 
trademarks. 
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Name Address Principal Activity 

EFG-Hermes Lebanon 

(In Liquidation) 

Mina El Hosn, Block 47, 2nd 
floor, Beirut, Lebanon 

Carrying out any kind of 
lending either from the 
company's own funds, or 
through the issuance of debt 
securities and credit operations, 
and financial intermediation. 

EFG-Hermes MENA Securities 
Limited 

c/o Maples Corporate Services 
(BVI) Limited, Kingston 
Chambers, P.O. Box 173, Road 
Town, Tortola, British Virgin 
Islands 

No specified principal 
activities, however, it may 
engage in any activity not 
prohibited under any law for 
the time being in force in the 
British Virgin Islands. 

EFG-Hermes Regional 
Investments Ltd. 

c/o Maples Corporate Services  
Limited, P.O. Box 309, Ugland 
House, Grand Cayman, KYI - 
1104, Cayman Islands  

No specified principal 
activities, however, it may not 
engage in any act or activity 
prohibited by the Copmanies 
Act or any other law of the 
Cayman Islands. 

EFG-Hermes Oman LLC. 3rd Floor, Al Hormouz 
Building, Way No 3109, Sultan 
Qaboos Street, Ruwi, Sultanate 
of Oman. 

Securities Brokerage. 

EFG-Hermes IFA Financial 
Brokerage Company 

4th Floor, P.O. Box 
22695,13087 Kuwait. 

Acting as a Broker for short 
and long term Equity 
Investments, and investing in 
portfolios managed by others.   

Offset Holding KSC 4th Floor, P.O. Box 
22695,13087 Kuwait 

Holding shares of shareholding 
companies and other similar 
entities (Kuwaiti or non 
Kuwaiti) and participating in 
establishing and managing 
these companies. 

  Guaranteeing or lending to 
these companies. 

  Acquiring Industrial 
Proprietary rights including 
patents, industrial trade marks, 
or any related rights, leasing 
these rights to other companies, 
and using them inside or 
outside the State of Kuwait. 

  Acquiring all tangible and 
intangible assets that allow the 
company to carry out the above 
activities. 

  Investing surplus funds in 
portfolios or funds managed by 
specialised entities. 
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  Performing brokerage related 
activities. 

IDEAVELOPERS 42 Mohamed Hussein Heikal, 
Nasr City, Cairo, Egypt 

IDEAVELOPERS manages 
and advises technology-driven 
funds, technology investments 
of the Commercial Intl 
Investment Co ("CIIC"), 
provides quality venture 
development services, include 
offering early stage, high 
growth companies access to 
business development services, 
such as strategic marketing 
research, financial advisory 
services, and management 
consulting services. 

EFG Hermes CB Holding 
Limited 

c/o Maples Corporate Services 
Limited, P.O. Box 309, Ugland 
House, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1104, Cayman Islands 

Engage in any act or activity 
that is not prohibited by the 
Companies Act or any other 
law of the Cayman Islands. 

EFG Hermes Global CB 
Holding Limited 

c/o Maples Corporate Services 
Limited, P.O. Box 309, Ugland 
House, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1104, Cayman Islands 

Engage in any act or activity 
that is not prohibited by the 
Companies Act or any other 
law of the Cayman Islands. 

EFG Hermes Syria LLC Al-Tajhiz, Al Moutanabi St. 
Al- Beirouni Bldg (No. 6) 5th 
floor Damascus, Syria 

Brokerage, underwriting.  

Sindyan Syria LLC Maraga - Damascus tower, 
21st  - Damascus - Syria 

Investment in the sectors of 
industry, tourism, agricultural 
and commercial. 

Talas & Co. LLP Yelda - general st Building. N 
1735 

Import & export and est 
Companies.  

EFG Hermes Jordan Al Sharif Nasser Bin Jameel 
St. Building No. 85 
Shameisani, Amman, Jordan 
P.O Box: 930116 Amman 
11193 Jordan 

Securities Brokerage, 
brokerage clients' margin 
lending, financial consulting 
and investment management. 

MENA Long Term Value 
Feeder Holdings Ltd. 

c/o Maples Corporate Services 
Limited, P.O. Box 309, Ugland 
House, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1104, Cayman Islands 

Pursuant to the Amended and 
Restated Limited Partnership 
Agreement of the Partnership, 
dated 4 July 2010 (the 
"Limited Partnership 
Agreement"), the General 
Partner has been appointed as 
the General Partner of MENA 
Long-Term Value Feeder Fund 
L.P., a Cayman Islands (the 
"Partnership") which invests 
substantially all of its assets in 
MENA Long-Term Value 
Master Fund L.P., a Cayman 
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Islands exempted limited 
partnership, through a "master 
feeder" structure (the "Master 
Fund"). 

MENA Long-Term Value 
Master Holdings Ltd. 

c/o Maples Corporate Services 
Limited, P.O. Box 309, Ugland 
House, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1104, Cayman Islands 

Pursuant to the Amended and 
Restated Limited Partnership 
Agreement of the Partnership, 
dated 14 July 2010 (the 
"Limited Partnership 
Agreement"), between the 
Master Fund General Partner 
and MENA Long-Term Value 
Master Fund L.P., a Cayman 
Islands company (the "Master 
Fund") has been appointed as 
General Partner of the Master 
Fund. 

MENA Long-Term Value 
Management Ltd. 

c/o Maples Corporate Services 
Limited, P.O. Box 309, Ugland 
House, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1104, Cayman Islands 

Pursuant to the Confidential 
Offering Memorandum, dated 
14 July 2010 (the 
"Agreement"), the Company 
has been appointed as 
Investment Manager of MENA 
Long-Term Value Feeder Fund 
L.P., a Cayman Islands 
exempted partnership (the 
"Partnership") and MENA 
Long-Term Value Master Fund 
L.P. a Cayman Islands limited 
partnership (the "Master 
Fund") (together referred to as 
the "Funds").  MENA Long-
Term Value Feeder Holdings 
Ltd., an exempt Cayman 
Islands company (the "General 
Partner") and MENA Long-
Term Value Master Holdings 
Ltd., an exempt Cayman Island 
company (the "Master Fund 
General Partner") are the 
general partners of the 
Partnership and the Master 
Fund, respectively. 

EFG Hermes CL Holding SAL 2 Park Avenue Building – 
General Francois El Hajj Street 
Bab Idriss- Beirut Central 
District Beirut – Lebanon. 

Ownership of shares in banks 
and financial institutions and 
the Lebanese to participate in 
management and do Bmilit 
filing with and ensure third-
party lending and in accordance 
with what is allowed by law or 
by a system. 

EFG Hermes Investment Funds 
Co. 

9 Mohamed Fahmy Street 
Garden City - Kasr ElNil Cairo 
Egypt 

Establishment of Private Equity 
Funds according to the 
provisions of Capital Market 
Law No. 95 of 1992 and under 
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(In Liquidation) the approval of the Capital 
Market on 2 November 2009 
and has been registered in the 
Commercial Register South 
Cairo No. 59184 on 27 
September 2009. 

EFG Hermes Direct Investment  

(In Liquidation) 

9 Mohamed Fahmy Street 
Garden City – Kasr ElNil 
Cairo 
Egypt 

Managing Private Equity 
Funds. 

EFG-Hermes IB Limited c/o Maples Corporate Services 
Limited, P.O. Box 309, Ugland 
House, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1104, Cayman Islands 

The objectives for which the 
Company is established are 
unrestricted and the Company 
has full power and authority to 
carry out any objective not 
prohibited by any law as 
provided by Section 7(4) of the 
Companies Act of the Cayman 
Islands. However, the 
Company is involved in 
arranging and advising 
activities for sophisticated 
investors.  

Beaufort Investments S.à.r.l. 46 A, Avenue J.-F. Kennedy, 
L-1855 Luxembourg, Grand-
Duchy of Luxembourg 

The company may carry out all 
transactions pertaining directly 
or indirectly to the taking of 
participating interests in any 
enterprises in whatever form, 
as well as the administration, 
management, control and 
development of such 
participating interests, in the 
Grand Duchy of Luxembourg 
and abroad.  

  The company may particularly 
use its funds for the setting-up, 
managing, developing and 
disposing of portfolio 
consisting of any securities and 
intellectual property rights of 
whatever origin and participate 
in the creation, development 
and control of any enterprises. 
It may also acquire by way of 
contribution, subscription, 
underwriting or by option to 
purchase and by any other way 
whatsoever, any types of 
securities and intellectual 
property rights, have them 
developed and realise them by 
way of sale, transfer, exchange 
or otherwise.  



Information about EFG-Hermes MENA Securities Limited 

 

 89  
 
 

Name Address Principal Activity 

  The company may grant 
assistance (by way of loans, 
advances, guarantees or 
securities or otherwise) to 
companies or other enterprises 
in which the company has an 
interest or which form part of 
the group of companies to 
which the company belongs 
(such as, but not limited to, 
shareholders or affiliates). In 
general the company may carry 
out financial, commercial, 
industrial, moveable or real 
estate transactions, take any 
measures to safeguard its rights 
and make any transactions 
whatsoever which are directly 
or indirectly connected with its 
purpose or which promotes its 
development.  

  The company may borrow in 
any form, except by way of 
public offer, it may issue by 
way of private placement only, 
notes, bonds and debentures 
and any kind of debt, whether 
convertible or not and/or 
equity/securities. It may give 
guarantees and grant securities 
in favour of third parties to 
secure its obligations, or the 
obligations of its subsidiaries, 
affiliated companies or any 
other companies. The company 
may further pledge, transfer, 
encumber, or otherwise create 
security over some or all of its 
assets. 

EFG- Hermes USA Inc  3 Columbus Circle, 15th Floor, 
New York 10019 

Acting as broker dealer. 

EFG-Hermes Frontier Holdings 
LLC 

Office 301, The Exchange, 
DIFC, P.O. Box 30727 Dubai, 
UAE 

Holding Company. 

EFG Capital Partners III Ltd c/o Maples Corporate Services 
Limited, P.O. Box 309, Ugland 
House, Grand Cayman KY1-
1104, Cayman Islands 

Acting as the general 
partner/manager of an 
investment fund. 

Health Management Company c/o Maples Corporate Services 
Limited, P.O. Box 309, Ugland 
House, Grand Cayman KY1-
1104, Cayman Islands 

Acting as the general 
partner/manager of an 
investment fund. 
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EFG- Hermes Kenya Limited. L.R.NO. 1870/1/569, 2nd 
Floor, Apollo Centre, Ring 
Road Parklands, Nairobi 

Securities brokerage. 

EFG Finance Holding Building No. B129, Phase 3 
Smart Village, Km 28 Cairo 
Alexandria Desert Road, 6 
October 12577, Egypt 

Holding company. 

EFG- Hermes Pakistan Limited Office # 904, 9th Floor, 
Emerald Tower Plot No. G-19, 
Block-5, Clifton, Karachi, 
Pakistan. 

Securities brokerage. 

EFG- Hermes UK Limited 88 Crawford Street, London, 
W1H 2EJ, England 

Acting as financial advisor and 
arranger. 

OLT Investment International 
Company (B.S.C) 

Manama Center, Block 316, 
Road 365 Building B0001, Flat 
912, Bahrain 

Investment business and fund 
management. 

Frontier Investment 
Management Partners LTD 

Unit 10 Level 4 Currency 
House Building 1, Dubai 
International Financial Centre, 
P O Box 482011 Dubai, United 
Arab Emirates 

Advising on financial products, 
arranging credit and advising 
on credit arranging custody, 
arranging deals in Investments, 
dealing in investments as agent, 
managing a collective, 
investment fund and managing 
assets. 

EFG Hermes SP Limited c/o Maples Corporate Services 
Limited, P.O. Box 309, Ugland 
House, Grand Cayman KY1-
1104, Cayman Islands 

Acting as principal & agent for 
dealings in Structured products 
and derivatives. 

Valu Building No. B129, Phase 3 
Smart Village, Km 28 Cairo 
Alexandria Desert Road, 6 
October 12577, Egypt 

Instalment sale services. 

EFG Hermes Corp. Solutions Building No. B129, Phase 3 
Smart Village, Km 28 Cairo 
Alexandria Desert Road, 6 
October 12577, Egypt 

Corporate Leasing and 
Factoring. 

Beaufort Asset Managers LTD C/O Alexander & Co, 17 St. 
Anns Square, Manchester, 
England M2 7PW 

Other professional, scientific 
and technical activities not 
elsewhere classified. 

EFG Hermes Securitization Building No. B129, Phase 3, 
Smart Village, Km 28 Cairo 
Alexandria Desert Road, 6 
October 12577, Egypt 

Debt Securitization 

EFG Hermes Bangladesh 
Limited  

Haqs Tower (8th Floor), GA 
28/8D Mohakhali C/A, Bir 
Uttam A K Khondakar Road, 
Gulshan, Dhaka-1212, Dhaka, 
Bangladesh 

Representative Office 
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EFG Hermes FI Limited c/o Maples Corporate Services 
Limited, P.O. Box 309, Ugland 
House, Grand Cayman KY1-
1104, Cayman Islands 

Fixed Income Trading 

EFG Hermes PE Holding LLC Office 301, The Exchange, 
DIFC, P.O. Box 30727 Dubai, 
UAE 

Holding Company 

Etkan for Inquiry and 
Collection and Business 
Processes 

Building No. B129, Phase 3, 
Smart Village, Km 28 Cairo 
Alexandria Desert Road, 6 
October 12577, Egypt   

Debt Collection 

EFG Hermes Sukuk Building No. B129, Phase 3, 
Smart Village, Km 28 Cairo 
Alexandria Desert Road, 6 
October 12577, Egypt  

Sukuk Issuance 

Tanmeyah Micro Enterprise 
Services  

9H/3 –Takseem El-Laselky, 
Maadi, Cairo, Egypt  

Micro-Finance 

RX Healthcare Management c/o AXIS Fiduciary Ltd. 2nd 
Floor, The Axis, 26 Cyber city, 
Ebene 72701, Mauritius  

General partner/manager of an 
Investment Fund.  

FIM Partners KSA 5th Floor, Bahrain Tower, 
King Fahad Road, Olaya 
Riyadh, P.O Box 100 732, 
KSA 

Private Non-Real-Estate 
Investment Funds Management 
and Sophisticated Investor 
Portfolios Management 

Financial Group for 
Securitization 

Building No. B129, Phase 3, 
Smart Village, Km 28 Cairo 
Alexandria Desert Road, 6 
October 12577, Egypt 

Debt Securitization 

EFG Hermes Int. Fin Corp c/o Maples Corporate Services 
Limited, P.O. Box 309, Ugland 
House, Grand Cayman KY1-
1104, Cayman Islands 

Treasury Operations 

EFG Hermes Nigeria Limited 7th floor, The Post Square, 1/3, 
Ologun Agbaje Street, 
Off Adeola Odeku Street, 
Victoria Island, Lagos, Nigeria 

Securities Brokerage 

Egypt Education Fund GP 
Limited 
 

Office 301, The Exchange, 
DIFC, P.O. Box 30727 
Dubai, UAE  

Acting as the general partner of 
an investment fund  
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TAXATION 

The following summary of certain tax issues that may arise as a result of holding Notes is intended only 
as general information for holders of Notes. It is recommended that prospective applicants for Notes 
consult their own tax advisers for information with respect to the special tax consequences that may arise 
as a result of holding Notes, including the applicability and effect of foreign income tax rules, provisions 
contained in double taxation treaties and other rules which may be applicable. The Issuer does not assume 
responsibility for the withholding of taxes at source. 

All payments in respect of the Notes by or on behalf of the Issuer will be subject to any applicable 
withholding taxes of the British Virgin Islands. However, as at the date hereof, no such taxes would be 
applicable. 

1. General 

The following summary of the anticipated tax treatment in certain jurisdictions does not constitute legal 
or tax advice and is based on the taxation law and practice in force at the date of this document.  The 
summary applies only to persons holding Notes as an investment.  Particular rules not discussed below 
may apply to certain classes of taxpayer holding Notes, including dealers in securities and trusts. 

This summary does not consider all aspects of taxation which may be relevant to a particular Noteholder 
in the light of their particular circumstances (for example, tax consequences in the Noteholder's 
jurisdiction of residence).  Potential investors should consult their own advisers on the taxation and 
exchange controls implications of their acquiring, holding, redemption or disposing of the Notes and the 
receipt of payments thereon under the laws of any jurisdictions in which they are or may be liable to 
taxation. 

While this summary is considered to be a correct interpretation of existing laws and practice in force on 
the date of this document, no assurance can be given that courts or other authorities responsible for the 
administration of such laws will agree with this interpretation or that changes in such laws or practice 
will not occur. 

2. The British Virgin Islands 

2.1 Tax Considerations 

2.2 All payments made by the Issuer to persons who are not resident in the British Virgin Islands, 
and capital gains realised with respect to any shares in the Issuer by persons who are not resident 
in the British Virgin Islands are exempt from all provisions of the British Virgin Islands Income 
Tax Ordinance. 

2.3 As of 1 January 2005, the Payroll Taxes Act, 2004 came into force in the British Virgin Islands. 
It will not apply to the Issuer except to the extent that the Issuer has employees (or deemed 
employees) rendering services to the Issuer wholly or mainly in the British Virgin Islands. The 
Issuer at present has no employees in the British Virgin Islands and no intention of having any 
employees in the British Virgin Islands. 

2.4 No estate, inheritance, succession or gift tax, rate, duty, levy or other charge is payable by 
persons who are not resident in the BVI with respect to any shares in the Issuer. 

2.5 Subject to the payment of stamp duty on the acquisition of property in the British Virgin Islands 
by the Issuer (or a transfer of shares in the Company while it owns property in the British Virgin 
Islands): 

(i) all instruments relating to transfers of property to or by the Issuer; 

(ii) all instruments relating to transactions in respect of shares of the Issuer; and 

(iii) all instruments relating to the other transactions relating to the business of the Issuer, 

are exempt from the payment of stamp duty under the British Virgin Islands Stamp Act.  
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2.6 Automatic Exchange of Financial Account Information 

2.7 The British Virgin Islands has signed an inter-governmental agreement to improve international 
tax compliance and the exchange of information with the United States (the "US IGA"). The 
British Virgin Islands has also signed, along with over 100 other countries, a multilateral 
competent authority agreement to implement the OECD Standard for Automatic Exchange of 
Financial Account Information – Common Reporting Standard (the "CRS" and, together with 
the US IGA, "AEOI"). The UK is a participating jurisdiction for CRS and all UK reporting has 
been made pursuant to the CRS since 2017. 

2.8 Amendments have been made to the Mutual Legal Assistance (Tax Matters) Act 2003 and 
orders have been made pursuant to this act (the "BVI legislation") to give effect to the terms of 
the US IGA under BVI law.  Guidance notes were published by the government of the British 
Virgin Islands in March 2015 to provide practical assistance to entities and others affected by 
the US IGA and the BVI legislation (the "FATCA Guidance Notes"). Further amendments 
have been made to the BVI legislation to give effect to the terms of the CRS, which took effect 
on 1 January 2016. The implementing legislation makes it clear that the CRS commentary 
published by the Organisation for Economic Co-Operation and Development is an integral part 
of the CRS and applies for the purposes of the automatic exchange of financial account 
information. Additional guidance was issued by the BVI International Tax Authority (the 
"ITA") in October 2016 (and most recently updated by the ITA in February 2019) to aid with 
compliance with the BVI legislation relating to CRS (the "CRS Guidance Notes"). 

2.9 All "Financial Institutions" in the British Virgin Islands will be required to comply with the 
registration, due diligence and reporting requirements of the BVI legislation, except to the extent 
that they can rely on an exemption that allows them to become a "Non-Reporting Financial 
Institution" (as defined in the relevant BVI legislation) with respect to one or more of the AEOI 
regimes.  The Issuer does not propose to rely on any reporting exemption and therefore intends 
to comply with the requirements of the BVI legislation. 

2.10 The BVI legislation requires the Issuer to, amongst other things (i) register with the IRS to 
obtain a Global Intermediary Identification Number (in the context of the US IGA only), (ii) 
adopt and implement written policies and procedures setting out how it will address its 
obligations under CRS, (iii) conduct due diligence on its accounts to identify whether any such 
accounts are considered "Reportable Accounts", and (iv) report information on such 
Reportable Accounts to the BVI International Tax Authority ("BVI ITA") following enrolment 
on the BVI Financial Account Reporting System.  The BVI ITA will transmit the information 
reported to it to the overseas fiscal authority relevant to a reportable account (i.e. the IRS in the 
case of a US Reportable Account, HM Revenue & Customs in the case of a UK Reportable 
Account, etc.) annually on an automatic basis. 

By investing in the Notes and/or continuing to invest in the Notes, Holders shall be deemed to 
acknowledge that further information may need to be provided to the Issuer, the Issuer's 
compliance with the AEOI regimes and BVI legislation may result in the disclosure of Holders' 
information, and Holders' information may be exchanged with overseas fiscal authorities.  
Where a Holder fails to provide any requested information (regardless of the consequences), the 
Issuer reserves the right to take any action and/or pursue all remedies at its disposal including, 
without limitation, compulsory sale, redemption or withdrawal of the Holder's Notes. 

3. FATCA Considerations for Holders 

Under FATCA, certain payments made to the Issuer or the Guarantor may be subject to a 30 per 
cent. withholding tax if the Issuer, the Guarantor or certain intermediaries fail to meet the 
requirements under FATCA.  It is anticipated that the Issuer will seek to comply with FATCA.  

In order to be treated as FATCA compliant, the Issuer anticipates that it will comply with the 
US IGA and any implementing legislation, including the BVI legislation, in respect of the US 
IGA, and the Guarantor may enter into an agreement with the IRS (an "IRS Agreement"). 
Under FATCA, the Issuer and the Guarantor may be required to, among other things, obtain 
certain identifying information about Holders and beneficial owners of Notes and certain of 
their direct and indirect owners, and to withhold up to 30 per cent. of payments, including 
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principal, made to (i) a Holder or beneficial owner of a Note that fails to comply with reasonable 
requests for information that will help enable the Issuer or the Guarantor to comply with its 
reporting requirements described above (or, if applicable, that fails to provide a waiver of law 
that prohibits the disclosure of such information to a taxing authority) (such a Holder or 
beneficial owner, a "Recalcitrant Holder") or (ii) a Holder or beneficial owner that is a "foreign 
financial institution" as defined under FATCA and that is not FATCA compliant, unless such 
Holder or beneficial owner is exempted or otherwise deemed to be compliant.  In addition, a 
beneficial owner of Notes that holds a Note through a financial institution, broker, agent or other 
intermediary (collectively," Intermediaries") should note that payments to, or by, such an 
Intermediary in respect of the Notes may be subject to withholding.  In the event that the Issuer, 
the Guarantor or an Intermediary is required to deduct a withholding tax in respect of FATCA 
on any amounts paid on the Notes, no additional amounts will be payable in respect of amounts 
withheld.   

In addition, a Holder or beneficial owner that does not comply with the relevant requirements 
under FATCA may be subject to the forced sale or redemption of its Notes as described in 
Condition 2(g) (FATCA – Application to Holders) in the "Terms and Conditions".  Any sale or 
redemption will be at the Early Payment Amount, an amount determined by the Issuer that is 
not less than the net proceeds the Issuer believes it could receive for such Note by selling it (or 
an identical Note and using the proceeds to retire the Recalcitrant Holder's Note) to an investor 
that is willing and able to comply with the relevant requirements under FATCA. 

No assurance can be given that the Issuer or the Guarantor will be able to take all necessary 
actions or that actions taken will be successful in minimizing the withholding tax. Further, the 
efficacy of the Issuer's or the Guarantor's actions might not be within their control. Each 
potential investor in the Notes should consult its own tax advisor to obtain a more detailed 
explanation of FATCA and to determine how it might affect such investor in its particular 
circumstance. 
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CERTAIN ERISA CONSIDERATIONS 

Prospective investors should be aware that the Notes may not be purchased by US Persons.  Nothing in 
the discussion below should be interpreted to limit such prohibition. 

The advice below was not written and is not intended to be used and cannot be used by any taxpayer for 
purposes of avoiding United States federal income tax penalties that may be imposed.  The advice is 
written to support the promotion or marketing of the transaction.  Each taxpayer should seek advice 
based on the taxpayer's particular circumstances from an independent tax advisor.   

The US Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended ("ERISA"), imposes fiduciary 
standards and certain other requirements on employee benefit plans and other retirement arrangements 
subject thereto, including collective investment funds, and insurance company general and separate 
accounts whose underlying assets are treated as if they were assets of such plans pursuant to the US 
Department of Labor's "plan assets" regulation, set forth at 29 C.F.R. Section 2510.3-101 (as modified 
by Section 3(42) of ERISA, the "Plan Assets Regulation") or otherwise, and on those persons who are 
fiduciaries with respect to such plans or arrangements.  ERISA's general fiduciary requirements include 
the requirement of investment prudence and diversification and the requirement that investments be made 
in accordance with the governing plan documents.  The prudence of a particular investment will be 
determined by the responsible fiduciary by taking into account the particular circumstances of the plan 
and all of the facts and circumstances of the investment including, but not limited to, the matters 
discussed above under "Risk Factors" and the fact that in the future there may be no market in which 
such fiduciary will be able to sell or otherwise dispose of an investment. 

In addition, Section 406 of ERISA and Section 4975 of the Code prohibit certain transactions involving 
the assets of employee benefit plans subject to the fiduciary responsibility provisions of ERISA ("ERISA 
Plans") as well as those plans and arrangements that are not subject to the fiduciary responsibility 
provisions of ERISA but which are subject to Section 4975 of the Code (together with ERISA Plans, 
"Plans") and certain persons (referred to as "parties in interest" or "disqualified persons") having 
certain relationships to such Plans, unless a statutory or administrative exemption applies to the 
transaction.  In particular, a sale or exchange of property or an extension of credit between a Plan and a 
"party in interest" or "disqualified person" may constitute a prohibited transaction. In the case of 
indebtedness, the prohibited transaction provisions apply throughout the term of such indebtedness (and 
not only on the date of the initial borrowing).  A party in interest or disqualified person who engages in 
a prohibited transaction may be subject to excise taxes or other liabilities under ERISA and the Code. 

US governmental plans, certain church plans and non-US plans, while not subject to the fiduciary 
responsibility provisions of ERISA or the provisions of Section 4975 of the Code, may nevertheless be 
subject to US federal, state or local laws or non-US laws that are substantially similar to the foregoing 
provisions of ERISA and the Code.  Fiduciaries of any such plans should consult with their counsel 
before purchasing any Notes. 

Under a "look-through rule" set forth in the Plan Assets Regulation, if a Plan invests in an "equity 
interest" of an entity such as the Issuer and no other exception applies, the Plan's assets include both the 
equity interest and an undivided interest in each of the entity's underlying assets.  An equity interest does 
not include debt (as determined by applicable local law) which does not have substantial equity features.  
Under the Plan Assets Regulation, if a Plan invests in an "equity interest" of an entity that is neither a 
"publicly-offered security" nor a security issued by an investment company registered under the 
Investment Company Act, the Plan's assets include both the equity interest and an undivided interest in 
each of the entity's underlying assets, unless it is established that the entity is an "operating company" 
or that equity participation in the entity by "benefit plan investors" is not "significant."  Equity 
participation in an entity by "benefit plan investors" is "significant" if 25 per cent. or more of the value 
of any class of equity interest in the entity is held by "benefit plan investors".  Under Section 3(42) of 
ERISA, the term "benefit plan investor" includes (a) an "employee benefit plan" (as defined in Section 
3(3) of ERISA) that is subject to the fiduciary responsibilities provisions of ERISA, (b) a "plan" as 
defined in Section 4975(e)(1) of the Code that is subject to Section 4975 of the Code, (c) any entity 
whose underlying assets include "plan assets" by reason of any such employee benefit plan's or plan's 
investment in the entity or (d) a "benefit plan investor" as such term is otherwise defined in any 
regulations promulgated by the US Department of Labor under Section 3(42) of ERISA (collectively, 
"Benefit Plan Investors").  Employee benefit plans that are not subject to the fiduciary responsibility 
provisions of ERISA or Section 4975 of the Code, such as US governmental plans, certain church plans 
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or non-US plans, are not considered "benefit plan investors". For purposes of making the 25 per cent. 
determination, the value of any equity interests held by a person (other than a benefit plan investor) who 
has discretionary authority or control with respect to the assets of the Issuer or any person who provides 
investment advice for a fee (direct or indirect) with respect to the Issuer's assets, or any affiliate of such 
a person (a "Controlling Person"), shall be disregarded. Under the Plan Assets Regulation, an "affiliate" 
of a person includes any person, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, controlling, 
controlled by or under common control with the person, and "control" with respect to a person, other 
than an individual, means the power to exercise a controlling influence over the management or policies 
of such person. 

The US Supreme Court's decision, in John Hancock Mutual Life Insurance Co. v. Harris Trust and 
Savings Bank ("Harris Trust"), 510 US 86 (1993), held that those funds allocated to the general account 
of an insurance company pursuant to a contract with an employee benefit plan that varies with the 
investment experience of the insurance company are "plan assets". The American Council of Life 
Insurance requested a prohibited transaction class exemption to counteract the effects of Harris Trust. In 
the preamble to the resulting Prohibited Transaction Class Exemption 95-60, 60 Fed. Reg. 35925 (12 
July 1995) ("PTCE 95-60"), the US Department of Labor noted that for purposes of calculating the 25 
per cent. threshold under the significant participation test of the Plan Assets Regulation, only the 
proportion of an insurance company general account's equity investment in the entity that represents plan 
assets should be taken into account. Furthermore, a change in the level of plan investment in a general 
account subsequent to the general account's purchase of an interest in the entity would not, by itself, 
trigger a new determination of whether plan participation in the entity is significant. However, it is the 
US Department of Labor's view that a purchase by the general account of an additional interest in the 
entity subsequent to its initial investment or an acquisition in the entity by any investor subsequent to the 
general account's initial investment would require a new determination of significant plan participation. 
Although the US Department of Labor has not specified how to determine the proportion of an insurance 
company general account that represents plan assets for purposes of the 25 per cent. threshold, they have, 
in the case of PTCE 95-60, provided a method for determining the percentage of an insurance company's 
general account held by the benefit plans of an employer and its Affiliates by comparing the reserves and 
liabilities for the general account contracts held by such plans to the total reserves and liabilities of the 
general account (exclusive of separate account liabilities) plus surplus. However, there is no assurance 
that a similar measurement would be used for purposes of the 25 per cent. threshold. 

Any insurance company proposing to invest assets of its general account in the Notes should consider 
the extent to which such investment would be subject to the requirements of ERISA in light of the US 
Supreme Court's decision in Harris Trust and under any subsequent guidance that may become available 
relating to that decision. In particular, such an insurance company should consider the retroactive and 
prospective exemptive relief granted by the US Department of Labor for transactions involving insurance 
company general accounts in Prohibited Transaction Class Exemption 95-60 and the enactment of 
Section 401(c) of ERISA by the Small Business Job Protection Act of 1996 and the US Department of 
Labor's regulations issued thereunder.  

The Notes would likely be considered to have substantial equity features under the Plan Assets 
Regulation and, accordingly, should not be acquired by any benefit plan investor other than an insurance 
company general account, provided that in the case of the Notes, less than 25 per cent. of the assets in 
such general account constitute "plan assets" (as defined in the Plan Asset Regulation) for purposes of 
ERISA and/or Section 4975 of the Code.  There are no assurances that any of the exceptions to the look-
through rule (other than the exception for equity participation in an entity by benefit plan investors that 
is less than 25 per cent.) applies to the investment by investors in the Notes of the Issuer.  Furthermore, 
there can be no assurance that, despite the transfer restrictions relating to purchases by benefit plan 
investors and procedures to be employed to attempt to limit the ownership by benefit plan investors of 
the Notes to less than 25 per cent. of the Notes, benefit plan investors will not in actuality own 25 per 
cent. or more of the value of the Notes. 

BY ITS PURCHASE OR HOLDING OF A NOTE OR ANY INTEREST THEREIN, THE 
PURCHASER AND/OR HOLDER THEREOF AND EACH TRANSFEREE WILL BE DEEMED TO 
HAVE REPRESENTED AND WARRANTED AT THE TIME OF ITS PURCHASE AND 
THROUGHOUT THE PERIOD THAT IT HOLDS SUCH NOTE OR INTEREST THEREIN THAT 
(1),(A) IT IS NOT A BENEFIT PLAN INVESTOR OR (B) IT IS AN INSURANCE COMPANY 
ACTING ON BEHALF OF ITS GENERAL ACCOUNT AND, (I) IT IS NOT A CONTROLLING 
PERSON, (II) AS OF THE DATE IT ACQUIRES ANY NOTE, OR ANY INTEREST THEREIN, LESS 
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THAN 25 PER CENT. OF THE ASSETS OF SUCH GENERAL ACCOUNT CONSTITUTES "PLAN 
ASSETS" (AS DEFINED IN THE "PLAN ASSETS REGULATION") FOR PURPOSES OF ERISA 
AND/OR SECTION 4975 OF THE CODE, (III) IT AGREES THAT IF, AFTER ITS INITIAL 
ACQUISITION OF ANY CLASS OF THE NOTES OR ANY INTEREST THEREIN, AT ANY TIME 
DURING ANY MONTH, 25 PER CENT. OR MORE OF THE ASSETS OF SUCH GENERAL 
ACCOUNT CONSTITUTES "PLAN ASSETS", THEN SUCH INSURANCE COMPANY SHALL, IN 
A MANNER CONSISTENT WITH THE RESTRICTIONS ON TRANSFER SET FORTH HEREIN, 
DISPOSE OF ALL OF THE NOTE, OR ANY OTHER CLASS OF EQUITY INTEREST IN THE 
ISSUER, AND ANY INTEREST THEREIN, HELD IN ITS GENERAL ACCOUNT BY THE END OF 
THE NEXT FOLLOWING MONTH AND (IV) THE ACQUISITION OR HOLDING OF ANY SUCH 
NOTES, OR ANY INTEREST THEREIN, WILL NOT CONSTITUTE OR RESULT IN A 
PROHIBITED TRANSACTION UNDER SECTION 406 OF ERISA OR SECTION 4975 OF THE 
CODE WHICH IS NOT COVERED UNDER PTCE 95-60 OR SOME OTHER APPLICABLE 
EXEMPTION AND (2) IF IT IS A US GOVERNMENTAL, CHURCH, NON-US OR OTHER PLAN 
WHICH IS SUBJECT TO ANY FEDERAL, STATE, LOCAL OR NON-US LAW THAT IS 
SUBSTANTIALLY SIMILAR TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 406 OF ERISA OR SECTION 
4975 OF THE CODE, ITS PURCHASE AND/OR HOLDING OF SUCH NOTES WILL NOT 
CONSTITUTE OR RESULT IN A NON-EXEMPT VIOLATION UNDER SUCH SUBSTANTIALLY 
SIMILAR FEDERAL, STATE, LOCAL OR NON-US LAW. IN ADDITION, EACH PURCHASER, 
HOLDER AND/OR TRANSFEREE OF A NOTE, OR ANY INTEREST THEREIN, THAT IS A 
BENEFIT PLAN INVESTOR WILL BE DEEMED TO HAVE REPRESENTED AND WARRANTED 
AT THE TIME OF ITS PURCHASE AND THROUGHOUT THE PERIOD THAT IT HOLDS SUCH 
NOTE OR INTEREST THEREIN THAT:  (1) IT IS REPRESENTED BY A FIDUCIARY (THE 
"FIDUCIARY") THAT IS INDEPENDENT OF THE ISSUER, THE GUARANTOR AND THE 
DEALER (i.e., THERE IS NO FINANCIAL INTEREST, OWNERSHIP INTEREST, AGREEMENT 
OR UNDERSTANDING THAT WOULD LIMIT THE FIDUCIARY'S ABILITY TO CARRY OUT 
ITS FIDUCIARY RESPONSIBILITIES WITH RESPECT TO THE BENEFIT PLAN INVESTOR 
BEYOND THE CONTROL, DIRECTION OR INFLUENCE OF THE ISSUER, THE GUARANTOR 
AND THE DEALER); (2) THE FIDUCIARY IS CAPABLE OF EVALUATING INVESTMENT 
RISKS INDEPENDENTLY, BOTH IN GENERAL AND WITH REGARD TO THE BENEFIT PLAN 
INVESTOR'S PURCHASE AND HOLDING OF THE NOTE OR INTEREST THEREIN; (3) THE 
FIDUCIARY UNDERSTANDS THAT THE ISSUER, THE GUARANTOR AND THE DEALER ARE 
NOT UNDERTAKING TO PROVIDE IMPARTIAL INVESTMENT ADVICE, OR TO GIVE 
ADVICE IN A FIDUCIARY CAPACITY, IN CONNECTION WITH THE TRANSACTION; (4) THE 
FIDUCIARY UNDERSTANDS THAT THE ISSUER, THE GUARANTOR AND THE DEALER 
HAVE FINANCIAL INTERESTS IN THE TRANSACTION AND HAS BEEN INFORMED OF THE 
NATURE OF SUCH FINANCIAL INTERESTS; (5) THE FIDUCIARY IS A FIDUCIARY UNDER 
ERISA OR THE CODE, OR BOTH, WITH RESPECT TO THE TRANSACTION AND IS 
RESPONSIBLE FOR EXERCISING INDEPENDENT JUDGMENT IN EVALUATING THE 
TRANSACTION; AND (6) THE FIDUCIARY UNDERSTANDS THAT THE ISSUER, THE 
GUARANTOR AND THE DEALER DID NOT RECEIVE A FEE OR OTHER COMPENSATION 
DIRECTLY FROM THE PLAN, PLAN FIDUCIARY, PLAN PARTICIPANT OR BENEFICIARY, 
IRA, OR IRA OWNER FOR THE PROVISION OF INVESTMENT ADVICE (AS OPPOSED TO 
OTHER SERVICES) IN CONNECTION WITH THIS TRANSACTION.  FOR THE PURPOSES OF 
THIS PARAGRAPH, "IRA" MEANS ANY ACCOUNT OR ANNUITY DESCRIBED IN SECTION 
4975(e)(1)(B) THROUGH (F) OF THE CODE, INCLUDING, FOR EXAMPLE, AN INDIVIDUAL 
RETIREMENT ACCOUNT DESCRIBED IN SECTION 408(A) OF THE CODE AND A HEALTH 
SAVINGS ACCOUNT DESCRIBED IN SECTION 223(D) OF THE CODE AND "IRA OWNER" 
MEANS, WITH RESPECT TO AN IRA, EITHER THE PERSON WHO IS THE OWNER OF THE 
IRA OR THE PERSON FOR WHOSE BENEFIT THE IRA WAS ESTABLISHED. 

If for any reason the assets of the Issuer are deemed to be "plan assets" of a Plan because one or more 
Plans is an owner of a Note, certain transactions that the Guarantor or the Dealer, as the case may be, 
might enter into, or may have entered into, on behalf of the Issuer in the ordinary course of its business 
might constitute non-exempt "prohibited transactions" under Section 406 of ERISA or Section 4975 of 
the Code and might have to be rescinded at significant cost to the Issuer.  The Guarantor or the Dealer, 
as the case may be, could be deemed to be an ERISA fiduciary and therefore may be prevented from 
engaging in certain investments (as not being deemed consistent with the ERISA prudent investment 
standards) or engaging in certain transactions or fee arrangements because they might be deemed to cause 
non-exempt prohibited transactions.  It also is not clear that provisions of ERISA that limit the delegation 



Certain ERISA Considerations 

 

 98  
 
 

of investment management responsibilities by fiduciaries of ERISA Plans, would be satisfied.  In 
addition, it is unclear whether Section 404(b) of ERISA, which generally provides that no fiduciary may 
maintain the indicia of ownership of any assets of a plan outside the jurisdiction of the district courts of 
the United States, would be satisfied or any of the exceptions to the requirement set forth in 29 C.F.R. 
Section 2550.404b-1 would be available. 

Any Plan fiduciary that proposes to cause a Plan to purchase any Notes should consult with its counsel 
regarding the applicability of the fiduciary responsibility and prohibited transaction provisions of ERISA 
and Section 4975 of the Code to such an investment, and to confirm that such investment will not 
constitute or result in a non-exempt prohibited transaction or any other violation of an applicable 
requirement of ERISA or any substantially similar law. 

The sale of any Notes to a Plan is in no respect a representation by the Issuer, the Dealer or the Guarantor 
that such an investment meets all relevant legal requirements with respect to investments by Plans 
generally or any particular Plan, or that such an investment is appropriate for Plans generally or any 
particular Plan. 
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SUBSCRIPTION AND SALE  

Financial Brokerage Group will act as Dealer to purchase, procure the placement of and/or distribute the 
Notes outside the United States to non-US Persons in reliance on Regulation S. 

No action has been or will be taken by any Dealer (other than as specified below) that would permit a 
public offering of the Notes or possession or distribution of any offering material in relation to the Notes 
in any jurisdiction where action for that purpose is required. No offers, sales or deliveries of any Notes, 
or distribution of any offering material relating to the Notes, may be made in or from any jurisdiction 
except in circumstances which will result in compliance with any applicable laws and regulations and 
will not impose any obligations on the Issuer. 

Important Information 

The Authorised Person acting as Hedge Counterparty is required under the terms of the regulatory 
approval given to it by the Capital Market Authority to, among other things, notify the Capital Market 
Authority of the beneficiary of and details concerning each Hedge Position, which may be deemed to 
include details the beneficial owner of each Note Linked to Saudi Shares.  

In respect of Notes Linked to Saudi Shares, each purchaser of such Notes will be required, as a condition 
of any sale of such Notes, to execute a letter substantially in the form set out in the section entitled "Form 
of Noteholder Letter" to the Issuer, the Guarantor, the Dealer, the Calculation Agent and the Authorised 
Person (if any). Such letter, among other things, authorises any of the Issuer, the Guarantor or the 
Authorised Person to disclose the purchaser's identity and the terms of such Notes to the Capital Market 
Authority and also contains certain authorisations, representations, warranties, confirmations and 
undertakings that each purchaser is required to make in favour of the Issuer, the Guarantor, the Dealer, 
the Calculation Agent and the Authorised Person. Such letter also contains certain authorisations, 
representations, warranties, confirmations and undertakings that each purchaser is required to make in 
respect of US tax and securities laws.   

UNITED STATES  

The Notes and the Guarantee thereof have not been and will not be registered under the Securities Act, 
or any state securities laws, and trading in the Notes and the Guarantee thereof has not been approved by 
the SEC, any state securities commission, the US Commodity Futures Trading Commission under the 
US Commodity Exchange Act of 1936, as amended, any US federal or state banking authority or any 
other US regulatory authority. The Issuer has not registered, and does not intend to register, as an 
investment company under the Investment Company Act. In addition, Bearer Notes may be subject to 
certain US tax law requirements. Accordingly, the Notes and the Guarantee thereof may not be offered, 
sold, pledged, assigned, delivered, redeemed or otherwise transferred or exercised at any time within the 
United States or its possessions or to, or for the account or benefit of, any US Person. The Notes and the 
Guarantee thereof are being offered and sold outside of the United States in reliance on Regulation S.  

Furthermore, each holder and beneficial owner will be deemed on purchase to agree that (1) the Notes 
will be represented by Global Notes or Global Certificates, as the case may be, and, accordingly, prior 
to the expiration of the period ending upon the date which is 40 days after the later of (i) the relevant 
issue date and (ii) the completion of the offering, and upon certification as to non-US beneficial 
ownership as required by US Treasury regulations, before any interest in a Global Note or Global 
Certificate, as applicable, may be offered, sold, pledged or otherwise transferred to a person who takes 
delivery in the form of an interest in a Global Certificate or Global Note, as applicable, such person will 
be required to provide the Registrar or the relevant Agents with a written certification that it is a non-US 
Person (in the form provided in the Agency Agreement) and (2) the Issuer, the Guarantor, the Agents, 
the Dealer, their affiliates and others will rely upon the truth and accuracy of the acknowledgements, 
representations and agreements made by each purchaser. 

The Notes may not be legally or beneficially owned by any US Person at any time. Each holder and each 
legal and beneficial owner of a Note as a condition to purchasing such Note or any legal or beneficial 
interest therein will be deemed to represent on purchase that neither it nor any person for whose account 
or benefit such Notes are being purchased (i) is located in the United States, (ii) was solicited to purchase 
the Notes while present in the United States or (iii) is a US Person or acting for the account or benefit of 
a US Person. 
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Accordingly, the Dealer has represented and agreed in the Dealer Agreement that it, its affiliates, and 
any person acting on its or their behalf has not offered or sold and will not offer or sell the Notes and the 
Guarantee thereof, at any time, directly or indirectly, within the United States or to, or for the account or 
benefit of, any US Person, and that neither it, its affiliates nor any persons acting on its or their behalf 
have engaged or will engage in any directed selling efforts with respect to such Notes and the Guarantee 
thereof, and have complied and will comply with the offering restrictions requirement of Regulation S. 
The Dealer has also agreed in the Dealer Agreement that, at or prior to confirmation of a sale of Notes, 
it, its affiliates, and any person acting on its or their behalf will have sent to each distributor, dealer or 
person receiving a selling concession, fee or other remuneration that purchases Notes from it (whether 
upon original issuance or in any secondary transaction) a written confirmation or notice stating that the 
purchaser is subject to the same restrictions on offers and sales and setting forth the restrictions on offers 
and sales of the Notes and the Guarantee within the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, 
any US person. The terms used in this and the preceding two paragraphs have the meanings given to 
them by Regulation S. 

Notes in bearer form for US federal income tax purposes are subject to US tax law requirements and may 
not be offered, sold or delivered within the United States or its possessions or to a United States person 
(as defined in the Code), except in certain transactions permitted by US Treasury regulations. Terms used 
in this paragraph have the meaning given to them under the US Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 
amended (the "Code"), and regulations thereunder. 

Notes may be issued in accordance with the provisions of US Treas. Reg. §1.163-5(c)(2)(i)(D) (the "D 
Rules") or in accordance with the provisions of the US Treas. Reg. §1.163-5(c)(2)(i)(C) (the "C Rules"), 
in each case, including any successor regulations or rules in substantially the same form as the D Rules 
or the C Rules, as applicable, for purposes of Section 4701 of the Code. 

In the case of Notes issued in accordance with the D Rules, the Dealer represents and agrees (and will 
cause each other dealer to which it sells any Notes during the restricted period to represent and agree) 
that: 

(a) except to the extent permitted under the D Rules (a) the Dealer represents that it has not offered 
or sold, and agrees that during the restricted period it will not offer or sell, the Notes to a person 
who is within the United States or its possessions or to a United States person, and (b) represents 
that it has not delivered and agrees that it will not deliver within the United States or its 
possessions bearer Definitive Notes or registered Definitive Notes that are sold during the 
restricted period; 

(b) the Dealer represents that it has and agrees that throughout the restricted period it will have in 
effect procedures reasonably designed to ensure that its employees or agents who are directly 
engaged in selling the Notes are aware that the Notes may not be offered or sold during the 
restricted period to a person who is within the United States or its possessions or to a United 
States person, and the Dealer acknowledges that an offer or sale will be considered to be made 
to a person who is within the United States or its possessions if the Dealer has (with respect to 
such offer or sale) an address within the United States or its possessions for the offeree or buyer 
of the Notes, except as permitted by the D Rules; 

(c) if it is a United States person, the Dealer represents that it is acquiring the Notes for purposes of 
resale in connection with their original issue and if it retains Notes for its own account, it will 
only do so in accordance with the requirements of US Treas. Reg. §1.163-5(c)(2)(i)(D)(6); 

(d) with respect to each affiliate that acquires Notes from it for the purpose of offering or selling 
the Notes during the restricted period, the Dealer either (i) repeats and confirms the 
representations and agreements contained in (a), (b) and (c) above on such affiliate's behalf or 
(ii) agrees that it will obtain from such affiliate for the benefit of the Issuer the representations 
and agreements contained in (a), (b) and (c) above; and 

(e) the Dealer represents that it has not and agrees that it will not enter into any written contract 
(other than a confirmation or other notice of the transaction) pursuant to which any other party 
to the contract (other than one of its affiliates or another Dealer) has offered or sold, or during 
the restricted period will offer or sell, any Notes, except where pursuant to the contract the 
Dealer has obtained or will obtain from that party, for the benefit of the Issuer and the Dealer, 
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the representations contained in, and that party's agreement to comply with, the provisions of 
(a), (b), (c) and (d) above. 

Terms used in (a), (b), (c), (d) and (e) above have the meaning given to them by the Code and regulations 
thereunder, including the D Rules.  

In respect of Notes where the C Rules are specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement as being 
applicable, such Notes must be issued and delivered outside the United States and its possessions in 
connection with their original issuance. The Dealer represents and agrees that a) it has not offered, sold 
or delivered, and will not offer, sell or deliver, directly or indirectly, Notes within the United States or 
its possessions in connection with their original issuance; and b) in connection with the original issuance 
of Notes, it has not communicated, and will not communicate, directly or indirectly, with a potential 
purchaser if either such Dealer or such purchaser is within the United States or its possessions and will 
not otherwise involve its US office in the offer or sale of Notes. The Dealer further represents that it has 
not advertised or promoted, and will not advertise or promote, directly or indirectly, any Notes from or 
within the United States or its possessions or to potential purchasers in the United States or its 
possessions. 

Terms used in the paragraph above have the meanings given to them under the Code and regulations 
thereunder, including the C Rules. 

UNITED KINGDOM 

Prohibition of sales to UK Retail Investors: Unless the Pricing Supplement in respect of any Notes 
which are the subject of the offering contemplated by these Base Listing Particulars as completed by the 
Pricing Supplement specifies "Prohibition of Sales to UK Retail Investors" as "Not Applicable", the 
Dealer has represented and agreed, and each further Dealer appointed under the Programme will be 
required to represent and agree, that it has not offered, sold or otherwise made available and will not 
offer, sell or otherwise make available the Notes to any retail investor in the United Kingdom. 

For the purposes of this provision: 

(a) the expression retail investor means a person who is one (or more) of the following: 

(i) a retail client, as defined in point (8) of Article 2 of Regulation (EU) No 2017/565 as it 
forms part of UK domestic law by virtue of the European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018 
(as amended, "EUWA"); or 

(ii) a customer within the meaning of the provisions of the Financial Services and Markets Act 
2000 ("FSMA") and any rules or regulations made under the FSMA to implement 
Directive (EU) 2016/97, where that customer would not qualify as a professional client, as 
defined in point (8) of Article 2(1) of Regulation (EU) No 600/2014 as it forms part of UK 
domestic law by virtue of the EUWA; or 

(iii) not a qualified investor as defined in Article 2 of the UK Prospectus Regulation; and 

(b) the expression "an offer" includes the communication in any form and by any means of sufficient 
information on the terms of the offer and the Notes to be offered so as to enable an investor to 
decide to purchase or subscribe for the Notes.  

If the Pricing Supplement in respect of any Notes which are the subject of the offering contemplated by 
these Base Listing Particulars as completed by the Pricing Supplement specifies "Prohibition of Sales to 
UK Retail Investors" as "Not Applicable", the Dealer has represented and agreed, and each further Dealer 
appointed under the Programme will be required to represent and agree, that it has not made and will not 
make an offer of the Notes to the public in the United Kingdom except that it may make an offer of the 
Notes to the public in the United Kingdom: 

(A) at any time to any legal entity which is a qualified investor as defined in Article 2 of the UK 
Prospectus Regulation; 
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(B) at any time to fewer than 150 natural or legal persons (other than qualified investors as defined in 
Article 2 of the UK Prospectus Regulation) in the United Kingdom subject to obtaining the prior 
consent of the relevant Dealer or Dealers nominated by the Issuer for any such offer; or 

(C) at any time in any other circumstances falling within section 86 of the FSMA, 

provided that no such offer of Notes referred to in (A) to (C) above shall require the Issuer or any Dealer 
to publish a prospectus pursuant to section 85 of the FSMA or supplement a prospectus pursuant to 
Article 23 of the UK Prospectus Regulation. 

For the purposes of this provision, the expression "an offer of Notes to the public" in relation to any 
Notes means the communication in any form and by any means of sufficient information on the terms of 
the offer and the Notes to be offered so as to enable an investor to decide to purchase or subscribe for the 
Notes and the expression "UK Prospectus Regulation" means Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 as it forms 
part of UK domestic law by virtue of the EUWA (as amended). 

Other regulatory restrictions: The Dealer has represented and agreed, and each further Dealer 
appointed under this Programme will be required to represent and agree, that: 

(a) it has only communicated or caused to be communicated and will only communicate or cause 
to be communicated any invitation or inducement to engage in investment activity (within the 
meaning of section 21 (financial promotion) of the FSMA) received by it in connection with the 
issue or sale of any Notes in circumstances in which section 21(1) of the FSMA does not apply 
to the Issuer or the Guarantor; and 

(b) it has complied and will comply with all applicable provisions of the FSMA with respect to 
anything done by it in relation to any Notes in, from or otherwise involving the United Kingdom. 

The Dealer may promote the Notes (or appoint a third party to promote the Notes) in the United Kingdom 
only to persons falling within either Article 19 (investment professionals) or Article 49 (high net worth 
companies, unincorporated associations, etc.) of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (Financial 
Promotion) Order 2005 and not to any other person unless it is possible to do so without breaching the 
restriction in section 21(1) of FSMA, and the Dealer considers it appropriate to do so in any particular 
case.  These Notes are not intended to be promoted to retail investors in the United Kingdom, and the 
Dealer will not do so.  Subsequent purchasers of the Notes are informed of this and must ensure (and 
have the sole responsibility of ensuring) that any subsequent sale of the Notes by them is done in 
accordance with FSMA and the FCA Rules. 

EUROPEAN ECONOMIC AREA 

Unless the Pricing Supplement in respect of any Notes which are the subject of the offering contemplated 
by these Base Listing Particulars as completed by the Pricing Supplement specifies the "Prohibition of 
Sales to EEA Retail Investors" as "Not Applicable", the Dealer has represented and agreed, and each 
further Dealer appointed under the Programme will be required to represent and agree, that it has not 
offered, sold or otherwise made available and will not offer, sell or otherwise make available the Notes 
to any retail investor in the European Economic Area. 

For the purposes of this provision: 

(a) the expression "retail investor" means a person who is one (or more) of the following: 

(i) a retail client as defined in point (11) of Article 4(1) of Directive 2014/65/EU (as 
amended, "MiFID II"); or 

(ii) a customer within the meaning of Directive (EU) 2016/97, where that customer would 
not qualify as a professional client as defined in point (10) of Article 4(1) of MiFID II; 
or 

(iii) not a qualified investor as defined in the EU Prospectus Regulation; and 
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(b) the expression "an offer" includes the communication in any form and by any means of 
sufficient information on the terms of the offer and the Notes to be offered so as to enable an 
investor to decide to purchase or subscribe for the Notes. 

If the Pricing Supplement in respect of any Notes which are the subject of the offering contemplated by 
these Base Listing Particulars as completed by the Pricing Supplement specifies "Prohibition of Sales to 
EEA Retail Investors" as "Not Applicable", in relation to each Member State of the European Economic 
Area, the Dealer has represented and agreed, and each further Dealer appointed under the Programme 
will be required to represent and agree, that it has not made and will not make an offer of the Notes to 
the public in that Member State except that it may, make an offer of the Notes to the public in that 
Member State:  

(a) at any time to any legal entity which is a qualified investor as defined in the EU Prospectus 
Regulation; 

(b) at any time to fewer than 150 natural or legal persons (other than qualified investors as defined 
in the EU Prospectus Regulation), subject to obtaining the prior consent of the Dealer or Dealers 
nominated by the Issuer for any such offer; or 

(c) at any time in any other circumstances falling within Article 1(4) of the EU Prospectus 
Regulation, 

provided that no such offer of Notes referred to in (a) to (c) (inclusive) above shall require the Issuer or 
the Dealer to publish a prospectus pursuant to Article 3 of the EU Prospectus Regulation or supplement 
a prospectus pursuant to Article 23 of the EU Prospectus Regulation. 

For the purposes of this provision, the expression "an offer of Notes to the public" in relation to any 
Notes in any Member State means the communication in any form and by any means of sufficient 
information on the terms of the offer and the Notes to be offered so as to enable an investor to decide to 
purchase or subscribe for the Notes and the expression "EU Prospectus Regulation" means Regulation 
(EU) 2017/1129, as amended. 

BAHRAIN, KINGDOM OF  

The Dealer has represented and agreed, and any further Dealer appointed under the Programme will be 
required to represent and agree, that it has not offered, and will not offer, Notes to any person in the 
Kingdom of Bahrain. These Base Listing Particulars have been prepared for private information purposes 
of intended investors only who will be high net worth individuals and institutions. The Issuer represents 
and warrants that it has not made and will not make any invitation in or from the Kingdom of Bahrain 
and will not market or offer Notes to any potential investor in the Kingdom of Bahrain. All marketing 
and offering is made and will be made outside the Kingdom of Bahrain.   

The Central Bank of Bahrain has not reviewed, nor has it approved, these Base Listing Particulars or the 
marketing of Notes and takes no responsibility for the accuracy of the statements and information 
contained in these Base Listing Particulars, nor shall it have any liability to any person for any loss or 
damage resulting from reliance on any statements or information contained herein. 

BRITISH VIRGIN ISLANDS  

The Dealer has represented and agreed with the Issuer that it shall not offer and sell Notes to the public 
in the British Virgin Islands unless the Issuer or the person offering the Notes on its behalf is licensed to 
carry on business in the British Virgin Islands. The Issuer is not licensed to carry on business in the 
British Virgin Islands. The Notes may be offered to British Virgin Islands business companies (from 
outside the British Virgin Islands) without restriction. A "British Virgin Islands business company" is a 
BVI company formed under or otherwise governed by the BVI Business Companies Act, 2004 (as 
amended) of the BVI. These Base Listing Particulars and any Pricing Supplement issued hereunder are 
not for circulation to the public in the British Virgin Islands. 

IRELAND  

The Dealer represents, warrants and agrees that, and each further Dealer appointed under the Programme 
will be required to represent, warrant and agree that, it has not offered, sold, placed or underwritten and 
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will not offer, sell, place or underwrite the Notes or do anything in Ireland in respect of the Notes, 
otherwise than in conformity with the provisions of: 

(a) the Prospectus (Directive 2003/71/EC) Regulations 2005 (as amended) and any Central Bank 
of Ireland ("Central Bank") rules issued and / or in force pursuant to Section 1363 of the 
Companies Act 2014 (as amended); 

(b) the European Communities (Markets in Financial Instruments) Regulations 2017 (as amended) 
and it will conduct itself in accordance with any rules or codes of conduct and any conditions 
or requirements, or any other enactment, imposed or approved by the Central Bank;  

(c) Regulation (EU) No 596/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 16 April 2014 
on market abuse, the European Union (Market Abuse) Regulations 2016 and any Central Bank 
rules issued and / or in force pursuant to Section 1370 of the Companies Act and will assist the 
Issuer in complying with its obligations thereunder;  

(d) Regulation (EU) No 1286/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 26 November 
2014 on key information documents for packaged retail and insurance-based investment 
products (PRIIPs); and 

(e) the Central Bank Acts 1942 to 2015 (as amended) and any codes of conduct rules made under 
Section 117(1) of the Central Bank Act 1989.  

EGYPT  

The Notes described in this document have not been, and are not being, publicly offered, sold, promoted 
or advertised in Egypt.  Further, this document does not constitute a public offer of Notes in Egypt and 
is not intended to be a public offer. The Notes described in this Base Listing Particulars and this document 
have not been reviewed, filed or registered with the Egyptian Financial Regulatory Authority or other 
relevant authorities in Egypt. 

KINGDOM OF SAUDI ARABIA 

Notes may not be offered or sold into the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia or to or for the benefit of anyone 
other than a "non-resident foreign investor" for the purpose of the CMA Resolution (as defined in "Form 
of Noteholder Letter" below).  

Pursuant to section 3 of the CMA Resolution, the Notes may not be sold, where the ultimate beneficiary 
is any of the following parties: 

(a) a Qualified Foreign Investor in accordance with the definition set out in the Rules for Qualified 
Foreign Financial Institutions Investment in Listed securities issued by the Capital Markets 
Authority (as amended from time to time) other than a person who purchased Notes before 
becoming a Qualified Foreign Investor, who first opened a swap account with the Issuer fewer 
than 12 months before purchasing additional Notes, and who sells all Notes before the end of 
such 12 month period provided that the total investments through swap transactions or through 
the opening of a swap account or both are less than 10 per cent. of the shares of the issuer whose 
shares are listed or of the convertible debt instrument of the issuer;   

(b) a citizen of the Cooperation Council for the Arab States of the Gulf (including natural persons 
who hold the citizenship of one of the Cooperation Council for the Arab States of the Gulf 
countries), or legal persons: 

(i) the capital of which is majority owned by citizens or governments of the Cooperation 
Council for the Arab States of the Gulf; and 

(ii) holding the citizenship of one of the Cooperation Council for the Arab States of the Gulf 
countries in accordance with the definition set out in the resolution of the Supreme 
Council of the Cooperation Council for the Arab States of the Gulf in its 15th session 
approved by the Council of Ministers Resolution number (16) dated 20/01/1418H;  

(c) a foreign investor residing in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia; or 
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(d) a foreign person (other than the ones mentioned in sub-paragraphs (a), (b) and (c) above) that 
owns any share or security of a Tadawul Issuer whose shares are listed on the Tadawul in 
relation to swap transactions involving the shares and convertible debt instruments of such 
Tadawul Issuer. 

Pursuant to section 13 of the CMA Resolution, the Notes may not be sold to any party whose investments 
do not fall within the following limitations:  

(a) the total Tadawul Securities of a Tadawul Issuer underlying or referenced by all swap 
transactions, participation notes, equity linked securities or other transactions or products 
transferring the economic benefits of the shares executed for the benefit of or purchased by such 
party (together with any shares held by such party as a Qualified Foreign Investor) do not equal 
or exceed 10% of the total shares of such Tadawul Issuer or convertible debt instruments of the 
Tadawul Issuer; 

(b) all other applicable legislative limitations on foreign ownership in joint stock companies in the 
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia; and 

(c) the limitations set forth in the articles of association or by-laws of the issuer of the Shares or 
any instructions issued by the supervisory or regulatory authorities to which such issuer are 
subject, in relation to foreign ownership. 

For the purposes of the above provisions, "Tadawul Issuer" means an entity whose securities are listed 
on the Tadawul, and "Tadawul Security" means, in respect of a Tadawul Issuer, any share or security 
of such Tadawul Issuer. 

Each purchaser of Notes must sign and deliver to the Issuer, the Guarantor, the Dealer, the Calculation 
Agent and the Authorised Person a letter in substantially the form set forth in "Form of Noteholder Letter" 
below, and comply with the authorisations, representations, warranties confirmations and undertakings 
set forth therein. 

KUWAIT  

The Dealer has represented and agreed that no marketing or sale of the Notes may take place in Kuwait 
unless the same has been duly authorised by the Kuwait Capital Markets Authority (for the purposes of 
this paragraph, the "CMA") pursuant to the provisions of Law No. 7/2010, as amended, the Executive 
Regulations thereto (as amended) and the various Announcements, Instructions, and Resolutions issued 
by the CMA thereunder and then only by a person licenced to carry out such activities by the CMA. No 
such authorisation has been given by the CMA.  

QATAR  

Each Dealer has represented and agreed that it has not offered or sold, and will not offer or sell, directly 
or indirectly, any Notes in Qatar, except (a) in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations of 
Qatar and (b) through persons or corporate entities authorised and licensed to provide investment advice 
and/or engage in brokerage activity and/or trade in respect of foreign securities in Qatar. The Notes have 
not been approved or licensed by or registered with the Qatar Central Bank, the Qatar Financial Markets 
Authority, the Qatar Exchange, the Qatar Central Securities Depository, the Qatar Financial Centre 
Regulatory Authority or any other applicable licensing authorities or governmental agencies in the State 
of Qatar.  

UNITED ARAB EMIRATES  

United Arab Emirates (excluding the Abu Dhabi Global Market and the Dubai International Finance 
Centre)  

The Dealer has represented and agreed, and each further Dealer appointed under the Programme will be 
required to acknowledge and agree that: 

(a) the Notes to be issued under the Programme have not been and will not be offered, sold or 
publicly promoted or advertised by it in the United Arab Emirates other than in compliance with 
any laws applicable in the United Arab Emirates governing the issue, offering and sale of Notes; 
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(b) the offering of the Notes to be issued under the Programme has not been approved or licensed 
by the United Arab Emirates Central Bank, the UAE Securities and Commodities Authority (the 
"SCA"), the Dubai Financial Services Authority (the "DFSA") or any other relevant licensing 
authorities in the United Arab Emirates (the "UAE"), and accordingly does not constitute a 
public offer of securities in the UAE in accordance with the commercial companies law, Federal 
Law No. 2 of 2015 (as amended), SCA Resolution No. 9 R.M. of 2016 Concerning the 
Regulation of Mutual Funds (as amended) or SCA Resolution No. 3 R.M. of 2017 Concerning 
the Organisation of Promotion and Introductions (together, the "SCA Resolutions") or 
otherwise. Accordingly, the Notes to be issued under the Programme may not be offered to the 
public in the UAE (including the Dubai International Financial Centre); and 

(c) these Base Listing Particulars are strictly private and confidential and are being issued to a 
limited number of institutional and individual investors: 

(i) who fall within the exceptions to the SCA Resolutions and who qualify as Qualified 
Investors as defined under the SCA Resolutions; 

(ii) upon their request and confirmation that they understand that the Notes have not been 
approved or licensed by or registered with the UAE Central Bank, the SCA, DFSA or 
any other relevant licensing authorities or governmental agencies in the UAE; and 

(iii) must not be provided to any person other than the original recipient, and may not be 
reproduced or used for any other purpose.  

Abu Dhabi Global Market 

The Dealer has represented and agreed, and each further Dealer appointed under this Programme will be 
required to represent and agree, that: 

(a) these Base Listing Particulars relate to an Exempt Offer (for the purposes of section 61(3)(a) of 
Financial Services and Markets Regulations 2015, as amended ("FSMR") and as defined in 
Rule 4.3.1(1) of the ADGM Market Rules as amended, issued for the purposes of the FSMR 
("ADGM Market Rules"));  

(b) these Base Listing Particulars are intended for distribution only to Professional Clients (as 
defined in Rule 4.3.1(1) of the ADGM Market Rules) who are not natural persons. It must not 
be delivered to, or relied on by, any other person; and 

(c) it has only communicated or caused to be communicated and will only communicate or cause 
to be communicated any invitation or inducement to Engage in Investment Activity (within the 
meaning of section 18 (Restrictions on financial promotion) of the FSMR) received by it in 
connection with the issue or sale of any Notes in circumstances in which section 18(1) of the 
FSMR does not apply to the Issuer or the Guarantor. 

The Dealer may promote the Notes (or appoint a third party to promote the Notes) in the ADGM only to 
persons falling within paragraph 4(1)(a) (i.e. Authorised Persons or Recognised Bodies, as defined in the 
FSMR) of schedule 2 (Exempt Communications) of FSMR and not to any other person unless it is 
possible to do so without breaching the restriction in section 18(1) of FSMR, and the Dealer considers it 
appropriate to do so in any particular case.  These Notes are not intended to be promoted to retail investors 
in the ADGM, and the Dealer will not do so.  Subsequent purchasers of the Notes are informed of this 
and must ensure (and have the sole responsibility of ensuring) that any subsequent sale of the Notes by 
them is done in accordance with the rules administered by the ADGM Financial Services Regulatory 
Authority. 

The ADGM Financial Services Regulatory Authority has no responsibility for reviewing or verifying 
any documents in connection with Exempt Offers. The ADGM Financial Services Regulatory Authority 
has not approved this document nor taken steps to verify the information set out in it, and has no 
responsibility for it. 

Dubai International Financial Centre  
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Each Dealer has represented and agreed, and each further Dealer appointed under the Programme will 
be required to acknowledge and agree that: 

(a) this document relates to an Exempt Offer (as defined in the Markets Rules of the Dubai Financial 
Services Authority ("DFSA") Rulebook as amended, issued for the purposes of DIFC Law No. 
1 of 2012 ("DIFC Markets Rules")); and 

(b) this document is intended for distribution only to Professional Clients (as defined in the DIFC 
Markets Rules) who are not natural persons. It must not be delivered to, or relied on by, any 
other person. 

The DFSA has no responsibility for reviewing or verifying any documents in connection with Exempt 
Offers.  The DFSA has not approved this document nor taken steps to verify the information set out in 
it, and has no responsibility for it. 

The Notes may be illiquid and/or subject to restrictions on their resale.  Prospective purchasers of the 
Notes should conduct their own due diligence on the Notes. 

If you do not understand the contents of this document you should consult an authorized financial adviser. 

GENERAL 

The Dealer represents, warrants and agrees that it has complied and will comply with all applicable laws 
and regulations in each country or jurisdiction in or from which it purchases, offers, sells or delivers 
Notes or possesses, distributes or publishes these Base Listing Particulars or any Pricing Supplement or 
any related offering material, in all cases at its own expense. Other persons into whose hands these Base 
Listing Particulars or any Pricing Supplement (as applicable) comes are required by the Issuer, the 
Guarantor and the Dealer to comply with all applicable laws and regulations in each country or 
jurisdiction in or from which they purchase, offer, sell or deliver Notes or possess, distribute or publish 
these Base Listing Particulars or any Pricing Supplement (as applicable) or any related offering material, 
in all cases at their own expense. 

The Dealer Agreement provides that the Dealer shall not be bound by any of the restrictions relating to 
any specific jurisdiction (set out above) to the extent that such restrictions shall, as a result of change(s) 
or change(s) in official interpretation, after the date hereof, of applicable laws and regulations, no longer 
be applicable but without prejudice to the obligations of the Dealer described in the paragraph headed 
"General" above. 

Selling restrictions may be supplemented or modified with the agreement of the Issuer. Any such 
supplement or modification may be set out in the relevant Pricing Supplement (in the case of a 
supplement or modification relevant only to a particular Tranche of Notes) or in a supplement to these 
Base Listing Particulars. 

DISCLAIMER 

As a result of the foregoing restrictions, purchasers of Notes are advised to consult legal counsel prior to 
making any purchase, offer, sale, resale or other transfer of such Notes. No offers, sales, re-sales or 
deliveries of any Notes, or distribution of any offering material relating to any Notes, may be made in or 
from any jurisdiction except in circumstances which will result in compliance with any applicable laws 
and regulations and which will not impose any obligation on the Issuer or the Guarantor. 
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FORM OF NOTEHOLDER LETTER 

Each purchaser of Notes Linked to Saudi Shares must sign and deliver to the Issuer, the Guarantor, the 
Dealer, the Calculation Agent and the Authorised Person (if any), a letter substantially in the form below. 

 [On letterhead of Noteholder] 

To: 

EFG-Hermes MENA Securities Limited 
(the "Issuer")  
1104, Boulevard Plaza,  
Tower 1, Downtown,  
P.O. Box 112736  
Dubai 
United Arab Emirates 
For the attention of: Mohamed Aboekhair 

Financial Brokerage Group 
(the "Dealer") 
Building No. B129,  
Phase 3, Smart Village 
Km 28 Cairo Alexandria Desert Road 
6 October 12577, Egypt 
For the attention of: Mohamed Omran Teima 

EFG-Hermes Holding S.A.E. 
(the "Guarantor")  
Building No. B129 
Phase 3, Smart Village 
Km 28 Cairo Alexandria Desert Road 
6 October 12577, Egypt 
For the attention of: Abdel Wahab Mohamed 
Gadayel 

EFG-Hermes UAE Limited 
(the "Calculation Agent") 
Office 301, The Exchange 
Dubai International Financial Centre  
P.O. Box 30727 
Dubai 
United Arab Emirates 
For the attention of: Hossam Al Naggar 

EFG-Hermes KSA 
(the "Authorised Person")  
PO Box 300189  
Third Floor, Sky Towers Northern Tower,  
Riyadh 11372  
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia  
For the attention of: Mohamed El-Emam 

With copy to: 

Deutsche Bank AG, London branch 
(the "Fiscal Agent and Paying Agent") 
Winchester House, 
1 Great Winchester Street 
London EC2N 2DB 
England 

[Date] 

Dear Sir/Madam, 

Authorisations, representations, warranties, confirmations and undertakings as to compliance 
with (i) Saudi law requirements with regard to holding Notes Linked to Saudi Shares and (ii) US 
tax and securities laws 

1. We, [insert legal name of Noteholder], domiciled in [insert Noteholder's country of origin] and 
acting for our own benefit ("we", "us", "our" or "ourselves" as the case may be) refer to the 
Notes referencing [ordinary] [preference] shares of [insert name of Share Issuer] ("Shares") 
issued by EFG-Hermes MENA Securities Limited (the "Notes") under the base listing 
particulars (which may be amended and/or supplemented and/or replaced with an updated base 
listing particulars from time to time, the "Base Listing Particulars") for the US$ 5,000,000,000 
(or such other amount as may be applicable from time to time) Securitised Holding Abwab 
Market Access Listed (SHAMAL) Notes Programme (the "Programme"). Any capitalised term 
which is not defined herein will have its meaning given to it in the Base Listing Particulars.  
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2. We confirm that we are aware that: 

(a) the Capital Market Authority of the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia (the "Capital Market 
Authority") regulates securities dealing and associated activities in the Kingdom of Saudi 
Arabia; 

(b) pursuant to the Capital Market Authority Board of Commissioners' resolution dated 
07/08/1439H corresponding to 23/04/2018G, which amends the Capital Market Authority 
Board of Commissioners' resolution dated 20/03/1438H corresponding to 19/12/2016G, which 
amends its resolution dated 30/3/1431H corresponding to 16/3/2010G regarding the approval 
for Authorised Persons to enter into Swap Agreements (as amended from time to time) (the 
"CMA Resolution"), the Authorised Person may enter into a swap agreement (a "Swap 
Agreement") with the Issuer (the "Foreign Counterparty") only for the benefit of non-resident 
foreign investors (the "Ultimate Beneficiary") to transfer the economic benefits of shares listed 
on the Saudi Stock Exchange (Tadawul) to such Ultimate Beneficiary through swap transactions 
executed as contemplated by such Swap Agreement, subject to the conditions and requirements 
set out in the CMA Resolution. We have obtained a copy of the CMA Resolution (either from 
request made to the Issuer or through our own sources);  

(c) pursuant to the CMA Resolution, the Authorised Person may not enter into any Swap Agreement 
or execute any related swap transaction where the Ultimate Beneficiary: 

(i) is a party prohibited under the terms of section 3 of the CMA Resolution from entering 
into or executing a Swap Agreement or related swap transaction, as described in 
paragraph 3(c)(i) below; or 

(ii) does not satisfy the limitations on the shareholdings of the Ultimate Beneficiary under 
the terms of section 13 of the CMA Resolution, as described in paragraph 3(c)(ii) below; 

(d) the Capital Market Authority may order, based on its absolute discretion, the Authorised Person 
to not enter into or to terminate any Swap Agreement, and may impose any type of limitations, 
restrictions, or requirements in relation to the Swap Agreement, or to the Foreign Counterparty 
or to the Ultimate Beneficiary; 

(e) the Issuer may (but shall be under no obligation under the Notes to) establish a Hedge Position 
in respect of its obligations under such Notes including to enter into a Swap Agreement with the 
Authorised Person as a Hedge Counterparty who will hold a position in the relevant Shares. We 
acknowledge that we have no economic or other interest (including any voting rights) in any 
such Hedge Position or in any Shares held by the Authorised Person as Hedge Counterparty and 
that, under the terms of the CMA Resolution, the Authorised Person is prohibited from 
exercising voting rights in respect of the Shares;  

(f) pursuant to the CMA Resolution and Part 7 of the Capital Market Institutions Regulations as 
issued, and amended from time to time, by the Capital Markets Authority, the assets and money 
of a non-resident foreign investor who is a party to a Swap Agreement shall be deemed client 
money and client assets held by the Authorised Person and the creditors of an Authorised Person 
do not have any claim or entitlement on the segregated money or assets of the clients. The 
Authorised Person must segregate from its own assets any Saudi Shares held by it as Hedge 
Counterparty in connection with a Hedge Position; and 

(g) the Notes have not been and will not be registered under the US Securities Act of 1933, as 
amended (the "Securities Act").  

3. In connection with the Notes, we: 

(a) authorise: 

(i) you to disclose to the Capital Market Authority the information obtained from us 
pursuant to paragraphs 3(f)(ii) to 3(f)(iv) below and/or such information as expressly 
requested in writing by the Capital Market Authority from time to time;  
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(ii) you to include our name, nationality and identification information in the investment 
portfolio under the Authorised Person's name with the Securities Depository Centre 
(Edaa);  

(iii) you (in this case, the Issuer) to issue to the Authorised Person orders to execute 
transactions to establish Hedge Positions in respect of your obligations under the Notes 
as contemplated by the Swap Agreement;  

(iv) you to disclose information provided to you to third party information providers (in any 
location) for verification purposes; 

(b) represent and warrant to you that: 

(i) we have all requisite power and authority to enter into this letter and to exercise our rights 
and perform our obligations under this letter and this letter has been duly authorised, 
validly executed and delivered by us and constitutes our valid and legally binding 
agreement; such entrance into this letter and our acquisition of and payment for any 
Notes do not violate or conflict with any law applicable to us, any provision of our 
constitutional documents, any order or judgment of any court or other governmental 
agency applicable to us or any of our assets or any contractual restriction binding on or 
affecting us or any of our assets; 

(ii) we are purchasing the Notes for our own account and we are not purchasing the Notes 
for, on behalf of, or for the benefit or account of any other person or entity, and we are 
purchasing the Notes as principal and not as agent of any person or entity, and we have 
not entered and will not enter into any back-to-back transactions in connection with the 
Notes whatsoever; 

(c) represent and warrant to you on this date and on each subsequent day for as long as we are a 
holder of the Notes that: 

(i) we are not: 

(A) a Qualified Foreign Investor in accordance with the definition set out in the Rules 
for Qualified Foreign Financial Institutions Investment in Listed securities issued 
by the Capital Market Authority (as amended from time to time) unless we meet 
all three of the following conditions: 

(1) we have purchased Notes prior to becoming a Qualified Foreign Investor;  

(2) we first opened a swap account with the Issuer fewer than 12 months 
before purchasing the Notes to which this representation relates; and 

(3) we will sell all Notes before the end of such 12 month period; 

provided that the total investments through swap transactions or through 
the opening of a swap account or both are less than 10 per cent. of the 
shares of the issuer whose shares are listed or of the convertible debt 
instrument of the issuer; 

(B) a citizen of the Cooperation Council for the Arab States of the Gulf (including 
natural persons who holds the citizenship of one of the Cooperation Council for 
the Arab States of the Gulf countries), or legal persons: 

(1) the capital of which is majority owned by citizens or governments of the 
Cooperation Council for the Arab States of the Gulf; and 

(2) holding the citizenship of one of the Cooperation Council for the Arab 
States of the Gulf countries in accordance with the definition set out in the 
resolution of the Supreme Council of the Cooperation Council for the Arab 
States of the Gulf in its 15th session approved by the Council of Ministers 
Resolution number (16) dated 20/01/1418H); 
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(C) a foreign investor residing in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia; or 

(D) a foreign person (other than the ones mentioned in sub-paragraphs (A), (B) and 
(C) above) that owns Tadawul Securities that owns any share or security of a 
Tadawul Issuer whose shares are listed on the Tadawul in relation to swap 
transactions involving the shares and convertible debt instruments of such 
Tadawul Issuer;.  

(ii) our investments fall within the following limitations:  

(A) the total Tadawul Securities of a Tadawul Issuer underlying or referenced by all 
swap transactions, participation notes, equity linked securities or other 
transactions or products transferring the economic benefits of the shares executed 
for the benefit of or purchased by us (together with any shares held by us as a 
Qualified Foreign Investor) do not equal or exceed 10% of the total shares of such 
Tadawul Issuer or the convertible debt instruments of the Tadawul Issuer;  

(B) all other applicable legislative limitations on foreign ownership in joint stock 
companies in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia; and 

(C) the limitations set forth in the articles of association or by-laws of the issuer of 
the Shares or any instructions issued by the supervisory or regulatory authorities 
to which such issuer are subject, in relation to foreign ownership; 

(d) shall ensure that we are fully compliant with the applicable requirements of the Anti-Money 
Laundering Law and implementing regulations and the rules issued by the Capital Market 
Authority related to anti-money laundering and terrorist financing and any other related laws 
and regulations;  

(e) shall maintain systems and controls which are adequate to ensure the implementation of the 
terms and conditions of this letter and ensure its validity; 

(f) undertake to: 

(i) comply with the laws relating to the prevention and detection of money laundering as 
they apply to us and to comply with all laws and regulations applicable to us regarding 
trading in Tadawul Securities, including not acting on the basis of non-public 
information about any Tadawul Issuer;  

(ii) provide you promptly with such information as you may reasonably request in order for 
you and your affiliates to comply with the law relating to the prevention and detection of 
money laundering in the British Virgin Islands and the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and to 
comply with the CMA Resolution; 

(iii) provide you promptly, as and when requested by you, in writing with any information as 
may be required by you, including but not limited to details relating to our name, country 
of origin and any other information that may be required by the Capital Market Authority 
and we understand that any delay in providing such information may delay the issue of 
the Notes;  

(iv) provide you promptly, as and when requested by you, with such information and 
evidence as you may reasonably require to confirm that the representations and 
warranties made or repeated in accordance with paragraphs 3(b) and 3(c) above are 
correct and not misleading at any time; 

(v) comply with all applicable disclosure requirements in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia 
including, but not limited to, the requirement to disclose ownership interests in shares 
(as required by the Capital Market Authority) and any other disclosure requirement 
imposed by the Capital Market Authority, Tadawul or any other regulatory body; 

(g) are aware that the Capital Market Authority may, in its absolute discretion, from time to time 
make an order to impose any type of limitations, restrictions or any other requirements 
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(including the termination thereof) on the Hedge Position, and, if any such limitations, 
restrictions or requirements are imposed, then you may, in your sole and absolute discretion, 
give effect to such limitations, restrictions or requirements by amending the terms and 
conditions of the Notes or on our holding of the Notes without our consent and/or by requiring 
early redemption of the Notes (all pursuant to Condition 6 (Adjustments and Additional 
Redemption Events) of the Notes), and in such case, we may lose some or all of our investment;  

(h) will not, directly or indirectly, sell, transfer, assign or otherwise dispose of any interest in the 
Notes to or for the benefit or account of any other entity unless, prior to such sale, transfer, 
assignment or otherwise the proposed transferee of such Note has duly completed and signed 
and returned to you to your satisfaction a letter substantially similar to this one and you (through 
the Dealer) have notified us of that you have approved of such proposed transfer to the proposed 
transferee; 

(i) are aware that payments on the Notes are subject to the credit risk of the Issuer and the 
Guarantor, and we have made our own analysis of such risk, including to have reviewed the 
Base Listing Particulars and the financial statements incorporated by reference therein and any 
interim financial statements published by the Guarantor; 

(j) (A) understand that the offer or sale of such Notes may not be made to, or for the account or 
benefit of, a US person (as defined in Regulation S under the Securities Act) (other than a 
distributor) or to a "United States Person" (as defined in the US Internal Revenue Code of 1986, 
and US Treasury regulations thereunder) (in either case, a "US Person"), (B) are located outside 
the United States and are not a US Person, (C) are not purchasing such Notes with a view to the 
resale, distribution, or other disposition thereof in violation of the Securities Act, (D) are aware 
that the sale of such Notes to us is being made in reliance on Regulation S under the Securities 
Act and (E) will provide notice to each person to whom we propose to transfer any interest in 
these Notes of the transfer restrictions and representations set forth in the Base Listing 
Particulars relating to these Notes; 

(k) understand and agree that in the event of any transfer of Notes, or any interest therein, to a 
purchaser or transferee that does not comply with the requirements set forth in the Base Listing 
Particulars, you, as Issuer, will have the right to direct such purchaser to transfer the Notes, or 
any interest therein, as applicable, to a person who meets such requirements within 14 days 
following receipt of notice of such direction. If such purchaser fails to sell or transfer the Notes, 
or any interest therein, within such period, you, as Issuer, may at your discretion cause such 
Notes, or any interest therein, to be sold to a purchaser selected by you, as Issuer, that meets 
such requirements, on your terms, subject to the transfer restrictions set out in the Base Listing 
Particulars, and, pending such transfer, no further payments will be made in respect of the Notes; 

(l) [if we are subject to US federal income taxation: 

(i) acknowledge and agree that the Issuer currently expects to treat the Notes, for US federal 
income tax purposes, as equity interests in the Issuer, and agree to treat the Notes, for 
US federal income tax purposes, consistent with the characterization of the Notes as 
equity interests in the Issuer; 

(ii) understand that the Issuer is likely to be a passive foreign investment company ("PFIC") 
and may be a controlled foreign corporation ("CFC") for US federal income tax 
purposes; and 

(iii) have consulted with our own US tax advisors and are comfortable with the tax risks 
inherent in a purchase of the Notes.  We are aware that all income on the Notes, including 
all gain on the sale or other taxable disposition of a Note may be ordinary income and it 
is possible that a US Holder of a Note will be treated as earning income at a rate faster 
than the rate at which payments are made on the Notes.  Further we are aware that under 
some possible characterisations of the Notes, a holder of a Note may recognise in any 
year "phantom income" (income that does not relate to any cash distributions it receives) 
that is not offset by taxable losses in a later year;]  
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(m) have not relied on you in giving the authorisations, representations, warranties, confirmations 
and undertakings in this letter; 

(n) understand and agree that each of the addressees of this letter (including the Agents) and their 
respective affiliates will rely upon the truth and accuracy of the acknowledgements, 
representations and agreements in this letter; and 

(o) undertake to immediately notify you if any of the representations, warranties, confirmations or 
undertakings we have given in this letter prove or there is a reasonable likelihood that it will 
prove incorrect or misleading. 

4. For the purposes of this letter:  

"Tadawul Issuer" means an entity whose securities are listed on the Tadawul; and 

"Tadawul Security" means, in respect of a Tadawul Issuer, any share or security of such 
Tadawul Issuer. 

5. The terms of this letter (and any dispute, controversy, proceedings or claim of whatever nature 
arising out of or in any way relating to this letter or its formation) are governed by, and shall be 
construed in accordance with English law. We irrevocably submit to the jurisdiction of the 
English courts and waive any objections to proceedings in such courts on the ground of venue 
or on the ground that the proceedings have been brought in an inconvenient forum. 

Yours faithfully, 

 

 

By: ……………………………………………… 
Name: 
Title:  
For and on behalf of 
[Legal Name of Noteholder]  
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TRANSFER RESTRICTIONS 

1. Introduction 

Because of the following restrictions, purchasers are advised to consult legal counsel prior to 
making any offer, resale, pledge or transfer of the Notes. 

US Persons may not hold an interest in the Notes at any time.  

2. Form of Noteholder Letter 

In respect of Notes Linked to Saudi Shares, each purchaser of such Notes must, as a condition 
of any purchase of such Notes, execute a letter substantially in the form set out in the section 
entitled "Form of Noteholder Letter" to the Issuer, the Guarantor, the Dealer, the Calculation 
Agent and the Authorised Person (if any). Such letter, among other things, authorises any of the 
Issuer, the Guarantor, the Dealer, the Calculation Agent or the Authorised Person (if any) to 
disclose the purchaser's identity, the terms of such Notes and any other information the Capital 
Market Authority may request from time to time to the Capital Market Authority and also 
contains certain authorisations, representations, warranties, confirmations and undertakings that 
each purchaser is required to make in favour of the Issuer, the Guarantor, the Dealer, the 
Calculation Agent and the Authorised Person (if any). Such letter also contains certain 
authorisations, representations, warranties, confirmations and undertakings that each purchaser 
is required to make in respect of US tax and securities laws. If a Noteholder becomes aware that 
it is not in compliance with any of the conditions and requirements set out in the CMA 
Resolution, it shall notify the Issuer promptly of such non-compliance. 

3. Notes 

Each purchaser of Notes will be deemed to have represented and agreed as follows: 

The purchaser is located outside the United States and is not a US Person. 

The purchaser understands that the Notes and the Guarantee thereof have not been and will not 
be registered under the Securities Act and that the Issuer has not registered and will not register 
under the Investment Company Act. It agrees, for the benefit of the Issuer, the Guarantor and 
any of their affiliates, that, if it decides to resell, pledge or otherwise transfer such Notes (or any 
beneficial interest or participation therein) purchased by it, any offer, sale or transfer of such 
Notes (or any beneficial interest or participation therein) will be made in compliance with the 
Securities Act (including Regulation S thereunder) and only to a non-US Person located outside 
the United States.  

The purchaser understands that pursuant to the Terms and Conditions of the Notes, the Issuer 
has agreed that the Notes and the Guarantee thereof will only be offered in reliance on 
Regulation S, will bear the legend set forth below and, on issue, will be represented by one or 
more Global Notes or Global Certificates (as applicable).  The Notes may not at any time be 
held by, or for the account or benefit of, US Persons.   

THE NOTES AND THE GUARANTEE THEREOF HAVE NOT BEEN AND WILL NOT BE 
REGISTERED UNDER THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS 
AMENDED (THE "SECURITIES ACT"). THE HOLDER HEREOF, BY PURCHASING 
THE NOTES IN RESPECT OF WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE HAS BEEN ISSUED, 
AGREES FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE ISSUER THAT THE NOTES REPRESENTED BY 
THIS CERTIFICATE AND THE GUARANTEE THEREOF MAY BE OFFERED, SOLD, 
PLEDGED OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED ONLY (A) TO A PERSON WHO IS NOT, 
AND IS NOT ACTING FOR THE ACCOUNT OR BENEFIT OF, A "US PERSON" (AS 
DEFINED IN REGULATION S UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT) AND IS NOT A "UNITED 
STATES PERSON" (AS DEFINED IN THE US INTERNAL REVENUE CODE OF 1986, AS 
AMENDED AND US TREASURY REGULATIONS THEREUNDER) AND WHO IS 
LOCATED OUTSIDE THE UNITED STATES AND (B) IN ACCORDANCE WITH ALL 
APPLICABLE SECURITIES LAWS OF THE STATES OF THE UNITED STATES AND 
ANY OTHER APPLICABLE JURISDICTION. 
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IF THERE IS ANY TRANSFER OF THE NOTES, OR ANY INTEREST THEREIN, TO A 
PURCHASER OR TRANSFEREE THAT DOES NOT COMPLY WITH THE FOREGOING 
REQUIREMENTS (OR OTHER RELEVANT REQUIREMENTS), THE ISSUER WILL 
HAVE THE RIGHT TO DIRECT SUCH PURCHASER OR TRANSFEREE TO TRANSFER 
THE NOTES, OR ANY INTEREST THEREIN, AS APPLICABLE, TO A PERSON WHO 
MEETS THE FOREGOING CRITERIA (AND OTHER RELEVANT CRITERIA) WITHIN 
14 DAYS FOLLOWING RECEIPT OF NOTICE OF SUCH DIRECTION. IF SUCH 
PURCHASER OR TRANSFEREE FAILS TO SELL OR TRANSFER THE NOTES, OR ANY 
INTEREST THEREIN, WITHIN SUCH PERIOD, THE ISSUER MAY AT ITS DISCRETION 
CAUSE SUCH NOTES, OR ANY INTEREST THEREIN, TO BE SOLD TO A PURCHASER 
SELECTED BY THE ISSUER THAT MEETS THE FOREGOING CRITERIA (AND OTHER 
RELEVANT CRITERIA), ON TERMS AS THE ISSUER MAY CHOOSE, SUBJECT TO 
THE TRANSFER RESTRICTIONS SET OUT IN THE BASE LISTING PARTICULARS, 
AND, PENDING SUCH TRANSFER, NO FURTHER PAYMENTS WILL BE MADE IN 
RESPECT OF THE NOTES. FOR THE AVOIDANCE OF DOUBT, NOTWITHSTANDING 
THAT SUCH PURCHASER SHALL HAVE BEEN SELECTED BY THE ISSUER, IF THE 
NOTES ARE NOTES LINKED TO SAUDI SHARES, IT SHALL ALSO EXECUTE A 
LETTER SUBSTANTIALLY IN THE FORM SET OUT IN THE SECTION OF THE BASE 
LISTING PARTICULARS ENTITLED "FORM OF NOTEHOLDER LETTER". 

EACH TRANSFEROR OF THE NOTES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE WILL 
PROVIDE NOTICE OF THE TRANSFER RESTRICTIONS SET FORTH IN THE BASE 
LISTING PARTICULARS. 

EACH PURCHASER OF THE NOTES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE OR ANY 
BENEFICIAL INTEREST HEREIN UNDERSTANDS THAT THE ISSUER MAY RECEIVE 
A LIST OF PARTICIPANTS HOLDING POSITIONS IN THE NOTES FROM ONE OR 
MORE BOOK ENTRY DEPOSITORIES. 

TRANSFERS OF THE NOTES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE OR OF 
PORTIONS OF THE NOTES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE SHOULD BE 
LIMITED TO TRANSFERS MADE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE RESTRICTIONS SET 
FORTH IN THE BASE LISTING PARTICULARS.  

PRINCIPAL OF THE NOTES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE IS PAYABLE AS 
SET FORTH HEREIN. ACCORDINGLY, THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OUTSTANDING OF 
THE NOTES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE AT ANY TIME MAY BE LESS 
THAN THE AMOUNT SHOWN ON THE FACE HEREOF. ANY PERSON ACQUIRING 
THE NOTES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE MAY ASCERTAIN ITS CURRENT 
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT BY INQUIRY OF THE REGISTRAR. 

BY ITS PURCHASE OR HOLDING OF A NOTE, OR ANY INTEREST THEREIN, THE 
PURCHASER AND/OR HOLDER THEREOF AND EACH TRANSFEREE WILL BE 
DEEMED TO HAVE REPRESENTED AND WARRANTED AT THE TIME OF ITS 
PURCHASE AND THROUGHOUT THE PERIOD THAT IT HOLDS SUCH NOTE OR 
INTEREST THEREIN THAT (1)(A) IT IS NOT AN EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN (AS 
DEFINED IN SECTION 3(3) OF THE US EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT INCOME 
SECURITY ACT OF 1974, AS AMENDED ("ERISA")) THAT IS SUBJECT TO THE 
FIDUCIARY RESPONSIBILITY PROVISIONS OF ERISA, A PLAN AS DEFINED IN 
SECTION 4975(e)(1) OF THE US INTERNAL REVENUE CODE OF 1986, AS AMENDED 
(THE "CODE"), THAT IS SUBJECT TO SECTION 4975 OF THE CODE, ANY ENTITY 
WHOSE UNDERLYING ASSETS INCLUDE "PLAN ASSETS" BY REASON OF ANY 
SUCH EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN'S OR PLAN'S INVESTMENT IN THE ENTITY OR A 
"BENEFIT PLAN INVESTOR" AS SUCH TERM IS OTHERWISE DEFINED IN ANY 
REGULATIONS PROMULGATED BY THE US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR UNDER 
SECTION 3(42) OF ERISA (ANY SUCH INVESTOR, A "BENEFIT PLAN INVESTOR") 
OR (B) IT IS AN INSURANCE COMPANY ACTING ON BEHALF OF ITS GENERAL 
ACCOUNT AND (I) IT IS NOT A PERSON WHO HAS DISCRETIONARY AUTHORITY 
OR CONTROL WITH RESPECT TO THE ASSETS OF THE ISSUER OR A PERSON WHO 
PROVIDES INVESTMENT ADVICE FOR A FEE (DIRECT OR INDIRECT) WITH 
RESPECT TO SUCH ASSETS OR AN AFFILIATE OF SUCH A PERSON, (II) AS OF THE 
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DATE IT ACQUIRES A NOTE OR ANY INTEREST THEREIN, LESS THAN 25 PER 
CENT. OF THE ASSETS OF SUCH GENERAL ACCOUNT CONSTITUTES "PLAN 
ASSETS" (AS DEFINED IN SECTION 3(42) OF ERISA AND US DEPARTMENT OF 
LABOR REGULATIONS), (III) IT AGREES THAT IF, AFTER ITS INITIAL ACQUISITION 
OF A NOTE, OR ANY INTEREST THEREIN, AT ANY TIME DURING ANY MONTH, 25 
PER CENT. OR MORE OF THE ASSETS OF SUCH GENERAL ACCOUNT 
CONSTITUTES "PLAN ASSETS", THEN SUCH INSURANCE COMPANY SHALL, IN A 
MANNER CONSISTENT WITH THE RESTRICTIONS ON TRANSFER SET FORTH IN 
THE BASE LISTING PARTICULARS, DISPOSE OF ALL OF THE NOTES, OR ANY 
INTEREST THEREIN, HELD IN ITS GENERAL ACCOUNT BY THE END OF THE NEXT 
FOLLOWING MONTH AND (IV) THE ACQUISITION OR HOLDING OF SUCH NOTE, 
OR ANY INTEREST THEREIN, WILL NOT CONSTITUTE OR RESULT IN A 
PROHIBITED TRANSACTION UNDER SECTION 406 OF ERISA OR SECTION 4975 OF 
THE CODE WHICH IS NOT COVERED UNDER PROHIBITED TRANSACTION CLASS 
EXEMPTION 95-60 OR SOME OTHER APPLICABLE EXEMPTION AND (2) IF IT IS A 
US GOVERNMENTAL, CHURCH, NON-US OR OTHER PLAN WHICH IS SUBJECT TO 
ANY FEDERAL, STATE, LOCAL OR NON-US LAW THAT IS SUBSTANTIALLY 
SIMILAR TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 406 OF ERISA OR SECTION 4975 OF THE 
CODE, ITS PURCHASE AND/OR HOLDING OF SUCH NOTES WILL NOT CONSTITUTE 
OR RESULT IN A NON-EXEMPT VIOLATION UNDER SUCH SUBSTANTIALLY 
SIMILAR FEDERAL, STATE, LOCAL OR NON-US LAW.  IN ADDITION, EACH 
PURCHASER, HOLDER AND/OR TRANSFEREE OF A NOTE, OR ANY INTEREST 
THEREIN, THAT IS A BENEFIT PLAN INVESTOR WILL BE DEEMED TO HAVE 
REPRESENTED AND WARRANTED AT THE TIME OF ITS PURCHASE AND 
THROUGHOUT THE PERIOD THAT IT HOLDS SUCH NOTE OR INTEREST THEREIN 
THAT:  (1) IT IS REPRESENTED BY A FIDUCIARY (THE "FIDUCIARY") THAT IS 
INDEPENDENT OF THE ISSUER, THE GUARANTOR AND THE DEALER (i.e., THERE 
IS NO FINANCIAL INTEREST, OWNERSHIP INTEREST, AGREEMENT OR 
UNDERSTANDING THAT WOULD LIMIT THE FIDUCIARY'S ABILITY TO CARRY 
OUT ITS FIDUCIARY RESPONSIBILITIES WITH RESPECT TO THE BENEFIT PLAN 
INVESTOR BEYOND THE CONTROL, DIRECTION OR INFLUENCE OF THE ISSUER, 
THE GUARANTOR AND THE DEALER); (2) THE FIDUCIARY IS CAPABLE OF 
EVALUATING INVESTMENT RISKS INDEPENDENTLY, BOTH IN GENERAL AND 
WITH REGARD TO THE BENEFIT PLAN INVESTOR'S PURCHASE AND HOLDING OF 
THE NOT OR INTEREST THEREIN; (3) THE FIDUCIARY UNDERSTANDS THAT THE 
ISSUER, THE GUARANTOR AND THE DEALER ARE NOT UNDERTAKING TO 
PROVIDE IMPARTIAL INVESTMENT ADVICE, OR TO GIVE ADVICE IN A 
FIDUCIARY CAPACITY, IN CONNECTION WITH THE TRANSACTION; (4) THE 
FIDUCIARY UNDERSTANDS THAT THE ISSUER, THE GUARANTOR AND THE 
DEALER HAVE FINANCIAL INTERESTS IN THE TRANSACTION AND HAS BEEN 
INFORMED OF THE NATURE OF SUCH FINANCIAL INTEREST; (5) THE FIDUCIARY 
IS AN INDEPENDENT FIDUCIARY THAT IS A FIDUCIARY UNDER ERISA OR THE 
CODE, OR BOTH, WITH RESPECT TO THE TRANSACTION AND IS RESPONSIBLE 
FOR EXERCISING INDEPENDENT JUDGMENT IN EVALUATING THE 
TRANSACTION; AND (7) THE FIDUCIARY UNDERSTANDS THAT THE ISSUER, THE 
GUARANTOR AND THE DEALER DID NOT RECEIVE A FEE OR OTHER 
COMPENSATION DIRECTLY FROM THE PLAN, PLAN FIDUCIARY, PLAN 
PARTICIPANT OR BENEFICIARY, IRA, OR IRA OWNER FOR THE PROVISION OF 
INVESTMENT ADVICE (AS OPPOSED TO OTHER SERVICES) IN CONNECTION WITH 
THE TRANSACTION.  FOR THE PURPOSES OF THIS PARAGRAPH, "IRA" MEANS 
ANY ACCOUNT OR ANNUITY DESCRIBED IN SECTION 4975(e)(1)(B) THROUGH (F) 
OF THE CODE, INCLUDING, FOR EXAMPLE, AN INDIVIDUAL RETIREMENT 
ACCOUNT DESCRIBED IN SECTION 408(A) OF THE CODE AND A HEALTH SAVINGS 
ACCOUNT DESCRIBED IN SECTION 223(D) OF THE CODE AND "IRA OWNER" 
MEANS, WITH RESPECT TO AN IRA, EITHER THE PERSON WHO IS THE OWNER OF 
THE IRA OR THE PERSON FOR WHOSE BENEFIT THE IRA WAS ESTABLISHED. IF 
THERE IS ANY TRANSFER OF THE NOTES, OR ANY INTEREST THEREIN, TO A 
PURCHASER OR TRANSFEREE THAT DOES NOT COMPLY WITH THE FOREGOING 
REQUIREMENTS (OR OTHER RELEVANT REQUIREMENTS), THE ISSUER SHALL 
DIRECT SUCH PURCHASER OR TRANSFEREE TO TRANSFER THE NOTES, OR ANY 
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INTEREST THEREIN, AS APPLICABLE, TO A PERSON WHO MEETS THE 
FOREGOING CRITERIA (AND OTHER RELEVANT CRITERIA) WITHIN 14 DAYS 
FOLLOWING RECEIPT OF NOTICE OF SUCH DIRECTION. IF SUCH PURCHASER OR 
TRANSFEREE FAILS TO SELL OR TRANSFER THE NOTES, OR ANY INTEREST 
THEREIN, WITHIN SUCH PERIOD, THE ISSUER SHALL CAUSE SUCH NOTES, OR 
ANY INTEREST THEREIN, TO BE SOLD TO A PURCHASER SELECTED BY THE 
ISSUER THAT MEETS THE FOREGOING CRITERIA (AND OTHER RELEVANT 
CRITERIA), ON TERMS AS THE ISSUER MAY CHOOSE, SUBJECT TO THE TRANSFER 
RESTRICTIONS SET OUT IN THE BASE LISTING PARTICULARS, AND, PENDING 
SUCH TRANSFER, NO FURTHER PAYMENTS WILL BE MADE IN RESPECT OF THE 
NOTES. FOR THE AVOIDANCE OF DOUBT, NOTWITHSTANDING THAT SUCH 
PURCHASER SHALL HAVE BEEN SELECTED BY THE ISSUER, IF THE NOTES ARE 
NOTES LINKED TO SAUDI SHARES, IT SHALL ALSO EXECUTE A LETTER 
SUBSTANTIALLY IN THE FORM SET OUT IN THE SECTION OF THE BASE LISTING 
PARTICULARS ENTITLED "FORM OF NOTEHOLDER LETTER". 

FAILURE OF A HOLDER OR BENEFICIAL OWNER TO PROVIDE THE ISSUER WITH 
ANY INFORMATION REQUESTED IN CONNECTION WITH FATCA MAY RESULT IN 
DEDUCTIONS ON PAYMENTS TO SUCH HOLDER OR BENEFICIAL OWNER AND 
THE FORCED TRANSFER OF SUCH HOLDER'S NOTES OR BENEFICIAL OWNER'S 
INTEREST AT A PRICE THAT MAY BE LESS THAN THEIR THEN FAIR MARKET 
VALUE. 

Notes (including any principal receipts or coupons relating to such notes) that are Bearer Notes 
will contain the following legend: 

THIS OBLIGATION MAY NOT BE OWNED BY A UNITED STATES PERSON. ANY 
UNITED STATES PERSON WHO HOLDS THIS OBLIGATION WILL BE SUBJECT TO 
LIMITATIONS UNDER THE US INCOME TAX LAWS, INCLUDING THE LIMITATIONS 
PROVIDED IN SECTIONS 165(j) AND 1287(a) OF THE US INTERNAL REVENUE CODE 
OF 1986. 

The purchaser is not purchasing such Notes with a view to the resale, distribution or other 
disposition thereof in violation of the Securities Act. 

The purchaser is aware that the sale of Notes to it is being made in reliance on Regulation S. 

The purchaser understands that the Notes may not, at any time, be held by, or for the account or 
benefit of, US Persons. 

The purchaser understands that an investment in the Notes involves certain risks, including the 
risk of loss of all or a substantial part of its investment under certain circumstances.  The 
purchaser has had access to such financial and other information concerning the Issuer and the 
Notes as it deemed necessary or appropriate in order to make an informed investment decision 
with respect to its acquisition of the Notes, including an opportunity to ask questions of and 
request information from the Issuer. 

In connection with the purchase of the Notes (i) neither of the Issuer or the Guarantor is acting 
as a fiduciary or financial or investment adviser for the purchaser, (ii) the purchaser is not relying 
(for purposes of making any investment decision or otherwise) upon any advice, counsel or 
representations (whether written or oral) of the Issuer or the Guarantor, other than these Base 
Listing Particulars for such Notes and any representations expressly set forth in a written 
agreement with such party, (iii) none of the Issuer or the Guarantor has given to the purchaser 
(directly or indirectly through any other person) any assurance, guarantee, or representation 
whatsoever as to the expected or projected success, profitability, return, performance, result, 
effect, consequence, or benefit (including legal, regulatory, tax, financial, accounting, or 
otherwise) as to an investment in the Notes, (iv) the purchaser has consulted with its own legal, 
regulatory, tax, business, investment, financial, and accounting advisers to the extent it has 
deemed necessary, and it has made its own investment decisions based upon its own judgement 
and upon any advice from such advisers as it has deemed necessary and not upon any view 
expressed by the Issuer or the Guarantor, (v) the purchaser has evaluated that the rates, prices 
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or amounts and other terms of the purchase and sale of the Notes with a full understanding of 
all of the risks thereof (economic and otherwise), and it is capable of assuming and willing to 
assume (financially and otherwise) those risks, and (vi) the purchaser is a sophisticated investor. 

The purchaser will provide notice to each person to whom it proposes to transfer any interest in 
the Notes of the transfer restrictions and representations set forth herein. 

The purchaser acknowledges that the Issuer, the Guarantor, the Registrar, the Paying Agents, 
the Transfer Agent and their affiliates, and others will rely upon the truth and accuracy of the 
foregoing acknowledgements, representations and agreements. 
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GENERAL INFORMATION 

1. Authorisation 

The Issuer and the Guarantor have all necessary consents, approvals and authorisations in 
connection with the establishment of the Programme. The establishment of the Programme was 
authorised pursuant to a resolution of the Board of Directors of the Issuer dated 11 November 
2010. The update of the Programme and the issue of Notes under the Programme have been 
duly authorised pursuant to a resolution passed by the Board of Directors of the Issuer passed 
on 28 January 2021. The Guarantor has obtained or will obtain from time to time all necessary 
consents, approvals and authorisations in connection with the issue and performance of the 
Notes and the giving of the guarantee relating to them. 

2. Legal and arbitration proceedings 

Neither the Issuer nor the Guarantor is involved in any governmental, legal or arbitration 
proceedings (including those proceedings which are threatened or pending of which the Issuer 
or Guarantor is aware) during the 12-month period ending on the date of these Base Listing 
Particulars, which may have, or have had in the past, significant effects on the financial position 
or profitability of the Issuer or the Guarantor and its consolidated subsidiaries.  

3. No significant change in the financial or trading position 

There has been no significant change in the financial or trading position of the Issuer and the 
Guarantor since the publication of the consolidated unaudited interim financial statements of 
the Guarantor (and its consolidated subsidiaries) on 30 September 2020.  

4. No material adverse change in prospects 

Save as disclosed in these Base Listing Particulars, there has been no material adverse change 
in the prospects of the Issuer since 31 December 2020, the date of the last audited financial 
statements of the Issuer.  

Save as disclosed in these Base Listing Particulars, there has been no material adverse change 
in the prospects of the Guarantor since 31 December 2019, the date of the last audited financial 
statements of the Guarantor (and its consolidated subsidiaries).  

5. Statements in relation to prospects and financial or trading position 

In these Base Listing Particulars, where the Issuer and the Guarantor make statements that "there 
has been no material adverse change in the prospects" and "no significant change in the financial 
or trading position" of the Issuer and the Guarantor, respectively, references in these statements 
to the "prospects" and "financial or trading position" of the Issuer and the Guarantor are 
specifically to their respective ability to fulfil their full payment obligations under the Notes (in 
the case of the Issuer) or the Guarantee (in the case of the Guarantor) in a timely manner.  

6. Legend 

Each Bearer Note will bear the following legend: "This obligation may not be owned by a United 
States person. Any United States person who holds this obligation will be subject to limitations 
under the US income tax laws, including the limitations provided in Sections 165(j) and 1287(a) 
of the US Internal Revenue Code of 1986". 

7. Clearing of the Notes 

Notes have been accepted for clearance through the Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg 
(which are the entities in charge of keeping the records). The Common Code and the 
International Securities Identification Number (ISIN) in relation to the Notes of each Series will 
be specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement.  The relevant Pricing Supplement shall also 
specify any other clearing system as shall have accepted the relevant Notes for clearance 
together with any appropriate further information.  
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8. Issue Price and post-issuance information 

The issue price and the amount of the relevant Notes and the issue price will be determined, 
before filing of the relevant Pricing Supplement of each Tranche, based on the prevailing market 
conditions. The Issuer does not intend to provide any post-issuance information in relation to 
any issues of Notes or the applicable Shares, unless required by any applicable laws and 
regulations. 

9. Material interest 

So far as the Issuer is aware, no person involved in the establishment of the Programme or the 
issue of Notes pursuant to the Programme has an interest material to the issue of Notes under 
the Programme. 

10. Material contracts 

There are no contracts (not being contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business) which 
have been entered into by the Issuer or the Guarantor which are, or may be, material and contain 
provisions under which the Issuer or Guarantor or the Group has an obligation or entitlement 
which is, or may be, material to the ability of the Issuer or the Guarantor to meet its obligations 
in respect of the Notes. 

11. Documents on display 

Copies of the following documents may be inspected in physical or electronic form at the 
registered offices of the Issuer and the Guarantor for so long as the Programme and these Base 
Listing Particulars remain in effect or any Notes shall be outstanding during normal business 
hours on any business day (except Fridays, Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays). In addition, 
electronic copies of the following documents may be obtained via electronic mail from any of 
the Fiscal Agent, the Paying Agent, the Registrar and the Transfer Agent upon request and 
provision of satisfactory proof of holding or beneficial interest in the relevant Notes to such 
Agents: 

(i) the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Issuer; 

(ii) the Articles of Association of the Guarantor; 

(iii) the Deed of Guarantee; 

(iv) the Deed of Covenant;  

(v) the Base Listing Particulars and any supplement to the Base Listing Particulars or further 
Prospectus; and  

(vi) the documents incorporated by reference in these Base Listing Particulars. 

12. Auditors  

The financial statements of the Guarantor have been audited for the year ended 31 December 
2019 by KPMG Hazem Hassan who have given, and have not withdrawn, their consent to the 
incorporation by reference of their report in these Base Listing Particulars in the form and 
context in which it is included.  

The financial statements of the Issuer in respect of the year ended 31 December 2019 have been 
audited without qualification by KPMG Lower Gulf Limited who have given, and have not 
withdrawn, their consent to the incorporation by reference of their report in these Base Listing 
Particulars in the form and context in which it is included. 

13. Listing Agents 

Arthur Cox Listing Services Limited is acting solely in its capacity as listing agent for the Issuer 
in connection with the Notes and is not itself seeking admission of the Notes to the Official List 
and to trading on the Global Exchange Market of Euronext Dublin. 
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14. Websites do not form part of these Base Listing Particulars 

No websites that are cited or referred to in these Base Listing Particulars, shall be deemed to 
form part of, or to be incorporated by reference into, these Base Listing Particulars. 

15. Legal Entity Identifier 

The Legal Entity Identifier of the Issuer is as follows: 5586007NXMHJBZAPL589.  
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	1. Risks relating to the Issuer and Guarantor
	2. Risks relating to the Notes and the Shares
	2.1 Synthetic Investment in the Shares
	2.2 No claim against a Share Issuer, Share, Hedge Position or Hedge Counterparty
	2.3 No Voting Rights
	2.4 Market Value of the Notes
	2.5 Limited Liquidity of the Notes
	2.6 Early Redemption of the Notes
	2.7 Adjustments to the terms of the Notes
	2.8 Currency Risk and FX Disruption Condition
	2.9 The Calculation Agent
	2.10 Additional Transfer Restriction
	2.11 No provision of advice
	2.12 Taxation

	3. General Risks and Risk relating to Emerging Markets
	3.1 Political and economic considerations relating to Egypt
	3.2 The COVID-19 pandemic
	(i) significant disruption and volatility in the financial markets;
	(ii) disruption of global supply chains;
	(iii) closures of many businesses, leading to loss of revenues and increased unemployment;
	(iv) the institution of social distancing and sheltering-in-place requirements in multiple countries; and
	(v) suspension of cross-border passenger traffic.
	(i) significantly reduced demand for products and services from the Issuer's and Guarantor's clients and customers;
	(ii) possible recognition of credit losses and increases in the allowance for credit losses, especially if businesses remain closed, unemployment continues to rise and clients and customers draw on their lines of credit or seek additional loans to hel...
	(iii) possible material impacts on the value of securities, derivatives and other financial instruments which the Issuer's and Guarantor's own or in which it makes markets due to market fluctuations;
	(iv) possible constraints on liquidity and capital, whether due to increases in risk-weighted assets related to supporting client activities or to regulatory actions; and
	(v) the possibility that significant portions of the Issuer's and Guarantor's workforce are unable to work effectively, including because of illness, quarantines, sheltering-in-place arrangements, government actions or other restrictions in connection...

	3.3 Recent Events in Financial Markets
	There exist significant risks for the Issuer and investors as a result of the current economic conditions.  These risks include, among others, (i) the possibility that, on or after the Issue Date, the price of the Shares will be lower than the Initial...
	As the COVID-19 pandemic continues, there is risk to global growth prospects, which has had an impact on the economic growth world-wide. The slowdown in growth or commencement of a recession in Egypt or any Reference Jurisdiction will have an adverse ...
	3.4 Emerging Markets
	3.5 Event Risk
	3.6 Political Risk
	3.7 Economic Risk
	3.8 Market Risk
	3.9 Liquidity/Gapping Risk
	3.10 Regulatory/Legal Risk
	3.11 Trade Settlement, Processing and Clearing
	3.12 Noteholder/Shareholder Risk
	3.13 Particular risks in relation to Notes Linked to Saudi Shares
	(a) may not enter into any Swap Agreement or execute any related swap transaction where the Ultimate Beneficiary (i) is a party prohibited under the terms of section 3 of the CMA Resolution from entering into or executing a Swap Agreement or related s...
	(b) would be required to (among other things) (a) provide to the Capital Market Authority certain information on the Ultimate Beneficiaries as the Capital Market Authority may request from time to time and (b) implement all orders imposed by the Capit...
	(i) each purchaser of Notes Linked to Saudi Shares will be required to make the additional disclosures and the authorisations, representations, confirmations and undertakings in a letter substantially in the form set out in the section entitled "Form ...
	(A) undertaking to provide to, and authorising, the Authorised Person to disclose to the Capital Market Authority information relating to any Swap Agreement, Hedge Position and/or any information the Capital Market Authority may otherwise request from...
	(B) authorising the Authorised Person to include its name, nationality and identification information in the Authorised Person's investment portfolio with the Securities Depository Centre (Edaa);
	(C) representing that it is a "non-resident foreign investor" for the purposes of the CMA Resolution, that it is not a foreign investor as described in section 3 of the CMA Resolution and that it meets certain legislative and other limitations of fore...
	(D) undertaking to comply with the laws relating to the prevention and detection of money laundering as they apply to it and to comply with all laws and regulations applicable to it regarding trading in any share or security of an entity whose shares ...

	(ii) the terms and conditions of Notes Linked to Saudi Shares shall include that the Calculation Agent under the Notes may in its sole and absolute discretion adjust the terms and conditions of the Notes and/or cause the early redemption of the Notes ...
	(iii) any adjustment and/or early redemption of Notes Linked to Saudi Shares (as described in the paragraph above) may result in the loss of some or all of a purchaser's investment; and
	(iv) the Authorised Person holding the relevant Shares as the Issuer's Hedge Position under the Notes is prohibited from exercising voting rights in respect of such Shares (and, for the avoidance of doubt, as set out under paragraph 2.3 (No Voting Rig...



	4. Conflicts of Interest
	4.1 The Issuer and the Guarantor are subject to various potential conflicts of interest in respect of the Notes, which could have an adverse effect on the Notes.
	(a) The Issuer and the Guarantor may take positions in or deal with the Share(s)
	(b) The Calculation Agent, which will generally be an affiliate of the Guarantor, has broad discretionary powers which may be exercised against the interest of the holders
	(c) EFG-Hermes entities may have confidential information relating to the Share(s) and the Notes

	4.2 Fees

	5. US Securities Regulation and Taxation
	5.1 Regulation S
	5.2 Forced Transfer
	5.3 Taxation of the Issuer
	5.4 FATCA — Considerations for Holders

	1. Introduction
	(a) Programme: EFG-Hermes MENA Securities Limited (the "Issuer") has established a programme (the "Programme") for the issuance of Notes guaranteed by EFG-Hermes Holding S.A.E. (the "Guarantor").
	(b) Notes: References herein to the "Notes" shall be references to the Notes of this Series and shall mean:
	(i) in relation to any Notes in bearer form ("Bearer Notes") represented by a temporary or permanent global Note (each, a "Global Note"), units of the lowest Specified Denomination in the Specified Currency;
	(ii) any Global Note;
	(iii) any definitive Bearer Notes issued in exchange for a Global Note;
	(iv) in relation to any Notes in registered form ("Registered Notes") represented by a permanent Global Certificate (a "Global Certificate"), units of the lowest Specified Denomination in the Specified Currency;
	(v) any Global Certificate; and
	(vi) any definitive Registered Notes issued in exchange for a Global Certificate.

	(c) Pricing Supplement: Notes issued under the Programme are issued in series (each, a "Series") and each Series may comprise one or more tranches (each, a "Tranche") of Notes. Each Tranche is the subject of a pricing supplement (the "Pricing Suppleme...
	(d) Agency Agreement: The Notes are issued pursuant to an amended and restated agency agreement dated on or about 4 February 2021 as amended and/or supplemented and/or replaced under the Programme as at the issue date specified in the Pricing Suppleme...
	(e) Deed of Covenant: The Notes have the benefit of a deed of covenant dated 4 February 2021 as amended and/or supplemented and/or replaced under the Programme as at the Issue Date (the "Deed of Covenant").
	(f) Deed of Guarantee: The Notes are the subject of a deed of guarantee dated 4 February 2021 as amended and/or supplemented and/or replaced under the Programme as at the Issue Date (the "Deed of Guarantee") entered into by the Guarantor.
	(g) Noteholders: Subject as provided in Conditions ‎2(b)(i) and ‎2(b)(iv) below, any reference to "Noteholder(s)" or "holder(s)" in relation to any Notes shall mean (in the case of Bearer Notes) the holders of the Notes and (in the case of Registered ...
	(h) Summaries: Certain provisions of these Conditions are summaries of the Agency Agreement, Deed of Covenant and the Deed of Guarantee and are subject to their detailed provisions. The Noteholders are bound by and are deemed to have notice of all of ...

	2. Form, Denomination and Title
	(a) Form and Denomination:  The Notes are in bearer form or in registered form as specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement and, in the case of definitive Notes, serially numbered, in the Specified Currency and the Specified Denomination(s). Note...
	(b) Transfer and Title:
	(i) Bearer Notes and Registered Notes
	(ii) Global Notes
	(iii) Registered Notes
	(iv) Global Notes and Global Certificates
	(v) Exchange of Global Notes and Global Certificates for Definitive Notes
	(A) A Global Note will be exchangeable (free of charge), in whole but not in part, for definitive Bearer Notes only upon (as indicated in the applicable Pricing Supplement) the occurrence of an Exchange Event.  For these purposes, "Exchange Event" sha...
	(B) A Global Certificate will be exchangeable (free of charge), in whole but not in part, for a definitive Registered Note only upon the occurrence of an Exchange Event.  For these purposes, "Exchange Event" shall mean that (i) an Event of Default has...


	(c) Registration:  The Issuer will cause to be kept at the specified office of the Registrar, outside the United Kingdom, for the time being a register (the "Register") on which shall be entered the names and addresses of the holders from time to time...
	(d) Exchange of Bearer Notes and Registered Notes: Registered Notes may not be exchanged for Bearer Notes and Bearer Notes may not be exchanged for Registered Notes.
	(e) Exchange and Transfer of Registered Notes:  Registered Notes in definitive form may, subject to Condition ‎1(b)(iv) and the provisions of the Agency Agreement, be transferred by the registered holder free of and without regard to any set-off, coun...
	(f) Forced Transfer of Certain Notes: The Notes may not be offered, sold, pledged or otherwise transferred to a person who is, or is acting for the account or benefit of, a "US person" (as defined in Regulation S under the Securities Act) or a "United...
	(g) FATCA — Application to Holders

	3. Status and Guarantee
	(a) Status of the Notes: The Notes are unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the Issuer and will rank pari passu and rateably without any preference among themselves and equally with all other unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the Issu...
	(b) Guarantee of the Notes: The Guarantor has in the Deed of Guarantee unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed the due and punctual payment of all sums from time to time payable by the Issuer in respect of the Notes. This Guarantee of the Notes wil...

	4. Additional Amounts
	(a) Additional Amount: The Issuer shall, until the Notes are redeemed or purchased and cancelled under Conditions ‎5 (Redemption and Purchase) or 6 (Adjustments and Additional Redemption Events), pay each Noteholder a Cash Amount (as determined by the...
	(b) Additional Amount Accrual Date: The "Additional Amount Accrual Date" shall be the ex-dividend date (or if the Reference Jurisdiction is the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, the Scheduled Trading Day prior to the ex-dividend date) in relation to the Additi...
	(c) Additional Amount Payment Date: The Issuer shall pay each Additional Amount as soon as practicable but no later than the tenth Business Day following receipt by a Hypothetical Investor of the cash dividend and/or the stock dividend from the Share ...
	(d) Notification: The Fiscal Agent, following instructions from the Issuer and receipt of all relevant information from the Issuer and/or the Calculation Agent, shall notify the Noteholders as soon as reasonably practicable that an Additional Amount h...

	5. Redemption and Purchase
	(a) Final Redemption: Unless previously redeemed or purchased under this Condition ‎5 or Condition ‎6 (Adjustments and Additional Redemption Events), the Issuer will pay or cause to be paid on the Maturity Date the Final Redemption Amount.
	(b) Redemption for Illegality: If the Calculation Agent in its sole and absolute discretion determines that the performance of (a) any of the Issuer's obligations under the Notes or (b) any Hedge Position is or will become unlawful, illegal, or otherw...
	(c) Purchase of Notes: The Issuer and any Affiliate thereof may at any time purchase Notes in the open market or otherwise at any price and may hold such purchased Notes in inventory, or resell them or surrender them as provided below for cancellation.
	(d) Cancellation: Any Notes that are redeemed under this Condition ‎5 (Redemption and Purchase) or Condition ‎6 (Adjustments and Additional Redemption Events) or purchased (and which are to be surrendered for cancellation) shall be surrendered for can...
	(i) in the case of Notes represented by a Global Note or a Global Certificate, by presentation of the Global Note or Global Certificate, as the case may be, to or to the order of the Fiscal Agent or the Registrar, whereupon the principal amount of the...
	(ii) in the case of definitive Bearer Notes or Registered Notes, by surrendering each such Note or Registered Note certificate to the Fiscal Agent and if so surrendered, shall, together with all Notes redeemed by the Issuer, be cancelled forthwith.

	(e) Reference to Principal: References to principal shall be deemed to include, wherever the context so admits, any amounts payable under the Notes other than by way of Additional Amounts.

	6. Adjustments and Additional Redemption Events
	(a) Potential Adjustment Event: Following the declaration by the Share Issuer of a Potential Adjustment Event, the Calculation Agent will determine whether such Potential Adjustment Event has a diluting or concentrative effect on the theoretical value...
	(i) make the corresponding adjustment(s) to any one or more of:
	(1) any Additional Amount, the Final Redemption Amount, the Early Redemption Amount, the Number of Shares per Note, the Number of Notes, the Calculation Amount and/or the Specified Denomination (as applicable); and/or
	(2) any other terms of the Conditions of the Notes, and/or

	(ii) issue further Notes in accordance with Condition ‎15 (Further Issues) or notes of a different Series and distribute such further Notes or Series, as the case may be, to Noteholders on a pro rata basis in proportion to the aggregate principal amou...
	(iii) determine the effective date(s) of such adjustment(s) and/or further issues. The Calculation Agent may (but need not) determine the appropriate adjustment(s) and/or further issues to be made by reference to the adjustment(s) in respect of such P...

	(b) Merger Event: Following the determination by the Calculation Agent that a Merger Event has occurred, the Calculation Agent shall, on or after the Merger Date either:
	(i) (A) make such adjustment(s) to the settlement, payment or any other terms of the Notes as the Calculation Agent determines appropriate to account for the economic effect on the Notes of such Merger Event (provided that no adjustment(s) will be mad...
	(ii) if the Calculation Agent determines that no adjustment that it could make under (i) will produce a commercially reasonable result, notify the Noteholders that the relevant consequence shall be the redemption of the Notes in which case the Issuer ...

	(c) Tender Offer: Following the determination by the Calculation Agent that a Tender Offer has occurred, the Calculation Agent shall, on or after the Tender Offer Date either:
	(i) (A) make such adjustment(s) to the settlement, payment or any other terms of the Notes as the Calculation Agent determines appropriate to account for the economic effect on the Notes of such Tender Offer (provided that no adjustment(s) will be mad...
	(ii) if the Calculation Agent determines that no adjustment that it could make under (i) will produce a commercially reasonable result, notify the Noteholders that the relevant consequence shall be the redemption of the Notes, in which case the Issuer...

	(d) Nationalisation, Liquidation, Delisting and Change of Law: If at any time the Calculation Agent determines that:
	(i) Nationalisation: all the Shares of the Share Issuer or all the assets or substantially all the assets of the Share Issuer are nationalised, expropriated or are otherwise required to be transferred to any governmental agency, authority, entity or i...
	(ii) Liquidation: by reason of the voluntary or involuntary liquidation, bankruptcy, insolvency, dissolution or winding-up of or any analogous proceeding affecting a Share Issuer, (A) all the Shares of that Share Issuer are required to be transferred ...
	(iii) Delisting: the Exchange announces that pursuant to the rules of such Exchange, the Shares cease (or will cease) to be listed, traded or publicly quoted on that Exchange for any reason (other than a Merger Event or Tender Offer) and are not immed...
	(iv) Change of Law: on or after the Issue Date of the Notes (A) due to the adoption of or any change in any applicable law or regulation (including, without limitation, any tax law), compliance with any request, directive or policy of any governmental...

	(e) Insolvency, Jurisdictional Event, Trading Failure, Hedging Disruption, CMA Order and CMA Resolution Ineligible Investor Event: If at any time the Calculation Agent determines that:
	(i) Insolvency: the Share Issuer has instituted, or has had instituted against it by a regulator, supervisor or any similar official with primary insolvency, rehabilitative or regulatory jurisdiction over it in the jurisdiction of its incorporation or...
	(ii) Jurisdiction Event: an event has occurred, whether of general application or otherwise and which occurs as a result of present or future risks in or connected with the Reference Jurisdiction(s) including, but not limited to, risks associated with...
	(iii) Trading Failure: the Hedge Counterparty is not able to buy and/or sell Shares via a trading system commonly used within the Reference Jurisdiction for such Shares or such trading system fails to calculate and publish the price of the Shares on a...
	(iv) Hedging Disruption: a condition has arisen which has the effect of prohibiting or restricting the ability of the Issuer or the Hedge Counterparty to hedge the Issuer's position under the Notes including to remain the owner of, or to acquire or fr...
	(v) CMA Order: in relation to Notes Linked to Saudi Shares, the Capital Market Authority has made an order, based on its absolute discretion, pursuant to the terms of the CMA Resolution, that the Hedge Counterparty (where it is an Authorised Person) m...
	(vi) CMA Resolution Ineligible Investor Event: in relation to Notes Linked to Saudi Shares, a Noteholder has notified the Issuer, or the Calculation Agent has otherwise become aware to its reasonable satisfaction, that such Noteholder is an Ultimate B...

	(f) Change of Exchange: If an Exchange is changed, the Calculation Agent shall make such consequential modifications to the calculation of any Additional Amount, Early Redemption Amount and/or Final Redemption Amount as it may determine appropriate to...
	(g) More than one adjustment or termination event: In the circumstance where one or more event may satisfy the terms of two or more of the adjustment or termination events set forth in this Condition ‎6 (or Condition ‎5 (Redemption and Purchase)), the...

	7. FX Disruption Condition
	(i) if the Calculation Agent determines that (A) there is no condition created by or resulting from any action of or failure to act by any governmental authority, or a local market condition that has the effect of prohibiting, restricting or materiall...
	(ii) in each other case, the Notes shall be deemed to have been redeemed on such date without any payment on the part of the Issuer (or Guarantor) and the Issuer's obligations under the Notes shall be deemed to have been discharged in full.

	8. Payments
	(a) Payments in respect of definitive Notes:
	(i) Bearer Notes and Coupons: In the case of definitive Bearer Notes, payments of principal will be (subject as provided below) payable by electronic transfer to an account maintained outside the United States and will be made in the manner provided i...
	(ii) Registered Notes: In the case of definitive Registered Notes, payments of principal and any Additional Amount will (subject as provided below) be payable by electronic transfer, to the holder(s) in whose name such definitive Registered Notes are ...

	(b) Payments in respect of Global Notes and Global Certificates:
	(i) Global Notes: In the case of Global Notes, payments of principal and any Additional Amount will (subject as provided below) be made in the manner specified above in relation to definitive Bearer Notes and otherwise in the manner specified in the r...
	(ii) Global Certificates: In the case of Global Certificates, payments of principal will (subject as provided below) be made in the manner specified above in relation to definitive Registered Notes and, if no further payment falls to be made in respec...

	(c) General provisions applicable to payments: The holder of a Global Note or, as the case may be, Global Certificate shall be the only person entitled to receive payments or make a claim with respect to payments in respect of Notes represented by suc...
	(d) Payments in the United States: In the case of Bearer Notes in definitive form, notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Condition ‎8, if any amount of principal and/or additional amounts in respect of Notes is payable in US Dollars, such U...
	(i) the Issuer has appointed Paying Agents with specified offices outside the United States with the reasonable expectation that such Paying Agents would be able to make payment in US Dollars at such specified offices outside the United States of the ...
	(ii) payment of the full amount of such principal and any Additional Amount at all such specified offices outside the United States is illegal or effectively precluded by exchange controls or other similar restrictions on the full payment or receipt o...
	(iii) such payment is then permitted under US law without involving, in the opinion of the Issuer and the Guarantor, adverse tax consequences to the Issuer or the Guarantor.

	(e) Payment Day: If the date for payment of any amount in respect of any Note is not a Payment Day, the holder thereof shall not be entitled to payment until the next succeeding Payment Day and shall not be entitled to further interest or other paymen...

	9. Taxation
	10. ERISA Transfer Restrictions
	11. Prescription
	12. Events of Default
	(a) the Issuer fails to pay any amount due on the Notes within 30 days after the due date;
	(b) a resolution is passed, or a final order of a court in the British Virgin Islands (in the case of the Issuer) or Egypt (in the case of the Guarantor) is made and, where possible, not discharged or stayed within a period of 90 days, that the Issuer...
	(c) in respect of the Notes issued by the Issuer, the Guarantee is not (or is claimed by the Guarantor not to be) in full force and effect,

	13. Meeting of Noteholders and Modifications
	(a) Meetings of Noteholders: The Agency Agreement contains provisions for convening meetings of Noteholders to consider any matter affecting their interests, including the sanctioning by Extraordinary Resolution of a modification of any of these Condi...
	(b) Modification of the Agency Agreement or the Conditions: The Issuer may agree to any modification of, or any waiver or authorisation of any breach or proposed breach of or any failure to comply with, the Agency Agreement or the Conditions without t...
	(i) such modification, waiver or authorisation modifies the restrictions on and procedures for resales and other transfers of Notes to reflect any changes in applicable law or regulation (or the interpretation thereof) or enables the Issuer to rely up...
	(ii) such modification is of a formal, minor or technical nature or is made to correct a manifest error or a defective provision or to comply with mandatory provisions of the law; or
	(iii) to do so could not reasonably be expected to be prejudicial to the interests of the Noteholders,


	14. Replacement of Notes
	15. Further Issues
	16. Notices
	(a) Definitive Notes:
	(i) in the case of definitive Bearer Notes, such notice is published in a daily newspaper of general circulation in London (which is expected to be the Financial Times) and, as long as the Notes are listed on any stock exchange, is published in such m...
	(ii) in the case of definitive Registered Notes, (A) such notice is published in the manner described in paragraph (i) above and (B) mailed to Noteholders at their respective addresses in the Register. Any such notice shall be deemed to have been give...

	(b) Global Notes and Global Certificates: Until such time as any definitive Notes are issued, there may, so long as any Global Notes and Global Certificates are held in their entirety on behalf of Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg, be substitut...
	(c) Notices to be given by a Noteholder: Notices to be given by any Noteholder shall be in writing and given by lodging the same, together (in the case of any Note in definitive form) with the relative Note or Notes, with the Fiscal Agent.  Whilst any...

	17. Agents
	(a) Status of Agents:  The Agents act solely as agents of the Issuer and the Guarantor and do not assume any obligations or duty to, or relationship of agency or trust for or with, any Noteholder.
	(b) Variation or termination of appointment of Agents: The Issuer and the Guarantor, if applicable, reserve the right at any time to vary or terminate the appointment of any Agents and to appoint other or additional Agents in accordance with the terms...
	(i) a Fiscal Agent;
	(ii) a Registrar in respect of all Registered Notes;
	(iii) one or more Calculation Agent(s);
	(iv) such agents (including a Paying Agent) as may be required by the Global Exchange Market of Euronext Dublin, or any relevant authorities or any other stock exchange on which any Notes may be listed, and the applicable rules of such relevant author...
	(v) a Paying Agent in the United States in respect of any Bearer Notes in definitive form of which the Settlement Currency is US Dollars in the circumstances described in Condition ‎8(d);

	(c) Resignation of Agents:  Each Agent may resign its appointment at any time by giving the Issuer, and where applicable, the Guarantor, and the Fiscal Agent at least 60 days' notice to that effect, and in accordance with such other terms as are speci...

	18. Calculation Agent, Determination, Disclaimer of Liability and other terms
	(a) Status of Calculation Agent:  The Calculation Agent acts solely as agent of the Issuer and the Guarantor and does not assume any obligations or duty to, or relationship of agency or trust for or with, any Noteholder. In making any determination or...
	(b) Standard of care:  Any matter that falls to be determined, considered or otherwise decided upon by the Calculation Agent or any other person (including, where a matter is to be decided by reference to the Calculation Agent's or such other person's...
	(c) Disclaimer of liability:  No liability shall attach to the Calculation Agent to any of the Noteholders, the Issuer, the Guarantor or the other Agents for good faith errors or omissions in the Calculation Agent's calculations and determinations as ...
	(d) Delegation:  The calculation functions and other discretionary actions required of the Calculation Agent may be delegated to any such person as the Calculation Agent, in its sole and absolute discretion, may decide.
	(e) Calculations and determinations all binding:  All calculations and determinations made by the Calculation Agent in respect of the Notes shall be final and binding on the Issuer and Noteholders in the absence of manifest or proven error.
	(f) Two or more Calculation Agents:  Where more than one Calculation Agent is appointed in respect of the Notes, references in these Conditions to the Calculation Agent shall be construed as each Calculation Agent performing its respective duties unde...
	(g) Replacement of Calculation Agent:  If the Calculation Agent is unable to act as such or if the Calculation Agent fails duly to establish any rate or any amount, whether in cash or in kind, specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement, to make any ...

	19. Third Parties
	20. Governing Law and Jurisdiction
	(a) Governing Law: The Notes (and any dispute, controversy, proceedings or claim of whatever nature arising out of or in any way relating to the Notes) are governed by and shall be construed in accordance with English law.
	(b) Jurisdiction: The courts of England are to have jurisdiction to settle any disputes that may arise out of or in connection with any Notes and accordingly any legal action or proceedings arising out of or in connection with any Notes may be brought...
	(c) Service of Process: Without prejudice to any other mode of service allowed under any relevant law:
	(i) the Issuer irrevocably appoints EFG Hermes U.K. Limited, 6th Floor, 103 Mount Street, London W1K 2TJ, United Kingdom as its agent for service of process in relation to any proceedings before the English courts in connection with the Notes; and
	(ii) the Guarantor irrevocably appoints EFG Hermes U.K. Limited, 6th Floor, 103 Mount Street, London W1K 2TJ, United Kingdom as its agent for service of process in relation to any proceedings before the English courts in connection with the Notes.


	21. Definitions
	(i) a day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments and are open for general business (including dealings in foreign exchange and foreign currency deposits) in London and in each Additional Financial Centre specified in th...
	(ii) either (1) in relation to any sum payable in a Settlement Currency other than euro, a day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments and are open for general business (including dealing in foreign exchange and foreign ...
	(i) either (1) in relation to any sum payable in a Settlement Currency other than euro, a day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments and are open for general business (including dealing in foreign exchange and foreign c...
	(ii) a day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments and are open for general business (including dealings in foreign exchange and foreign currency deposits) in each Additional Payment Financial Centre specified in the app...
	(i) a subdivision, consolidation or reclassification of relevant Shares (unless resulting in a Merger Event), or a free distribution or dividend of Shares to existing holders by way of bonus, capitalisation or similar issue;
	(ii) a distribution, issue or dividend to existing holders of the Shares of (1) such Shares or (2) other share capital or securities granting the right to payment of dividends and/or the proceeds of liquidation of the Share Issuer equally or proportio...
	(iii) the declaration by the Share Issuer of an extraordinary dividend, the characterisation of which shall be determined by the Calculation Agent;
	(iv) a dividend or distribution other than a cash dividend;
	(v) a call by it in respect of Shares that are not fully paid;
	(vi) a repurchase by it or any of its subsidiaries of its Shares whether out of profits or capital and whether the consideration for such repurchase is cash, securities or otherwise; or
	(vii) an event that results in any shareholder rights being distributed or becoming separated from shares of common stock or other shares of the capital stock of the Share Issuer pursuant to a shareholder rights plan or arrangement directed against ho...
	(viii) any other event that may have a diluting or concentrative effect on the value of the Shares.
	(i) in respect of the determination of the Final Redemption Amount, the date specified as such in the relevant Pricing Supplement; or
	(ii) in respect of the determination of the Early Redemption, the date following as soon as practicable after the Calculation Agent has become aware of the event leading to the early redemption of the Notes,
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	2. GUARANTEE AND INDEMNITY
	2.1 Guarantee
	(a) The Notes: to each Noteholder the due and punctual payment of all sums from time to time payable by the Issuer in respect of the relevant Note as and when the same become due and payable and accordingly undertakes to pay to such Noteholder, forthw...
	(b) The Direct Rights: to each Accountholder the due and punctual payment of all sums from time to time payable by the Issuer to such Accountholder in respect of the Direct Rights as and when the same become due and payable and accordingly undertakes ...
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	4.3 Obligations not discharged
	(a) Winding-up: the winding-up, dissolution, administration, re-organisation or moratorium of the Issuer or any change in its status, function, control or ownership;
	(b) Illegality: any of the obligations of the Issuer under or in respect of any Note or the Deed of Covenant being or becoming illegal, invalid, unenforceable or ineffective in any respect;
	(c) Indulgence: time or other indulgence (including for the avoidance of doubt, any composition) being granted or agreed to be granted to the Issuer in respect of any of its obligations under or in respect of any Note or the Deed of Covenant;
	(d) Amendment: any amendment, novation, supplement, extension, (whether of maturity or otherwise) or restatement (in each case, however fundamental and of whatsoever nature) or replacement, waiver or release of, any obligation of the Issuer under or i...
	(e) Analogous events: any other act, event or omission which, but for this clause ‎4.3, might operate to discharge, impair or otherwise affect the obligations expressed to be assumed by the Guarantor herein or any of the rights, powers or remedies con...

	4.4 Settlement conditional
	4.5 Exercise of Rights
	(a) Demand: to make any demand of the Issuer, save for the presentation of the relevant Note;
	(b) Take action: to take any action or obtain judgment in any court against the Issuer; or
	(c) Claim or proof: to make or file any claim or proof in a winding-up or dissolution of the Issuer,

	4.6 Deferral of Guarantor's rights
	(a) Indemnity: to be indemnified by the Issuer;
	(b) Contribution: to claim any contribution from any other guarantor of the Issuer's obligations under or in respect of any Note or the Deed of Covenant; or
	(c) Subrogation: to take the benefit (in whole or in part and whether by way of subrogation or otherwise) of any rights of any Beneficiary against the Issuer in respect of amounts paid by the Guarantor under this Deed of Guarantee or any security enjo...

	4.7 Pari passu ranking

	5. DEPOSIT OF DEED OF GUARANTEE
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	12. ARBITRATION
	12.1 Any dispute arising out of or in connection with this Deed of Guarantee, including any question regarding its existence, validity, formation or termination, shall be referred to and finally resolved by arbitration under the Rules of the London Co...
	12.2 The number of arbitrators shall be three.
	12.3 The seat, or legal place, of arbitration shall be London.
	12.4 The language to be used in the arbitral proceedings shall be English.

	13. MODIFICATION
	1. General
	2. The British Virgin Islands
	2.1 Tax Considerations
	2.2 All payments made by the Issuer to persons who are not resident in the British Virgin Islands, and capital gains realised with respect to any shares in the Issuer by persons who are not resident in the British Virgin Islands are exempt from all pr...
	2.3 As of 1 January 2005, the Payroll Taxes Act, 2004 came into force in the British Virgin Islands. It will not apply to the Issuer except to the extent that the Issuer has employees (or deemed employees) rendering services to the Issuer wholly or ma...
	2.4 No estate, inheritance, succession or gift tax, rate, duty, levy or other charge is payable by persons who are not resident in the BVI with respect to any shares in the Issuer.
	2.5 Subject to the payment of stamp duty on the acquisition of property in the British Virgin Islands by the Issuer (or a transfer of shares in the Company while it owns property in the British Virgin Islands):
	(i) all instruments relating to transfers of property to or by the Issuer;
	(ii) all instruments relating to transactions in respect of shares of the Issuer; and
	(iii) all instruments relating to the other transactions relating to the business of the Issuer,

	2.6 Automatic Exchange of Financial Account Information
	2.7 The British Virgin Islands has signed an inter-governmental agreement to improve international tax compliance and the exchange of information with the United States (the "US IGA"). The British Virgin Islands has also signed, along with over 100 ot...
	2.8 Amendments have been made to the Mutual Legal Assistance (Tax Matters) Act 2003 and orders have been made pursuant to this act (the "BVI legislation") to give effect to the terms of the US IGA under BVI law.  Guidance notes were published by the g...
	2.9 All "Financial Institutions" in the British Virgin Islands will be required to comply with the registration, due diligence and reporting requirements of the BVI legislation, except to the extent that they can rely on an exemption that allows them ...
	2.10 The BVI legislation requires the Issuer to, amongst other things (i) register with the IRS to obtain a Global Intermediary Identification Number (in the context of the US IGA only), (ii) adopt and implement written policies and procedures setting...

	3. FATCA Considerations for Holders
	(a) except to the extent permitted under the D Rules (a) the Dealer represents that it has not offered or sold, and agrees that during the restricted period it will not offer or sell, the Notes to a person who is within the United States or its posses...
	(b) the Dealer represents that it has and agrees that throughout the restricted period it will have in effect procedures reasonably designed to ensure that its employees or agents who are directly engaged in selling the Notes are aware that the Notes ...
	(c) if it is a United States person, the Dealer represents that it is acquiring the Notes for purposes of resale in connection with their original issue and if it retains Notes for its own account, it will only do so in accordance with the requirement...
	(d) with respect to each affiliate that acquires Notes from it for the purpose of offering or selling the Notes during the restricted period, the Dealer either (i) repeats and confirms the representations and agreements contained in (a), (b) and (c) a...
	(e) the Dealer represents that it has not and agrees that it will not enter into any written contract (other than a confirmation or other notice of the transaction) pursuant to which any other party to the contract (other than one of its affiliates or...
	(a) the expression retail investor means a person who is one (or more) of the following:
	(i) a retail client, as defined in point (8) of Article 2 of Regulation (EU) No 2017/565 as it forms part of UK domestic law by virtue of the European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018 (as amended, "EUWA"); or
	(ii) a customer within the meaning of the provisions of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 ("FSMA") and any rules or regulations made under the FSMA to implement Directive (EU) 2016/97, where that customer would not qualify as a professional ...
	(iii) not a qualified investor as defined in Article 2 of the UK Prospectus Regulation; and

	(b) the expression "an offer" includes the communication in any form and by any means of sufficient information on the terms of the offer and the Notes to be offered so as to enable an investor to decide to purchase or subscribe for the Notes.
	(A) at any time to any legal entity which is a qualified investor as defined in Article 2 of the UK Prospectus Regulation;
	(B) at any time to fewer than 150 natural or legal persons (other than qualified investors as defined in Article 2 of the UK Prospectus Regulation) in the United Kingdom subject to obtaining the prior consent of the relevant Dealer or Dealers nominate...
	(C) at any time in any other circumstances falling within section 86 of the FSMA,

	(a) it has only communicated or caused to be communicated and will only communicate or cause to be communicated any invitation or inducement to engage in investment activity (within the meaning of section 21 (financial promotion) of the FSMA) received...
	(b) it has complied and will comply with all applicable provisions of the FSMA with respect to anything done by it in relation to any Notes in, from or otherwise involving the United Kingdom.
	(a) the expression "retail investor" means a person who is one (or more) of the following:
	(i) a retail client as defined in point (11) of Article 4(1) of Directive 2014/65/EU (as amended, "MiFID II"); or
	(ii) a customer within the meaning of Directive (EU) 2016/97, where that customer would not qualify as a professional client as defined in point (10) of Article 4(1) of MiFID II; or
	(iii) not a qualified investor as defined in the EU Prospectus Regulation; and

	(b) the expression "an offer" includes the communication in any form and by any means of sufficient information on the terms of the offer and the Notes to be offered so as to enable an investor to decide to purchase or subscribe for the Notes.
	(a) at any time to any legal entity which is a qualified investor as defined in the EU Prospectus Regulation;
	(b) at any time to fewer than 150 natural or legal persons (other than qualified investors as defined in the EU Prospectus Regulation), subject to obtaining the prior consent of the Dealer or Dealers nominated by the Issuer for any such offer; or
	(c) at any time in any other circumstances falling within Article 1(4) of the EU Prospectus Regulation,
	(a) the Prospectus (Directive 2003/71/EC) Regulations 2005 (as amended) and any Central Bank of Ireland ("Central Bank") rules issued and / or in force pursuant to Section 1363 of the Companies Act 2014 (as amended);
	(b) the European Communities (Markets in Financial Instruments) Regulations 2017 (as amended) and it will conduct itself in accordance with any rules or codes of conduct and any conditions or requirements, or any other enactment, imposed or approved b...
	(c) Regulation (EU) No 596/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 16 April 2014 on market abuse, the European Union (Market Abuse) Regulations 2016 and any Central Bank rules issued and / or in force pursuant to Section 1370 of the Comp...
	(d) Regulation (EU) No 1286/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 26 November 2014 on key information documents for packaged retail and insurance-based investment products (PRIIPs); and
	(e) the Central Bank Acts 1942 to 2015 (as amended) and any codes of conduct rules made under Section 117(1) of the Central Bank Act 1989.
	(a) a Qualified Foreign Investor in accordance with the definition set out in the Rules for Qualified Foreign Financial Institutions Investment in Listed securities issued by the Capital Markets Authority (as amended from time to time) other than a pe...
	(b) a citizen of the Cooperation Council for the Arab States of the Gulf (including natural persons who hold the citizenship of one of the Cooperation Council for the Arab States of the Gulf countries), or legal persons:
	(i) the capital of which is majority owned by citizens or governments of the Cooperation Council for the Arab States of the Gulf; and
	(ii) holding the citizenship of one of the Cooperation Council for the Arab States of the Gulf countries in accordance with the definition set out in the resolution of the Supreme Council of the Cooperation Council for the Arab States of the Gulf in i...

	(c) a foreign investor residing in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia; or
	(d) a foreign person (other than the ones mentioned in sub-paragraphs (a), (b) and (c) above) that owns any share or security of a Tadawul Issuer whose shares are listed on the Tadawul in relation to swap transactions involving the shares and converti...
	(a) the total Tadawul Securities of a Tadawul Issuer underlying or referenced by all swap transactions, participation notes, equity linked securities or other transactions or products transferring the economic benefits of the shares executed for the b...
	(b) all other applicable legislative limitations on foreign ownership in joint stock companies in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia; and
	(c) the limitations set forth in the articles of association or by-laws of the issuer of the Shares or any instructions issued by the supervisory or regulatory authorities to which such issuer are subject, in relation to foreign ownership.
	(a) the Notes to be issued under the Programme have not been and will not be offered, sold or publicly promoted or advertised by it in the United Arab Emirates other than in compliance with any laws applicable in the United Arab Emirates governing the...
	(b) the offering of the Notes to be issued under the Programme has not been approved or licensed by the United Arab Emirates Central Bank, the UAE Securities and Commodities Authority (the "SCA"), the Dubai Financial Services Authority (the "DFSA") or...
	(c) these Base Listing Particulars are strictly private and confidential and are being issued to a limited number of institutional and individual investors:
	(i) who fall within the exceptions to the SCA Resolutions and who qualify as Qualified Investors as defined under the SCA Resolutions;
	(ii) upon their request and confirmation that they understand that the Notes have not been approved or licensed by or registered with the UAE Central Bank, the SCA, DFSA or any other relevant licensing authorities or governmental agencies in the UAE; and
	(iii) must not be provided to any person other than the original recipient, and may not be reproduced or used for any other purpose.

	(a) this document relates to an Exempt Offer (as defined in the Markets Rules of the Dubai Financial Services Authority ("DFSA") Rulebook as amended, issued for the purposes of DIFC Law No. 1 of 2012 ("DIFC Markets Rules")); and
	(b) this document is intended for distribution only to Professional Clients (as defined in the DIFC Markets Rules) who are not natural persons. It must not be delivered to, or relied on by, any other person.

	1. We, [insert legal name of Noteholder], domiciled in [insert Noteholder's country of origin] and acting for our own benefit ("we", "us", "our" or "ourselves" as the case may be) refer to the Notes referencing [ordinary] [preference] shares of [inser...
	2. We confirm that we are aware that:
	(a) the Capital Market Authority of the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia (the "Capital Market Authority") regulates securities dealing and associated activities in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia;
	(b) pursuant to the Capital Market Authority Board of Commissioners' resolution dated 07/08/1439H corresponding to 23/04/2018G, which amends the Capital Market Authority Board of Commissioners' resolution dated 20/03/1438H corresponding to 19/12/2016G...
	(c) pursuant to the CMA Resolution, the Authorised Person may not enter into any Swap Agreement or execute any related swap transaction where the Ultimate Beneficiary:
	(i) is a party prohibited under the terms of section 3 of the CMA Resolution from entering into or executing a Swap Agreement or related swap transaction, as described in paragraph ‎3(c)(i) below; or
	(ii) does not satisfy the limitations on the shareholdings of the Ultimate Beneficiary under the terms of section 13 of the CMA Resolution, as described in paragraph ‎3(c)(ii) below;

	(d) the Capital Market Authority may order, based on its absolute discretion, the Authorised Person to not enter into or to terminate any Swap Agreement, and may impose any type of limitations, restrictions, or requirements in relation to the Swap Agr...
	(e) the Issuer may (but shall be under no obligation under the Notes to) establish a Hedge Position in respect of its obligations under such Notes including to enter into a Swap Agreement with the Authorised Person as a Hedge Counterparty who will hol...
	(f) pursuant to the CMA Resolution and Part 7 of the Capital Market Institutions Regulations as issued, and amended from time to time, by the Capital Markets Authority, the assets and money of a non-resident foreign investor who is a party to a Swap A...
	(g) the Notes have not been and will not be registered under the US Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act").

	3. In connection with the Notes, we:
	(a) authorise:
	(i) you to disclose to the Capital Market Authority the information obtained from us pursuant to paragraphs ‎3(f)(ii) to ‎3(f)(iv) below and/or such information as expressly requested in writing by the Capital Market Authority from time to time;
	(ii) you to include our name, nationality and identification information in the investment portfolio under the Authorised Person's name with the Securities Depository Centre (Edaa);
	(iii) you (in this case, the Issuer) to issue to the Authorised Person orders to execute transactions to establish Hedge Positions in respect of your obligations under the Notes as contemplated by the Swap Agreement;
	(iv) you to disclose information provided to you to third party information providers (in any location) for verification purposes;

	(b) represent and warrant to you that:
	(i) we have all requisite power and authority to enter into this letter and to exercise our rights and perform our obligations under this letter and this letter has been duly authorised, validly executed and delivered by us and constitutes our valid a...
	(ii) we are purchasing the Notes for our own account and we are not purchasing the Notes for, on behalf of, or for the benefit or account of any other person or entity, and we are purchasing the Notes as principal and not as agent of any person or ent...

	(c) represent and warrant to you on this date and on each subsequent day for as long as we are a holder of the Notes that:
	(i) we are not:
	(A) a Qualified Foreign Investor in accordance with the definition set out in the Rules for Qualified Foreign Financial Institutions Investment in Listed securities issued by the Capital Market Authority (as amended from time to time) unless we meet a...
	(B) a citizen of the Cooperation Council for the Arab States of the Gulf (including natural persons who holds the citizenship of one of the Cooperation Council for the Arab States of the Gulf countries), or legal persons:
	(1) the capital of which is majority owned by citizens or governments of the Cooperation Council for the Arab States of the Gulf; and
	(2) holding the citizenship of one of the Cooperation Council for the Arab States of the Gulf countries in accordance with the definition set out in the resolution of the Supreme Council of the Cooperation Council for the Arab States of the Gulf in it...

	(C) a foreign investor residing in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia; or
	(D) a foreign person (other than the ones mentioned in sub-paragraphs ‎(A), ‎(B) and ‎(C) above) that owns Tadawul Securities that owns any share or security of a Tadawul Issuer whose shares are listed on the Tadawul in relation to swap transactions i...

	(ii) our investments fall within the following limitations:
	(A) the total Tadawul Securities of a Tadawul Issuer underlying or referenced by all swap transactions, participation notes, equity linked securities or other transactions or products transferring the economic benefits of the shares executed for the b...
	(B) all other applicable legislative limitations on foreign ownership in joint stock companies in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia; and
	(C) the limitations set forth in the articles of association or by-laws of the issuer of the Shares or any instructions issued by the supervisory or regulatory authorities to which such issuer are subject, in relation to foreign ownership;


	(d) shall ensure that we are fully compliant with the applicable requirements of the Anti-Money Laundering Law and implementing regulations and the rules issued by the Capital Market Authority related to anti-money laundering and terrorist financing a...
	(e) shall maintain systems and controls which are adequate to ensure the implementation of the terms and conditions of this letter and ensure its validity;
	(f) undertake to:
	(i) comply with the laws relating to the prevention and detection of money laundering as they apply to us and to comply with all laws and regulations applicable to us regarding trading in Tadawul Securities, including not acting on the basis of non-pu...
	(ii) provide you promptly with such information as you may reasonably request in order for you and your affiliates to comply with the law relating to the prevention and detection of money laundering in the British Virgin Islands and the Kingdom of Sau...
	(iii) provide you promptly, as and when requested by you, in writing with any information as may be required by you, including but not limited to details relating to our name, country of origin and any other information that may be required by the Cap...
	(iv) provide you promptly, as and when requested by you, with such information and evidence as you may reasonably require to confirm that the representations and warranties made or repeated in accordance with paragraphs ‎3(b) and ‎3(c) above are corre...
	(v) comply with all applicable disclosure requirements in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia including, but not limited to, the requirement to disclose ownership interests in shares (as required by the Capital Market Authority) and any other disclosure requi...

	(g) are aware that the Capital Market Authority may, in its absolute discretion, from time to time make an order to impose any type of limitations, restrictions or any other requirements (including the termination thereof) on the Hedge Position, and, ...
	(h) will not, directly or indirectly, sell, transfer, assign or otherwise dispose of any interest in the Notes to or for the benefit or account of any other entity unless, prior to such sale, transfer, assignment or otherwise the proposed transferee o...
	(i) are aware that payments on the Notes are subject to the credit risk of the Issuer and the Guarantor, and we have made our own analysis of such risk, including to have reviewed the Base Listing Particulars and the financial statements incorporated ...
	(j) (A) understand that the offer or sale of such Notes may not be made to, or for the account or benefit of, a US person (as defined in Regulation S under the Securities Act) (other than a distributor) or to a "United States Person" (as defined in th...
	(k) understand and agree that in the event of any transfer of Notes, or any interest therein, to a purchaser or transferee that does not comply with the requirements set forth in the Base Listing Particulars, you, as Issuer, will have the right to dir...
	(l) [if we are subject to US federal income taxation:
	(i) acknowledge and agree that the Issuer currently expects to treat the Notes, for US federal income tax purposes, as equity interests in the Issuer, and agree to treat the Notes, for US federal income tax purposes, consistent with the characterizati...
	(ii) understand that the Issuer is likely to be a passive foreign investment company ("PFIC") and may be a controlled foreign corporation ("CFC") for US federal income tax purposes; and
	(iii) have consulted with our own US tax advisors and are comfortable with the tax risks inherent in a purchase of the Notes.  We are aware that all income on the Notes, including all gain on the sale or other taxable disposition of a Note may be ordi...

	(m) have not relied on you in giving the authorisations, representations, warranties, confirmations and undertakings in this letter;
	(n) understand and agree that each of the addressees of this letter (including the Agents) and their respective affiliates will rely upon the truth and accuracy of the acknowledgements, representations and agreements in this letter; and
	(o) undertake to immediately notify you if any of the representations, warranties, confirmations or undertakings we have given in this letter prove or there is a reasonable likelihood that it will prove incorrect or misleading.

	4. For the purposes of this letter:
	5. The terms of this letter (and any dispute, controversy, proceedings or claim of whatever nature arising out of or in any way relating to this letter or its formation) are governed by, and shall be construed in accordance with English law. We irrevo...
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